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WHO WE ARE

John Laing plc (the “Company”, the “Group” or John Laing)
is a specialist investor in and manager
of infrastructure assets in the UK and
internationally, principally for the public
sector. By combining our skill in the
management of development risk,
project financing, asset management
and operations with those of our chosen
partners and the project supply chain,
we have built an enviable reputation
as a market leader in privately
financed infrastructure.
OUR STRATEGY
Is to deliver predictable investment returns and consistent growth
in the value of the primary and secondary investment portfolios we
manage on behalf of our shareholders, as well as the secondary
investments we manage on behalf of third party investors.
This is achieved through the active approach we take to managing all our investments, and
the strong relationships we build and maintain with our ultimate public sector clients.
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KPIs AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

KPIs
2012

2011

£1,102.1m
£63.8m
£26.7m
£146.1m

£944.0m
£45.7m
£25.2m
£60.6m

£65.6m
£315.3m
£137.4m

£29.8m
£276.7m
£132.2m

IFRS statutory accounts
Profit before tax
Net assets
Proceeds from investment realisation4

JOHN LAING AT A GLANCE

Assets under management1
Value added2
Cash yield from investments3
New investment committed

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
➔

Strong growth in assets under management

➔

Value added of £63.8 million (2011 – £45.7 million)

➔

Investment commitments of £146.1 million on seven projects
(2011 – £60.6 million on five projects)

➔

IFRS profit before tax increased to £65.6 million
(2011 – £29.8 million)

➔

£92.9 million proceeds from sales of investments in five PPP
projects, resulting in an IFRS profit of £5.7 million and a profit
against original cost of £47.3 million

1.

Assets under management comprise the sum of the Directors’ portfolio valuation (net of the market value of John Laing’s shareholding in
JLIF), JLIF’s market capitalisation and PPP assets held by JLPF as at 31 December. The Directors’ portfolio valuation treats investments in
subsidiary PPP project companies in the same way as investments in joint venture PPP project companies whereas, under IFRS, investments
in subsidiary PPP project companies are treated differently to investments in joint venture PPP project companies. Under IFRS, investments in
subsidiary PPP project companies are consolidated in the Group’s financial statements on a line-by-line basis in accordance with IAS 27. For a
reconciliation between the Directors’ portfolio valuation and the Group Balance Sheet under IFRS see page 27.

2.

Value added represents growth in the Group’s net assets as adjusted for the fair value of subsidiary PPP project companies not in net assets
and excluding contributions to and changes in the JLPF deficit.

3.

Cash yield from investments comprises subordinated debt interest, dividends and capital redemptions received from subsidiary and joint
venture project companies.

4.

Proceeds from investment realisation include £44.5 million from sales of JLIF shares.

OUR CORE VALUES
>

Commitment

Are the foundation of what we do and how we do it.

>

Adaptability

>

Partnership

They are the belief system by which we as a business operate, defining the manner
in which we interact with and treat each other and our external stakeholders. The
John Laing Core Values provide a set of guiding principles for our people, wherever
they are, across the Group.

>

Responsibility

>

Integrity
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OUR ACTIVITIES
PRIMARY INVESTMENT

Our primary investment activities involve sourcing, bidding for and winning greenfield infrastructure projects. Our primary
investment portfolio includes traditional PPP projects, strategic partnership structures for healthcare schemes in the UK, as
well as renewable energy. We work with partners who are individually selected for each project and we bring our broad skills
base to everything we do.
SECONDARY INVESTMENT

Our secondary investment activities involve holding operational infrastructure projects, most of which were originally primary
investments for John Laing. We aim to deliver projected investment returns and consistent growth in the value of the secondary
investment portfolio. Key to this is developing strong working relationships with partners over the full life of project concessions.
ASSET MANAGEMENT

We provide asset management services to both the Group’s primary and secondary investment portfolios and, in addition, in
respect of John Laing Infrastructure Fund’s (JLIF) investments, through John Laing Capital Management (JLCM). These services
cover: managing project delivery during the construction phase; provision of technical input; and the delivery of a number of
services through Management Services Agreements (MSAs). A further significant area of activity is the identification and
implementation of operational improvements to and realisation of value in both the Group’s and JLIF’s investment portfolios.
John Laing Integrated Services (JLIS) provides facilities management services to a number of PPP project companies as well as
directly to public sector clients. Sectors covered include local government, education, police, fire and rescue, health and rail.

OUR INTERNATIONAL REACH

John Laing has a well-established presence in
its chosen overseas markets: North America;
Continental Europe; and the Asia Pacific region.
When selecting target regions, we look for an identifiable pipeline of
projects coming to market, a trusted legal system, returns that meet
our risk-adjusted hurdle rates and strong political will to utilise private
investment. It is also a precondition that we are able to develop
partnerships with strong contractors and ones that have an established
local presence.

UNITED
KINGDOM

• Accommodation
• Transport
• Renewable energy,

Environment and Utilities
• Regeneration/Property

• Accommodation
• Renewable energy
• Transport

• Accommodation
• Transport

NORTH AMERICA

CONTINENTAL EUROPE
• Accommodation
• Transport

ASIA PACIFIC
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OUR PORTFOLIO (As at 31 December 2012)

PRIMARY INVESTMENT

JOHN LAING AT A GLANCE

The robust nature of the revenue streams from our portfolio of
projects has resulted in continued strong financial performance
throughout a period of relative economic turbulence.

SECONDARY INVESTMENT

Health

North
Birmingham MHT

North Staffs
Hospital

100%

75% (42% mezz)

Barnsley BSF

Schools

40%

Justice and
Emergency
Services
Defence

Regeneration
Other
Accommodation
Local Authority
Development

Oldham Social
Housing

Kirklees Social
Housing

Lambeth Social
Housing

95%

80%

50%

British
Transport Police

Cleveland
Firearms
27.08%

25%

54.17%

DARA Red
Dragon

Corsham MoD

100%

50%

Hastings
Property
Development
50%
Croydon BWH

Croydon Davis
House

50%

50%

A15 Netherlands

NH3 (Ma1)
Road, India

A1 Germany

E4 Nelostie
Finland

A1 Gdansk
Poland

36%

42.5%

50%

29.69%

Severn River
Crossing

M6 Hungary

A55

A130
100%

28%

Roads

Rail

Metropolitan
Police SEL

IEP (Phase 1)
24%%

35%

30%

50%

Coleshill
Parkway

Aylesbury Vale
Parkway

City Greenwich
Lewisham (DLR)

100%

50%

40%

International
Accommodation

Groningen
Tax Office

New Royal
Adelaide Hospital

Wiri Prison

Kelowna and
Vernon Hospitals

40%

17.3%

30%

50%

International
Other

Denver
FasTracks

Brisbane
AirLink

45%

6.05%

Renewable
energy,
Environment
and Utilities

Street Lighting

Amber Solar
Parks

Bilsthorpe
Wind Farm

Branden Solar
Parks

Wear Point
Wind Farm
80%

Kinnegar

100%

100%

100%

Svartvallsberget
Wind Farm

Manchester
Waste VL Co

Manchester
Waste TPS Co

East London
Waste Authority

Dumfries and
Galloway

85%

50%

37.43%

80%

80%

Surrey SL

Croydon &
Lewisham SL

50%

50%

50%

Financial close pre 2012
Financial close 2012
Commercial close only
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

>

Denver FasTracks

>

Croydon Council Urban
Regeneration Vehicle (CCURV)

I am pleased to report that this has been a year of strong progress by John Laing in our three main
areas of activity: investment in primary projects; value enhancement of operational secondary
investments; and asset management.
In our primary investment business, where we source our greenfield
developments, we achieved a record level of investment commitment at
£146.1 million. This included a major rolling stock investment in the
Intercity Express Programme (IEP) in the UK, our first ever investment in
New Zealand (Wiri Prison) as well as further investments in renewable
energy. This demonstrates our success in extending our model from our
core of PPP projects in the UK to other geographies and similar
infrastructure sectors.
Across the world and across all sectors there is an increasing need for
new infrastructure, including rail, roads, bridges, waste treatment, energy,
hospitals and social housing. This growing need provides John Laing with
a long and strong pipeline of opportunities to invest in attractive projects
to grow our business. Whilst the timing of projects may be impacted by
political issues and public sector budget constraints, the breadth and
diversified nature of this pipeline mean a steady flow of new investment
opportunities is maintained. We deploy our resources carefully to ensure
we target those markets and those sectors where we are competitive and
deal flow is most secure. We also regularly monitor and review other
markets and sectors to ensure we are ready to respond to opportunities
as they arise.

“

We have made significant progress this year and this reflects the
dedication and commitment of our staff without whom such progress
would not be possible. Once again I would like to thank them for the
significant contribution they make to the success of the Company.
Phil Nolan
CHAIRMAN
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”

JOHN LAING AT A GLANCE

>

City Lit

>

Surrey Street lighting

>

Severn River Crossing

To fund our increased investment levels, we have successfully refinanced
our corporate borrowing facilities: in February 2013, we entered into new
four-year facilities of £285 million which will provide us with a stable
financing platform for future growth. We will maintain our strategy to
finance future investment through a combination of cash flow from our
investment portfolio and our asset management activities, corporate
borrowing facilities and investment realisations.
As flagged last year, we are also investigating new sources of funding to
drive increased investment levels in the future and we have had
discussions with a small number of institutions who are interested in
co-investing with John Laing at the primary investment stage. Such
co-investment would enable us to target larger equity opportunities for
our primary investment portfolio. If we proceed, we would hope to close
this process in 2013.
Our portfolio of primary and secondary infrastructure investments
continues to perform well with value added of £63.8 million delivered this
year. The cash yield on secondary investments was a healthy 7.8% and the
overall investment portfolio grew to £556.0 million. In addition, we
disposed of five investments to John Laing Infrastructure Fund (JLIF).

>

North Staffordshire Hospital

The Board met again this year outside the regular board calendar to review
strategy and the positioning of the business. It confirmed its commitment
to creating shareholder value by continued focus on the efficient growth
of its core activities.
The composition of the Board remained unchanged in 2012 although I am
pleased to report that we appointed Carolyn Cattermole as General
Counsel and Company Secretary in September 2012. The Board has
worked well during the year and I believe that we have the right blend of
skills and experience at both executive and non- executive level to take
the Group forward with confidence.
We have made significant progress this year and this reflects the
dedication and commitment of our staff without whom such progress
would not be possible. Once again I would like to thank them for the
significant contribution they make to the success of the Company.

Phil Nolan
CHAIRMAN

Our third party fund management business, John Laing Capital Management
(JLCM), continued to grow and earn fees for the Company. We see further
opportunities to expand our fund management activity and we look forward
to developing this side of the business to be a significant revenue generator.
Thus our main activities, primary investment in new pre-construction
projects, value enhancement of operational secondary investments and
asset management are all performing well and are set to grow strongly
in the future.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

>

Hounslow Libraries

>

Manchester Waste

These are challenging times, but John Laing’s strategy of diversifying geographically, working with
strong local supply chain partners and spreading its activities across a range of infrastructure sectors
has held it in good stead throughout the economic crisis. It is because of our strategy and experience
that we were able to deliver a record year for new investment commitment and more than double our
profit before tax in 2012.
MARKET REVIEW We have continued with our strategy to invest in
greenfield infrastructure projects, creating value by managing such
investments through the development phase and into full operations. The
long-term performance of the business is principally driven by securing
new investment opportunities to which the Company commits capital, by
de-risking projects during the development phase to deliver stable
returns, and by enhancing those returns through active asset
management during the operating phases. We provide asset management
services to our own investment portfolio as well as that of JLIF.

In 2012 we enjoyed a record year for investing in infrastructure projects,
with the value of new investment commitments totalling £146.1 million
(2011 – £60.6 million) and, after adjusting for investment realisations, cash
movements and foreign exchange movements, the underlying value of our
portfolio of investments grew by 13.2% to £556.0 million.
Our UK focus has been on economic infrastructure, such as transport,
waste and renewable energy, rather than on social infrastructure.
Renewable energy is a new sector for us and I am very pleased to report
that we have already established a significant market presence in both
onshore wind-farms and solar projects. In transport, John Laing secured
a significant investment of £84.3 million in the IEP rolling stock project in
joint venture with Hitachi. Through this project, 57 new sets of rolling stock
will be delivered for use on the Great Western rail franchise, along with

“

In 2012 we enjoyed a record year for investing in
infrastructure projects, with the value of new investment
commitments totalling £146.1 million.
Adrian Ewer
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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>

M6 Motorway, Hungary

>

Groningen Tax Office, Netherlands

>

Coleshill Parkway

>

A1 Poland

BUSINESS REVIEW
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The biggest challenge facing investors in greenfield infrastructure
projects is the sourcing of project debt finance on acceptable terms. The
challenge is heightened in the UK and Europe where projects have,
historically, been financed using long-term bank debt. This is no longer
in sufficient supply as many banks have either fully withdrawn from
project finance or will only lend for a shorter term. We are hopeful that
new sources will emerge but as yet, the capital markets have not
responded in any material sense to fill the gap. The UK Government
hopes that its new model PF2, coupled with a £40bn Government
guarantee programme, will attract greater interest from institutional
investors in long-term debt. It remains to be seen whether the new model
will stimulate new forms of project lending. Further afield, the Australian
and New Zealand markets operate with shorter-term bank debt but
investors who are active in those countries are willing to take the
refinancing risk due to the greater degree of stability in their financial
markets. In Canada there is a well established capital market funding
model and in the US many projects are financed using Public Activity
Bonds which are issued by infrastructure project companies with the
support of municipalities.

600

ce

In our overseas markets, we continue to focus on Continental Europe,
North America and the Asia Pacific region. We secured our first
investment in New Zealand, the Wiri prison project, and our overseas
projects under construction are making good progress, the most
significant being the New Royal Adelaide Hospital, which has a total capital
value of Aus $1.8 billion, and the Denver FasTracks rail project with a total
capital value of US $1.3 billion.

PORTFOLIO VALUE MOVEMENT
£ million

De

new depots and maintenance facilities. Commercial close was also
achieved on IEP Phase 2, a similarly sized project to replace rolling stock
on the East Coast main line. We also remain committed to the UK health
sector, where we are working towards financial close on the new Alder
Hey hospital and are bidding further opportunities such as Liverpool Royal
hospital and the Addenbrookes Forum in Cambridge.

Returns on investments in infrastructure are under pressure in all
geographic markets, and especially so in those markets where there is an
oversupply of construction capacity compared to opportunities. One of the
very concerning trends that we have detected during 2012 is that some
contractors are bidding at seemingly unsustainable margins in order to
maintain positive cash flow from new work intake. Those contractors who
are also equity investors are equally prepared to cut equity returns. We have
seen the effect of this before in the UK market, with contractors either failing
or having to re-focus their businesses completely because unsustainable
margins eventually caught up with them. At John Laing, we have to work
with supply chain partners who are competitive, but we will not support
business that is secured at unsustainable margins on long-term contracts.
We have, and always will place great emphasis on the deliverability of
projects – something that we would urge public sector clients to prioritise,
as the cheapest option is not necessarily in their long-term interest.
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These are indeed challenging times, but John Laing’s strategy of
diversifying geographically, working with strong local supply chain
partners and spreading its activities across a range of infrastructure
sectors has held it in good stead throughout the economic crisis. We have,
and will continue to, shift our emphasis from one geographic market to
another and, within each market, to focus on those categories of
infrastructure in which governments have a clear policy to attract private
sector investment. It is because of our strategies and experience that we
were able to deliver a record year for new investment commitment in 2012.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW
(continued)

BUSINESS MODEL As explained above, John Laing is an investor,

developer and operator of infrastructure projects either directly for public
sector clients, or in sectors such as renewable energy where the public
sector acts as a sponsor of projects through some form of subsidy or
regulation. We utilise both our balance sheet and our expertise to generate
returns. Increasingly, we are able to generate returns by deploying our
skills to manage assets for third party investors. Our activities are
focused on primary and secondary investments and, increasingly,
asset management:
Primary Investment

Secondary Investment

Asset Management

•

•

•

Provision of asset management
services to both the primary and
secondary investment portfolios and
also to projects in which JLIF is a
shareholder. Services cover: value
enhancement; project delivery during
the construction phase; technical input;
and managed services through MSAs

•

Fund management of JLIF through
JLCM, our subsidiary regulated by the
Financial Services Authority (FSA)

•

Facilities management through JLIS
on behalf of PPP projects as well as
directly for public sector clients

Activities involve sourcing, bidding for
and winning greenfield infrastructure
projects

➔

Portfolio Valuation

£556.0 million
➔

New Investment Committed

£146.1 million
➔

Cash Yield from Investments

£26.7 million
➔

Profit Before Tax

£65.6 million
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Activities involve holding operational
infrastructure investments, most of
which were originally delivered by the
primary investment team

The John Laing business model enables the Company, and investors
whose funds we manage, to generate returns from all phases of
infrastructure development and operation, or from only those phases in
which investors are interested. From our clients’ point of view, they know
that assets delivered through John Laing’s primary investment activities
and managed by John Laing or subsequently by JLCM, will benefit from
continuity of staff provided by the John Laing Group.
In 2012 we did not diverge from our core strengths but we allowed our
offering to evolve in line with market conditions. Recognising the change
in the UK Government’s focus for future investment, we increased our
resources in the areas of transport, waste and renewable energy, while
maintaining expertise in health but reducing our resources dedicated to
other forms of UK social infrastructure.
Towards the end of the year we decided to cease bidding new opportunities
using the Local Asset-Backed Vehicle (LABV) model successfully deployed
on the Croydon regeneration project (CCURV). We remain committed to
working with the London Borough of Croydon and Hastings Borough
Council to see through their programmes. However, other local authorities
have not proved to be as enlightened and the selection process has often
boiled down to a competition to provide the cheapest construction price –
not an approach which is attractive to John Laing as a potential investor.

On a more positive note, our entry into the renewable energy sector shows
great promise. In 2012 we committed £47.2 million to onshore wind-farm
and solar projects, net of project finance introduced on financial close. We
are targeting projects that have full planning consent but on which
construction is yet to commence. We are able to deploy our project
management skills in negotiating supply chain contracts and our project
financing skills to take advantage of leverage. As in the past, we “cut our
teeth” in this new sector by purchasing two fully operational assets from
which we could learn market dynamics without taking development risk.
Having done so, our focus for the future will be on projects yet to be
constructed, both in the UK and overseas.
In our overseas markets, we have not changed our core strategy,
continuing to focus on social and economic infrastructure where revenues
are substantially generated from availability of the asset, as opposed to
real toll projects with demand risk. In 2012 we won our first project in New
Zealand and we have recently decided to target hospital projects in Chile
as a future potential entry point to Latin America.

While JLIF is focused on acquiring fully operational secondary
infrastructure investments, we have also held discussions with potential
investment partners who are seeking to deploy significant funds in
greenfield or primary investment opportunities.
In a separate initiative, we sold 6% of our original 30% shareholding in the
IEP Phase 1 project to an institutional co-investor in January 2013, having
agreed terms during 2012.
RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS The profit before tax on continuing operations

for the year ended 31 December 2012 was £65.6 million (2011 – £29.8
million). This included a strong contribution from JLIS, our facilities
management business.
Within the reported profit before tax on continuing operations, profits on
realisation of five infrastructure investments in 2012 totalled £5.7 million,
on proceeds of £92.9 million (2011 – profit on realisation of 15
infrastructure investments of £20.7 million, on proceeds of £132.2 million).
In addition, we realised proceeds of £44.5 million net of costs on the sale
of shares in JLIF (2011 – nil) on which we earned a profit of £1.8 million
over original price paid. As at 31 December 2012, we held a shareholding
of 6.7% in JLIF with a market value of £37.2 million (2011 – an 18.2%
shareholding in JLIF with a market value of £83.3 million).
John Laing paid dividends for the year amounting to £0.3 million (2011 –
£0.3 million). Interim dividends of £0.15 million each were paid on 29 June
2012 and 13 December 2012. No final dividend is proposed.
John Laing Pension Fund (JLPF), a defined benefit scheme which the
Company has operated over many decades, was closed to future accrual
with effect from 31 March 2011. The accounting deficit as at 31 December
2012 under IAS 19 was £182.6 million (2011 – £154.2 million). The
Company has agreed a deficit repair schedule with the JLPF Trustee,
based on the last triennial actuarial valuation of the fund as at 31 March
2010. The next triennial valuation is due as at 31 March 2013.
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE As at 31 December 2012,

the portfolio of infrastructure investments comprised 45 projects,
excluding the shareholding in JLIF (2011 – 43 projects). Based on the
Directors’ valuation methodology, which is explained on page 21, the year
end value, including the shareholding in JLIF, was £556.0 million
(2011 – £540.9 million). During 2012, we invested cash of £115.6 million
(2011 – £53.7 million).

The weighted average discount rate used in the portfolio valuation for 2012
was 8.6% (2011 – 8.8%).
The cash yield from the secondary investment portfolio in 2012 was
£26.7 million (2011 – £25.2 million), a yield of 7.8% (2011 – 6.7%). This
represents cash receipts in the form of dividends, interest and loan
repayments.
JLIF had a market capitalisation of £553.6 million at 31 December 2012
(2011 – 458.0 million).
STAFF AND THE BOARD We have kept very tight control over the number

of staff engaged in the PPP business. Excluding those engaged in facilities
management, the average number of staff during 2012 was maintained at
2011 levels reflecting an increase in overseas staff and a reduction in UK
staff. At the end of 2012 we announced 16 potential redundancies as a
result of our decision to cease bidding new LABV opportunities and the
need to manage our central costs. These redundancies took place early
in 2013.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The development of JLCM is a key link in our value chain. JLIF, which is
listed on the London Stock Exchange, has now been trading for over two
years and has proved to be very attractive to investors looking for robust
dividend yield under volatile market conditions.

The portfolio valuation represents the Directors’ assessment of the fair
value of investments in projects on the basis that each asset is held to
maturity, other than shares in JLIF which are held at market value. After
adjusting the opening portfolio valuation to take account of investment
realisation, new cash investments and cash yield, the 2012 valuation
reflected underlying growth on the rebased position of 13.2% (2011 – 20%).
This was despite the full write-down of our investment in the A1 Germany
road project, following a partial provision last year.

In JLIS, our facilities management business, the average number of staff
rose to 1,002 (2011 – 922) due to increased service provision on outsourced
contracts for local authorities in the UK.
There were no changes to the Board during 2012. However, Roger Miller
resigned as Company Secretary and he has been replaced by Carolyn
Cattermole, who has also taken up a position on the Executive Committee.
Our thanks must go to Roger for 11 years of loyal service, and our best
wishes to Carolyn for a successful career with John Laing.
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank all our staff for their
contributions to the success of the business in 2012.
PROSPECTS As I have reported, John Laing has maintained a flexible
approach to changing and varied market conditions. This was reflected in
good performance during 2012. The debt financing markets remain our
biggest challenge but we have an impressive depth of skills in this area
and I am confident that John Laing will be at the leading edge of new
forms of project finance as they emerge. The nature of our business
opportunity in the UK has changed – but so have we – and we remain
focused on those significant opportunities that will be available to us in
our domestic market. Overseas, some markets are relatively buoyant,
such as Asia Pacific, while others have great potential, such as the US.
We will remain active in the markets that offer us the greatest potential in
terms of deal flow and risk adjusted returns.

All our markets are becoming more competitive but I firmly believe that
John Laing is well equipped to remain a leading player within its chosen
markets and to continue to grow.

Adrian Ewer
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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PRIMARY INVESTMENT

>

Oldham Social Housing

John Laing’s primary investment
activities involve sourcing,
bidding for and winning greenfield
infrastructure projects. These
activities are the responsibility of
the Business Development team
which, during 2012, successfully
reached financial close on
seven investments, securing
commitments of £146.1 million.
This included four investments
in UK renewable energy projects,
following the Group’s entry into
this sector last year.
The primary investment portfolio comprises
the Group’s shareholdings in 15 PPP projects
which have recently reached financial close
and/or are in the construction phase, as well as
five renewable energy projects. The Directors’
valuation of the Group’s primary investment
portfolio, including its investments in renewable
energy projects, was £215.2 million at
31 December 2012 (2011 – £162.8 million).
Asset management services in respect of the
primary investment portfolio are delivered by
John Laing’s asset management team.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
➔

Reached financial close on the IEP rail project in the UK, a high profile project requiring
total financing of £2.4 billion including a record investment commitment by John Laing

➔

Renewable energy – achieved financial close on four investments in 2012, including the
Group’s first UK solar projects and further UK onshore wind-farm opportunities, and
continued to strengthen the platform for future growth in this fast-growing sector

➔

Awarded preferred bidder status and reached financial close on the Wiri Prison project
in New Zealand, the Group’s first investment in that country, which helped to strengthen
the Group’s presence in the Asia Pacific market

➔

Reached financial close on Lambeth Social Housing, a further UK social housing
project, following additional client value-for-money tests and despite more challenging
conditions for project financing

➔

Awarded preferred bidder status on the Alder Hey hospital project in the UK, adding to
the Group’s long history of achievements in this sector

“

For more than 30 years, we have been
associated with bidding for and winning some
of the most challenging and innovative projects
in the infrastructure sector.We continue to build
on that heritage, using our broad skills,
experience, and independence from the supply
chain to help meet clients’ needs in our
traditional sectors as well as in new areas.
Derek Potts
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
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”

The Business Development team is responsible for all the Group’s bid
development activities both in the UK and internationally. This includes
traditional PPP projects as well as renewable energy investments and
strategic partnership structures in the UK health sector. We take
responsibility for market research, project selection, bid co-ordination,
and finalisation of negotiations with public sector clients and the supply
chain through to financial close. Activities are focused on Europe, North
America and Asia Pacific. John Laing works with strong delivery partners
in each market. For instance, in the UK, the Group is currently working
with leading contractors and service providers including Bombardier,
Costain, FCC, Hitachi, Interserve, Laing O’Rourke, Shanks, Skanska, Sir
Robert McAlpine, Viridor and Wates. This approach is replicated overseas
in each region.
Activities are also focused on a wide variety of sectors, including all the
main social infrastructure areas such as healthcare, education, police and
criminal justice, government and local authority accommodation, social
housing and defence, as well as transportation (roads, street lighting,
highways maintenance and rail), and environmental projects (waste
management and renewable energy).
During 2012, we successfully closed seven investments (2011: five),
securing total commitments of £146.1 million (2011: £60.6 million),
despite challenging global economic and financing conditions. These
included the IEP rail project in the UK, Wiri Prison in New Zealand, the
Lambeth Social Housing regeneration project in the UK, and four
renewable energy investments in the UK (two solar projects and two
onshore wind-farm projects). The financial close of IEP was a significant
achievement in the current banking environment, and reflected
the concerted efforts and strong support of all stakeholders including
John Laing.

BUSINESS REVIEW

➔ IEP PHASE 1: In July 2012, John Laing and Hitachi
achieved financial close on the first phase of the IEP
project to deliver a new fleet of intercity trains,
maintenance facilities and ongoing services for the
Great Western franchise. The largest PPP in UK
history, the project raised £2.4 billion of funding and
was recently awarded European PPP deal of the year.

New project wins (i.e. preferred bidder appointments or contractually
committed positions) totalled seven (2011: four), with future investment
potential amounting to £122.5 million (2011: £37.0 million). In addition to
Wiri Prison and the four renewable energy opportunities, the Alder Hey
hospital project was secured in early 2012, and the second phase of IEP
also reached commercial close in July (simultaneously with financial close
of the first phase).
We continued to consolidate our international reach, and won and closed
our first investment in New Zealand, part of the Group’s strong pipeline
of bids with local partners in the Asia Pacific region. In North America and
Continental Europe, John Laing’s bidding activities continued, although
public expenditure constraints in certain markets moderated the flow of
opportunities. In the UK, sectors such as rail and waste continued to
provide good (though few in number) opportunities during 2012.
Due to concerns about future scale and lack of traction gained by the LABV
model, and the degree of fit with John Laing, a decision was made in
December 2012 to cease bidding for new opportunities of this type.
Unfortunately, this resulted in a number of roles becoming redundant. The
Group remains totally committed to delivering all schemes associated with
its existing LABV projects for the London Borough of Croydon and for
Hastings Borough Council. This decision does not affect the Group’s
commitment and appetite towards PPP opportunities in other markets
and sectors.
In 2012, the Group continued to implement its strategy in the renewable
energy sector. We financially closed four investments and secured an
additional opportunity for an onshore wind-farm project in Sweden. The
sector remains an important focus for the Group, and offers a valuable
diversification away from government-funded capital procurement in the
current economic climate.
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PRIMARY INVESTMENT
(continued)

➔ WIND FARMS: Financial close was achieved on
two wind farm projects during 2012. Bilsthorpe,
a 10.25MW onshore wind-farm project in
Nottinghamshire, was closed in August 2012 and
Wear Point, a 8.2MW onshore wind-farm project in
Pembrokeshire, was closed in December 2012. These
projects, currently under construction, represent the
first investments in onshore wind-farms for John Laing.

FINANCIAL MARKETS Global financial markets continued to be

challenging during 2012. The ongoing banking difficulties in the Eurozone,
combined with the longer-term implications of the Basle III regulatory
changes, continued to impact the availability and cost of project debt, and
to shorten the term over which many banks are prepared to provide project
finance. In the UK, the Government indicated as part of PF2 that it would
try to involve institutional funding to a much greater extent, particularly
from pension funds, but this has not yet been realised. The Netherlands
government recently successfully trialled new sources of institutional
debt, demonstrating that other sources of long-term debt could emerge
in Europe. Markets such as Australia, Canada and the US have already
evolved financing structures which reflect these changes. John Laing’s
international breadth and diversification should allow the Group to sustain
large and growing levels of investment, despite these difficulties and
changes in the financial markets.
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UNITED KINGDOM The UK market for PPP in 2012 continues to be active
in the rail sector (specifically rail rolling stock, such as the IEP project),
and a reasonable pipeline also exists for waste management projects.
However, procurement of new social infrastructure remains at low levels,
reflecting the UK Government’s focus on economic infrastructure and also
the hiatus during the recent review of PFI. The new schools programme
in England will be the first opportunity for the new PF2 framework to be
properly trialled. In the renewable energy sector, the pipeline remains
strong, supported by Government policies to promote low carbon
initiatives, and this is expected to offer good investment opportunities for
the Group over the next few years. Overall, the Group’s activities in the UK
market are expected to deliver a significant proportion of its overall
volumes in the next couple of years, despite the subdued deal flow in
traditional social infrastructure.

BUSINESS REVIEW

➔ LAMBETH SOCIAL HOUSING: The Lambeth Social
Housing project reached financial close in May 2012.
The project involves the construction of 305 new
Council homes, 146 affordable (shared ownership)
homes, 357 new homes for sale with 10%
accommodating full wheelchair access and
refurbishment of 172 existing homes.

INTERNATIONAL PPP MARKETS The Group’s main growth potential in both

the medium and long-term continues to be in international markets. In
some major economies, levels of public sector investment are limited due
to austerity constraints, but for John Laing, this is mitigated by the
international spread of markets in which we operate.
In the US, the Group continues to engage in what has the potential to be
a very substantial PPP market. In Canada, programmes for healthcare
schemes and transportation projects are in the pipeline.
In Continental Europe, activity continues at a consistent level in selected
countries such as the Netherlands, France and Belgium. John Laing is
not currently pursuing opportunities in those countries hardest hit by the
Eurozone’s economic difficulties.
The Asia Pacific region continues to offer very significant opportunities
and the Group’s current bidding activities are focused on Australia and
New Zealand, where PPP markets remain strong.
In addition to the above, the Group is exploring other potential new
markets, and during 2012 investigated opportunities in Latin America. In
the coming year, these opportunities will be progressed further.

Derek Potts
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
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SECONDARY INVESTMENT

>

MoD Corsham, UK

Our secondary investment
activities involve ownership
of a substantial portfolio of
investments in operational
infrastructure projects.

The majority of our investments in operational infrastructure projects were
originally primary investments for John Laing but some investments have
been acquired when the underlying assets were already at the operational
stage. Asset management services in respect of the portfolio are delivered
by John Laing’s asset management team.
The secondary investment portfolio comprises the Group’s shareholdings
in 25 projects at the operational stage valued at £340.8 million at
31 December 2012 (2011 – £378.0 million). Cash yield from investments,
including those received from projects prior to disposal, of £26.7 million
(2011 – £25.2 million) was above target, re-emphasising the robust nature
of the projects and the benefit of continued pro-active management.
INVESTMENT REALISATIONS During the year, investments in five projects

– Tunbridge Wells Hospital, Newcastle Hospitals, Roseberry Park
Hospital, Forth Valley Royal Hospital and Kromhout Barracks – were sold
to JLIF for total proceeds of £92.9 million.
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(Image property of Quist and Wintermans Architects.)

PROJECTS BECOMING OPERATIONAL During 2012 the following projects
became part of the secondary investment portfolio as they moved into the
operational stage:

UK
•

North Staffordshire Hospital – handover of phase five took place as
scheduled in June 2012. This substantially completed the main
construction works

•

Barnsley Building Schools for the Future (BSF) – the final phase

of operations successfully commenced in September 2012 with
the handover of Horizon Community College, Netherwood and Holy
Trinity Schools
•

MoD Corsham – refurbishment works were completed in late 2012

•

Manchester Waste VL Co – the majority of construction and plant
installation at the numerous sites in Greater Manchester is now
complete and waste processing took place throughout 2012

CONTINENTAL EUROPE
•

Kromhout Barracks, the Netherlands – phase two was completed and

handed over in January 2012
•

A1 Motorway, Germany – construction was completed in October 2012,

two and a half months ahead of schedule

NORTH AMERICA
•

Kelowna and Vernon Hospitals, Canada – Christie Clark, Premier of

British Columbia, officially opened the Centennial Building in Kelowna
on 25 May 2012

ASIA PACIFIC
•

NH3 Road, India – the Group’s PPP project in India completed
construction in 2012; we are taking advantage of an arrangement
agreed at financial close to sell our shareholding to our co-investors
in the first half of 2013

BUSINESS REVIEW

➔ A15 NETHERLANDS: Construction works for the
widening of a 27 km stretch of the A15 south of
Rotterdam, the Netherlands, are ongoing. The works
include the construction of a new Botlek Bridge.

KEY ISSUES Manchester Waste VL Co. reached financial close in April

2009 and is in the latter stages of construction: facilities have been
completed on 40 out of 42 waste processing sites in the Greater
Manchester area. As a result of commissioning delays on three
Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT) plants, milestones were exceeded
on contractors’ liquidated damages in October and November 2012. These
have had an adverse impact on certain covenants in the underlying credit
agreements, and therefore John Laing has worked closely with Viridor, its
joint venture partner, and Costain, the lead construction contractor to
resolve the difficulties. This culminated in the three parties entering into
agreements in December 2012 which were subsequently endorsed by the
project lenders and the Greater Manchester Waste Authority. One of the
MBTs has since been commissioned and action is underway to resolve the
remaining issues on the other two. During 2013, John Laing will also be
monitoring closely the construction programme for the associated
Combined Heat and Power (CHP) plant at Runcorn (Manchester Waste
TPS Co.), which is due to be commissioned later in the year but could be
delayed. There are cross guarantees between the two projects. Lenders
to both projects are being kept fully informed of developments and are
supportive. The combined valuation of the two Manchester Waste
investments was £74.0 million at 31 December 2012 (2011 – £67.7 million),
within the total portfolio valuation of £556.0 million.
The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s aggregate investment in
the Manchester Waste project is fairly valued as at 31 December 2012,
reflecting the full involvement of equity holders as well as ongoing
discussions with lenders. In the discount rate used to determine the fair
value of the Group’s investments, a significant risk premium has been
retained to reflect the risks associated with the project.
With regard to the A1 Motorway in Germany, forecast traffic volumes are
below those originally estimated at financial close in 2008. As a result, the
project company negotiated revised agreements with the German
transport authority and project lenders to reflect the changed
circumstances. These agreements were approved by project lenders in
November 2012. However, recognising the lower forecast traffic volumes,
the value of John Laing’s 42.5% shareholding in the project has been
written down to zero resulting in a fair value reduction of £34.1 million.
The future value of the investment will depend on actual traffic volumes
in 2013 and beyond.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT

>

Severn River Crossing

Asset management services are
provided to both John Laing’s
primary and secondary investment
portfolios and, in addition, in
respect of JLIF’s investments
through JLCM. These services
cover: managing project delivery
during the construction phase;
provision of technical input; and the
delivery of
a number of services through MSAs.
A further significant area of activity
is the identification and
implementation of operational
improvements to and realisation
of value in both the Group’s and
JLIF’s investment portfolios.
Asset management also includes
facilities management through JLIS.
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HIGHLIGHTS
➔

The widening of a 72.5km stretch of the A1 Motorway in
Germany completed two and a half months early, with a total
capital expenditure of more than €400 million

➔

Construction of the third and final phase of the £300 million
Barnsley BSF programme was completed on time

➔

Exceeded £100 million of value enhancements across the
Group’s investment portfolio since 2007

“

During 2012 we have adapted to manage the
challenges in our new markets in renewable energy
and waste, using the skills developed from managing
our existing infrastructure projects.
Chris Waples
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
OPERATIONS

”

Asset management services to projects are the responsibility of
John Laing’s Operations team. The professionals in this team come from
a variety of disciplines ranging from financial, accounting, engineering,
technical, compliance, administrative, legal and managerial. Many staff
have been involved with PPP markets since their inception in the UK in
the 1990s. This diversity enables the team to provide a considerable
breadth and depth of knowledge and experience. Coupled with the other
resources of the Group, the team is able to offer a complete and
comprehensive service to its clients.
John Laing’s remit is at all times to enhance project value, whether
through: pro-active oversight of contractors during the construction
phase; mobilisation and management services at the start of operations;
identification and implementation of operational efficiencies; or planning
and management of additional capital expenditure (lifecycle expenditure)
required over the asset life.
From its offices in Sydney, Melbourne, Toronto, Vancouver and Amsterdam
as well as the Group’s London headquarters, John Laing provides asset
management services in respect of primary and secondary investments
in Australia, New Zealand, Canada, Germany, Hungary, the Netherlands,
Poland, the United States and the UK.
ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2012 Recognising the cost pressures on much of our
public client base, which has long term PPP contractual arrangements,
we have responded positively through enhancing risk management and
exploring ways of improving value for money as well as identifying other
efficiencies across the portfolio.

A considerable number of our UK projects, both roads and
accommodation, are now well into their operational period. Drawing on
our technical services resources, we have concentrated on the
management and procurement of major maintenance and lifecycle
expenditure for these projects. In the renewable energy sector,
construction is underway on two onshore wind-farm and three solar park
sites. We also continue to devote significant management resources to
our projects in the waste sector.

BUSINESS REVIEW

➔ NEW ROYAL ADELAIDE HOSPITAL: The New Royal
Adelaide Hospital will be South Australia’s flagship
public hospital and will be the cornerstone of the
reformed state health system. Construction started
in September 2011 and when finished the hospital
will provide 800 patient beds.

Outside the UK, following financial close in September 2012, the Wiri
prison project in New Zealand is in the early stages of construction. Our
three other construction projects overseas are: The New Royal Adelaide
Hospital in Australia; the widening of the A15 near Rotterdam in the
Netherlands; and the Denver FasTracks lightrail project in Colorado in the
US. The first two projects are due to be completed in 2015, while the
Denver FasTracks project should complete in 2016.
Substantial completion on our third hospital project in British Columbia,
Kelowna and Vernon Hospitals, occurred in January 2012, seven months
ahead of programme. In Continental Europe, the A1 Motorway in Germany
was successfully completed in October 2012, two and a half months ahead
of schedule, while in the Netherlands, Kromhout Barracks Phase II
completed construction on programme. Following a successful
concession, our road project in Finland, the E4 Nelostie, was handed back
to the public sector client. This is the first Group project to reach the end
of its concession.
LOOKING FORWARD TO 2013 There is an increasing level of activity in the

renewable energy and environmental sectors, not only in the UK but in our
overseas markets. We are currently managing the construction of two
onshore wind-farm and three solar park sites, all in the UK. In the waste
sector, we are involved in waste recycling and energy generation projects
in East London and in Dumfries and Galloway with our partners Shanks.
At the UK’s largest waste recycling project in Greater Manchester, waste
will be processed to provide recycled products, which will feed the
Runcorn CHP plant and will provide heat to Ineos Chlor and electricity to
the National Grid. These are new and innovative sectors and our staff are
meeting the new operational challenges they bring in addition to helping
public bodies to meet their environmental and sustainability targets.
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ASSET MANAGEMENT
(continued)

➔ BARNSLEY BSF: The last three schools were
successfully handed over before the start of the
Autumn Term in 2012. This concluded the
construction of 11 secondary schools and full
operational service provision by JLIS commenced.

MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENTS John Laing provides services
under management services agreements (MSAs) to project companies in
which John Laing, JLIF and JLPF are stakeholders. A number of these
projects have other third party investors, including financial institutions
and contractors. As at December 2012, there were 31 MSAs with John
Laing projects and a further 29 MSAs with JLIF projects.

Each MSA typically covers a comprehensive asset management service
including: construction and project management; administration;
accounting and financial services; company secretarial services; dispute
resolution and management; and risk and compliance management. Staff
who deliver these services are located at the projects themselves and at
our network of overseas offices, in both cases supported by central staff
in London.
John Laing continued to deliver services under MSAs to projects following
their divestment to JLIF, providing continuity to both the project company
and to key stakeholders.
FUND MANAGEMENT John Laing Capital Management Limited (JLCM) is

a wholly-owned subsidiary of John Laing plc, authorised and regulated in
the UK by the FSA. It acts as discretionary investment manager of JLIF’s
investments within strategic guidelines agreed with JLIF’s directors. The
appointment started in October 2010.
Under the various investment agreements between JLCM and JLIF, JLCM
is entitled to a fee of 1.1% per annum on JLIF’s portfolio up to a value
of £500 million. For balances above £500 million, the fee percentage
reduces on a sliding scale. JLCM is also entitled to an asset origination
fee of 0.75% on acquisitions made by JLIF other than from the Group.
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To the extent that the Group may decide to dispose of investments in PPP
projects, JLIF has a right of first offer in respect of those investments
which satisfy its investment policies.
JLCM has a dedicated team and is also supported, through inter-company
agreements, by specialist functions within the Group. In 2012, the second
full year since JLIF was launched, JLCM made a strong contribution to
the Group supplemented by JLIF’s further acquisitions from the Group
together with its £31.7 million of acquisitions from third parties.

BUSINESS REVIEW

➔ NORTH STAFFORDSHIRE HOSPITAL: The final phase
of the new 730-bed acute hospital was handed over
to the NHS Trust in June 2012 concluding the
construction of this £300m facility.

Through the successful launch of JLIF in November 2010 and
the experience gained by JLCM as manager of its investments to date,
John Laing has demonstrated that it has the skill and core competencies
to promote, develop and grow new funds.

JOHN LAING INTEGRATED SERVICES (JLIS)
JLIS provides facilities management services to a number of PPP project
companies as well as directly to public sector clients across a range of
sectors, including local government, education, police, fire and rescue,
health and rail. The business delivered another strong result during 2012,
well ahead of budget.
Service delivery, consolidation and efficiency optimisation are key
components of the JLIS product offering. Our business development
activity is focused on the local authority outsourcing market.
The business is developing its strategic partnering capacity in local
government and is bidding a number of projects now in procurement.
Integration of facilities and investment to support new models are a key
part of this focus, harnessing all elements of the company’s expertise in
these areas.
During 2012, the last three of the eleven schools that form part of the
Barnsley BSF programme were mobilised. These provide school places
for over 14,000 pupils. Against the background of continued pressure on
public sector funding, JLIS has helped a number of its clients to identify
and deliver efficiencies and budget savings. Through the introduction
of carbon reduction initiatives across a number of client sites, a further
£1.0 million has been saved in the consumption of energy and over
£2.5 million of energy-related and capital improvement and lifecycle
projects have been completed.

JLIS remains the only private sector organisation in the UK to manage
library services. Over the last 12 months we have undertaken significant
improvements to the London Borough of Hounslow’s libraries, delivering
over £750,000 of efficiency savings. We are actively bidding on new
contracts to deliver similar services and we also have a significant pipeline
of other bids at the shortlist stage.
THE LONDON BOROUGH OF HOUNSLOW

Working in partnership with the council, JLIS has implemented a service
transformation programme that has significantly improved the customer
experience through the delivery of a library refurbishment programme,
improved IT provision and increased frontline capacity. Over £1.25 million
of savings have already been achieved for the client.
METROPOLITAN POLICE

In support of the Metropolitan Police’s Climate Change Action Strategy for
the reduction of energy and carbon emissions, JLIS has implemented a
comprehensive carbon reduction programme that has delivered over
£150,000 of savings and a greater than 10% reduction in greenhouse
gas emissions.
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PORTFOLIO VALUATION

➔ MANCHESTER WASTE: Following the award of one
of the UK’s largest waste PPP contracts in 2009,
construction of the CHP plant in Runcorn continued
throughout 2012.

In 2012, the underlying growth in
the value of the Group’s portfolio
of project investments (including
the Group’s shareholding in JLIF)
was £64.9 million, representing
growth of 13.2%. This figure
is quoted after adjusting for
acquisitions, realisations, new
investment, cash yields and the
movement in discount and
exchange rates to demonstrate
growth on portfolio value over
that at 31 December 2011.

Of this, growth of approximately 9% represents the increase that would
be expected as a result of the unwinding of discount rates, i.e. cash flows
being discounted for one year less. In the same period, after adjusting for
realisations and distributions, growth in the value of our shareholding in
JLIF was £2.6 million, representing growth of 7.5%. The £7.8 million
growth attributable to the investments realised represents enhancement
in their value since 31 December 2011 and the unwinding of discount rates
prior to sale; proceeds were in excess of the portfolio valuation of
these investments.
Compared to the opening valuation of £540.9 million, the portfolio value
increased by a net £15.1 million to £556.0 million, primarily as a result of
new investment commitments, cash invested and growth in asset value,
offset by the realisation of investments and of shares in JLIF, cash yield
and the full write down of the investment in the A1 Germany project.
Retained
£ million

Portfolio valuation at
1 January 2012
– Cash invested
– Cash yield
– Movement in risk free rate
– Market adjustment premium
– Movement in exchange rates
Rebased value
Proceeds of investment
realisation
Growth on rebased value
Portfolio valuation at
31 December 2012

JLIF
Disposed Shareholding
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

382.5
100.8
(18.2)
17.5
(15.1)
(3.2)

75.1
14.8
(4.3)
–
–
(0.5)

83.3
–
(4.2)
–
–
–

540.9
115.6
(26.7)
17.5
(15.1)
(3.7)

464.3

85.1

79.1

628.5

(92.9)
7.8

(44.5)
2.6

(137.4)
64.9

0.0

37.2

556.0

–
54.5
518.8

The Group’s portfolio of project investments is made up of primary and
secondary investments. The primary investment portfolio includes PPP
projects which have recently reached financial close and/or are in the
construction phase, as well as renewable energy projects. Secondary
assets are operational projects, most of which were originally primary
investments for John Laing. The split between primary and secondary
investments is shown in the table below:
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VALUE BY TIME REMAINING ON CONCESSION
£ million
37.2 (7%)
28.8 (5%)

VALUE BY SECTOR
£ million
37.2 (7%)

83.3 (15%)

83.3 (15%)

33.2 (6%)

102.8 (17%)

145.2 (26%)
109.7 (20%)

87.4 (16%)

212.5 (38%)

267.5 (49%)

165.8 (31%)

237.2 (44%)

119.7 (22%)

99.8 (19%)
Dec 12

JLIF
Less than 10 years
10 to 20 years
20 to 30 years
Greater than 30 years

182.1 (34%)

161.1 (29%)

Dec 12

Dec 11

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Primary investments
Secondary investments

215.2
340.8

162.9
378.0

Total

556.0

540.9

METHODOLOGY A valuation of the John Laing portfolio is prepared on a

consistent, principally discounted cash flow basis every six months, at
30 June and 31 December. The purpose of this exercise is to determine
the fair value of the portfolio using forecast cash flows and on the basis
that assets are held until maturity of the relevant concession.
The methodology uses discount rates related to government bond rates.
Risk premia are added to the relevant long-term gilt or government bond
rate for each project. These discount rates are applied to cash flows which
are post project tax but pre shareholder taxes.
The risk premia used represent the Directors’ assessment of the price of
risk to arrive at a fair value for the project cash flows, and vary according
to the distribution of cash flows between the construction, ramp-up and
operational phases of projects.
For the valuation at 31 December 2012, the weighted average discount
rate was 8.6% (2011 – 8.8%). The shareholding in JLIF was valued at its
closing market price on 31 December 2012 of 107.9p per share. JLIF’s
market capitalisation grew to £553.6 million at 31 December 2012
(2011 – £458.0 million).
The cash flows valued are those that are forecast to be distributable to
John Laing, derived from detailed project financial models approved and
updated at project company level, in line with operational experience and
the requirements of project debt providers.

Dec 11

The largest sector within the portfolio is the transport sector which represents
38% of the portfolio. Accommodation assets make up 29% of the portfolio with
projects in the renewable energy, environment and utilities sector comprising
26%. The investment in JLIF includes projects across more than one sector.

BUSINESS REVIEW

John Laing benefits from holding investments in projects with long-term
concessions and renewable energy assets with long-term useful economic lives.
As demonstrated in the table above, 22% of the portfolio by value has a greater
than 30-year unexpired concession term or useful economic life remaining, 49%
has 20 to 30 years remaining and a further 17% has 10 to 20 years remaining.
The investment in JLIF, which represents 7% of the portfolio, is shown separately
since the underlying projects held by JLIF have a range of concession lengths.

JLIF
Renewable energy,
Environment & Utilities
Transport
Accommodation

CHANGES IN VALUATION The absolute increase in the portfolio valuation
is attributable to new investment commitments and growth in the
portfolio, offset by the net effect of realisations. John Laing completed the
realisation of five investments during 2012, for proceeds of £92.9 million.
In addition the Company divested shares in JLIF for £44.5 million.

Seven projects reached financial close during 2012. This included three
PPP projects and four investments in the renewable energy sector. Equity
and loan note subscriptions of £115.6 million were injected into projects
in the portfolio as they progressed through, or completed, construction.
Cash yield during 2012 totalled £26.7 million.
Since 2008 a long-run average approach has been taken to determine the
underlying government bond rates used to arrive at appropriate discount
rates. For 2012 the long-run average was rolled forward to cover the five
years to 31 December 2012.
In 2012, the portfolio benefited from a wide range of project-specific value
enhancements and further reductions in UK corporation tax rates, which
have been factored into forecast cashflows.
IMPACT OF ECONOMIC INDICATORS During the year, higher than previously
forecast inflation had a positive impact on the majority of forecast project
cashflows within the portfolio. Deposit rates during 2012 on cash balances
were low but this had been anticipated in the forecasts made in 2011 for a
majority of projects. Deposit rates are anticipated to remain at low levels in
the short-run and this has been reflected in project forecasts.

Overseas assets are investments in foreign currency (including Australian,
Canadian, New Zealand US Dollars and Euro). Foreign exchange
movements relative to Sterling had a negative impact on the portfolio
valuation of retained projects of around £3.7 million.
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PORTFOLIO VALUATION

VALUE BY REVENUE TYPE
£ million
37.2 (7%)

(continued)

83.3 (15%)
119.8 (21%)
102.3 (19%)

26.7 (5%)

29.1 (6%)

372.3 (67%)

326.2 (60%)
JLIF
Volume
Shadow Toll
Availability
Dec 12

Dec 11

Availability-based assets continue to make up the majority of the
portfolio value, representing 67% of the portfolio. Shadow toll-based
assets make up 5% of the portfolio and volume-based assets 21%. The
projects held by JLIF comprise investments with primarily availabilitybased revenue.

DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY The weighted average discount rate used at

31 December 2012 was 8.6% (2011 – 8.8%). The table below shows the
sensitivity of changes in this rate of up to plus or minus 3.0%.

Discount Rate Adjustment

3.0%
2.0%
1.0%
0.0%
-1.0%
-2.0%
-3.0%

Portfolio
Valuation
£ million

410.2
451.1
499.2
556.0
623.5
704.5
802.1

Difference in
Valuation
£ million

(145.8)
(104.9)
(56.8)
–
67.5
148.5
246.1

PROJECT PHASE ANALYSIS No value is attributed to a project at the
preferred bidder stage. Once financial close is reached an initial value is
calculated which steps up when the construction phase is complete to
recognise the reduced risk profile. The first two years of operation
comprise the ramp-up stage after which the project typically moves into
the yield stage for the rest of its life prior to maturity.
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A15 motorway, Netherlands

The profile of the portfolio by phase is shown below:
VALUE CREATION
As at 31 December 2012
7

7

TIME

Concession End

Value of equity

Sub debt injection

Financial Close

Preferred Bidder

VALUE

Typically 25-30 years

Cash Distributions

Commercial Close, 2

Construction, 17

Ramp up, 6

Svartvallsberget Wind Farm
Hastings Property
Development

Bilsthorpe Wind Farm
Branden Solar Parks
Croydon – BWH
Denver FasTracks
IEP (Phase 1)
Kirklees Housing
Lambeth Housing
Manchester Waste TPS Co
Manchester Waste VL Co
Oldham Housing
Royal Adelaide Hospital
Wear Point Wind Farm
Wiri Prison
A15 Netherlands
Croydon and Lewisham SL
Groningen Tax Office
Surrey SL

A1 Germany
Barnsley BSF
Corsham MoD
Kelowna and Vernon
Hospital
NH3 India
North Staffs Hospital

Yield, 17
Amber Solar Parks
Aylesbury Vale Parkway
A1 Poland
A55
Brisbane Airlink
British Transport Police
City Greenwich Lewisham
Rail
Cleveland Firearms
Coleshill Parkway

County Route A130
Croydon – Davis House
Dumfries and Galloway
Waste
East London Waste
Kinnegar
Metropolitan Police SEL
M6 Hungary
North Birmingham MHT

Maturity, 3
Red Dragon – DARA
Severn River Crossing
E4 Nelostie

Total of 43 financially closed projects +
2 commercially closed projects

Pre-Financial Close
Construction
Part Operational
Fully Operational

Of the total portfolio by value, 36% is in the construction phase with the remaining 64% split across the ramp-up period (23%), yielding
assets (34%), assets close to maturity (<1%) and JLIF (7%).
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MOD Corsham

Additional information on the Group’s financial performance can be found elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts as indicated below:
Topic

Additional Information

Group trading performance

See page 50 for further details on the Group’s trading performance.

Group cash flow performance

More detailed analysis of the movements in net cash is shown on
page 54 and in note 26.

Directors’ portfolio valuation

The basis of valuation is set out on pages 20 to 23.

Principal risks

The Financial Review largely focuses on Treasury-related risks.
A broader description of the Group’s principal risks is included on
pages 43 to 47.
YEAR UNDER REVIEW The principal matters affecting the financial

performance, financial position and cash flows of the Group in 2012 were:
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•

Total investment commitments of £146.1 million on seven projects
(2011 – five projects with investment commitments of £60.6 million)

•

Cash investment of £115.6 million into existing projects during and at
the end of their construction phase (2011 – £53.7 million)

•

Realisation of investments in five projects to JLIF for total proceeds
of £92.9 million, resulting in a profit under IFRS of £5.7 million and a
profit of £47.3 million versus original cost. In 2011, there were
realisation of investments in 12 projects, resulting in total proceeds of
£98.1 million and a profit under IFRS of £19.1 million

•

Disposal of 42.3 million JLIF shares for £44.5 million. At 31 December
2012, the Group held a 6.7% shareholding in JLIF

•

The combined deficit of the Group’s defined benefit pension (under IAS
19) and post-retirement medical schemes at 31 December 2012
increased to £189.8 million (2011 – £161.0 million), due to the effect of
lower discount rates partly offset by cash contributions to JLPF of £24.3
million together with lower inflation expectations. The contributions
made were in line with the agreed schedule of contributions

PRO-FORMA REVENUE 2012
Total: £815.3 million

PRO-FORMA REVENUE 2011
Total: £718.1 million

Management services
£40.8m

Renewable energy,
environment and utilities
£136.2m

Renewable energy,
environment and utilities
£149.6m

Management services
£17.4m

Accommodation
£387.0m

Accommodation
£381.6m
Transport
£182.9m

Transport
£237.9m

BUSINESS REVIEW

BASIS OF PREPARATION The Group’s accounts are prepared under IFRS. At 31 December 2012, the Group held investments in 45 project companies, of

which 14 were subsidiaries and consolidated in these accounts. The balance of 31 project companies were joint ventures or associates, which together with
the Group’s shareholding in JLIF, were accounted for at fair value in accordance with IAS39, with changes to the fair value recognised in profit and loss.
Project companies in which the Group invests (including subsidiaries) are described as “non-recourse”, i.e. providers of debt to such project companies
do not have recourse to those John Laing companies which are investors in such projects. Other John Laing subsidiaries, including operating companies
such as JLIS and/or companies in which corporate borrowings and cash balances reside, are described as “recourse”. Certain financial information is
therefore presented in the Financial Review and the notes to the Group financial statements broken down between recourse and non-recourse companies.
GROUP INCOME STATEMENT The Group Income Statement includes:

•

The consolidated results of the Group’s investments in those non-recourse project companies which are subsidiaries

•

The movement in the fair value of both its investments in non-recourse project companies which are joint ventures or associates, and the investment
in JLIF, as adjusted for dividends and other income received during the period

•

The consolidated results of recourse subsidiaries, including operating companies such as JLIS

The table below sets out the Group Income Statement, split between recourse companies and non-recourse subsidiary project companies (with the
fair value movement on joint ventures and associates shown attributable to recourse companies):
2012

Recourse
companies
£ million

Non-recourse
subsidiary
project
companies
£ million

2011

Total
£ million

Recourse
companies
£ million

Non-recourse
subsidiary
project
companies
£ million

Total
£ million

Group revenue
Fees recovered
Cost of sales

86.5
20.2
(43.9)

207.1
–
(193.7)

293.6
20.2
(237.6)

62.7
1.8
(42.1)

219.3
–
(202.1)

282.0
1.8
(244.2)

Gross profit
Other operating income
Bid costs (staff and third party costs)
Staff and administration expenses
Fair value movement on joint ventures and associates
Other gains

62.8
16.3
(24.0)
(43.6)
26.1
15.7

13.4
–
–
(2.1)
–
–

76.2
16.3
(24.0)
(45.7)
26.1
15.7

22.4
5.7
(16.2)
(41.7)
41.2
11.1

17.2
–
–
(1.2)
–
–

39.6
5.7
(16.2)
(42.9)
41.2
11.1

Profit from operations
Investment income
Finance costs

53.3
19.6
(19.6)

11.3
57.7
(56.7)

64.6
77.3
(76.3)

22.5
17.7
(18.4)

16.0
64.6
(72.6)

38.5
82.3
(91.0)

53.3

12.3

65.6

21.8

8.0

29.8

Profit before tax

Group revenue, as presented in these accounts, relates only to subsidiaries of the Group.
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The pro-forma revenue of the Group in 2012 (being the revenue of both
John Laing’s subsidiaries and its share of the revenues of its joint ventures
and associates) was £815.3 million (2011 – £718.1 million). Revenue
includes amounts invoiced under management services and fund
management agreements and the value of construction work certified in
respect of projects. The pro-forma revenue of the Group is depicted in the
charts on page 25.
The Group achieved financial close on seven projects in 2012 and charged
fees of £20.2 million (2011 – four projects closed with £1.8 million fees).
Most of these fees related to the IEP project, on which bid costs had been
incurred over several years.
The Group’s valuation of its investments in joint venture project companies
is calculated by discounting their future cash flows. The discount rates
used are based on relevant average government bond rates to which risk
premia are applied. The net impact of investment in new projects, cash
yield, investment realisations, changes in the value of sterling and risk
premia resulted in an uplift of £26.1 million (2011 – £41.2 million) in the
fair value of joint ventures. The Group’s investment in JLIF is held at its
closing market value at the year end.
Future growth of the business is being financed from: cash flow from our
investment portfolio and asset management activities; corporate
borrowing facilities; and working capital created through investment
realisations. During the year, investments in five projects were sold to
JLIF, resulting in total proceeds of £92.9 million. An IFRS accounting profit
on disposal of £5.7 million has been recorded in the Group Income
Statement. When measured against the original cost of the investments,
the profit on disposal was £47.3 million (2011 – £58.4 million).
Investment income and finance costs are analysed in note 5 to the
financial statements. Within this, the IAS 19 interest on pension fund
liabilities was greater than the expected return on its assets, resulting in
a net finance cost of £7.2 million in 2012 (2011 – £6.7 million).
As a result of the movement in yield curves, there was a £2.3 million
decrease (2011 – £7.4 million decrease) in the fair value of derivatives
outside hedging relationships.
Profit before tax was £65.6 million (2011 – £29.8 million).
During 2012, dividends of £0.3 million (2011 – £0.3 million) were paid to
the shareholder, Henderson Infrastructure Holdco Limited.
TAXATION The Group’s tax credit on continuing activities for 2012 was £2.2

million (2011 – credit of £11.3 million). This mainly arises from consortium
relief from PPP project companies (2011 – mainly from deferred tax credit
of £9.5 million principally attributable to the movement in fair value of
derivatives outside hedging relationships).
The annual contributions made to JLPF are tax deductible when paid and,
as a result, there is minimal tax payable by the UK holding and asset
management activities of the Group.
Projects in which John Laing invests are usually taxed on either the
composite trade or the capital allowances basis. Composite trade projects
are taxed at 24% on accounting profits after any disallowed items
(normally minimal) but can often use tax losses surrendered by their
shareholders to offset their taxable profits. Payment is made for such
surrendered tax losses. Projects which attract capital allowances receive
a tax deduction for plant and machinery but may not be entitled to a tax
deduction for other capital expenditure. Since there is usually negligible
residual value in the underlying assets of such projects, the depreciation
charge can outweigh the capital allowances, resulting in a high effective
tax rate on reported profits over the life of the contract. This initially takes
the form of a deferred tax charge, which may not reverse until well into
the concession period.
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Capital gains from the realisation of investments in projects are generally
exempt from tax under the Substantial Shareholding Exemption for shares
in trading companies. To the extent this exemption is not available, gains
may be sheltered using current year losses or losses brought forward
within the Group’s holding companies.
The net deferred tax liability in the Group Balance Sheet of £6.1 million at
31 December 2012 relates mainly to temporary differences arising on

business combinations offset by a deferred tax asset on fair value of
derivatives (the £3.9 million net deferred tax asset at 31 December 2011
related mainly to a deferred tax asset on the fair value of derivatives offset
by temporary differences arising on business combinations).
The Group has a significant unrecognised deferred tax asset relating to
carried forward tax losses of £68.8 million.

GROUP BALANCE SHEET The consolidated Group Balance Sheet includes the Group’s share of the assets and liabilities of its investments in those
project companies which are subsidiaries. In accordance with IAS39, a positive fair value adjustment of £35.5 million to financial assets and a negative
fair value adjustment of £83.4 million in relation to derivative financial instruments together with a net deferred tax asset of £11.0 million have been
made to the financial assets and liabilities of these project companies. The table below re-analyses the net assets in the Group Balance Sheet and
shows separately recourse and non-recourse assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012. Investment in joint ventures at fair value through profit
and loss is included in the recourse part of the table because the underlying investments are held by Group recourse companies.

2012
Amortised
cost
£ million

Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets – available for sale
Other fixed assets and working capital balances
Discontinued businesses and held for sale
Current tax
Deferred tax
Post retirement obligations
Long-term provisions
Net funding/(debt)
Derivatives and commodity swaps
Net assets

Fair value
adjustments
£ million

2011
Non-recourse

Total
recourse
£ million

Amortised
cost
£ million

Fair value
adjustments
£ million

Total non
recourse
£ million

Total
£ million

Total
£ million

415.5
–
(14.2)
1.4
(1.1)
2.1
(189.8)
(5.0)
68.6
–

(22.4)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

393.1
–
(14.2)
1.4
(1.1)
2.1
(189.8)
(5.0)
68.6
–

–
829.9
96.9
–
–
(19.2)
–
(8.4)
(802.1)
–

–
35.5
–
–
–
11.0
–
–
–
(83.4)

–
865.4
96.9
–
–
(8.2)
–
(8.4)
(802.1)
(83.4)

393.1
865.4
82.7
1.4
(1.1)
(6.1)
(189.8)
(13.4)
(733.5)
(83.4)

413.6
728.1
15.9
1.3
(2.0)
(1.4)
(160.0)
(25.9)
(617.0)
(75.9)

277.5

(22.4)

255.1

97.1

(36.9)

60.2

315.3

276.7

BUSINESS REVIEW

Recourse

PORTFOLIO VALUATION The Directors’ valuation of the Group’s portfolio of investments in project companies was £556.0 million at 31 December 2012
(2011 – £540.9 million) and has been calculated on a basis consistent with prior years (see page 21 for the basis of calculation). The portfolio value can
be reconciled to the Group Balance Sheet as follows:
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Group Balance Sheet
– Investments at fair value through profit and loss (including assets held for sale)
– Investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value (including assets held for sale)
– Joint ventures not yet reached financial close
– Consolidated net assets of project company subsidiaries

41.4
358.9
(0.8)
60.2

87.2
326.4
(0.3)
4.2

Total per Group Balance sheet

459.7

417.5

96.3

123.4

556.0

540.9

Fair value of investments in subsidiary project companies in excess of consolidated net assets of subsidiary project companies
Portfolio valuation at 31 December

The above reconciliation is presented because project companies which are subsidiaries are consolidated on a net asset basis, whereas the Directors’
portfolio valuation includes all investments in projects, including subsidiaries, at their fair value, which tends to be higher than their net asset value.
The reconciliation illustrates that fair value of £96.3 million in subsidiary project companies (2011 – £123.4 million) is not included within the net assets
of the Group prepared under IFRS.
DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEMES AND POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL OBLIGATIONS The combined accounting deficit in the Group’s defined benefit
pension and post-retirement medical schemes at 31 December 2012 was £189.8 million (2011 – £161.0 million). The Group operates two defined benefit
schemes in the UK – the John Laing Pension Fund (the “Fund”) and the John Laing Pension Plan (the “Plan”). Both schemes are closed to new
members and future accrual.

The amount of the pension deficit in the Fund is dependent on key assumptions, principally: inflation; the discount rate used; and the anticipated
longevity of members. The sensitivity of the Fund’s pension liabilities to changes in these assumptions is illustrated in note 21.
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During 2012, the Company continued to work with the Fund Trustee on
risk reduction initiatives. The Fund closed to future accrual from 31 March
2011. Pension benefits for current John Laing staff are being delivered
through a defined contribution scheme.
The Company made deficit reduction contributions in 2012 of £24.3 million
(2011 – £24.0 million), comprising entirely cash (2011 – £18.1 million in
cash and £5.9 million of shareholdings in PPP assets). The most recent
triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund at 31 March 2010 showed a 69%
funding position. In November 2010, a deficit repair programme was
agreed with the Fund Trustee over a period of 13 years, comprising annual
contributions of £23.5 million, increasing by 3.55% annually, payable each
March, starting from March 2011 following an initial payment of £12.2m
paid in December 2010. The next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund
is due as at 31 March 2013.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan, as at 31 March 2011,
showed a surplus of £2.0 million.
LIQUIDITY The Group’s liquidity risk is managed centrally and the bank

facilities available to it are regularly reviewed by the Board to ensure that
there are sufficient funds to cover current and forecast equity and loan
commitments in respect of investments in projects which have reached
financial close. These commitments are mostly backed by letters of credit
issued under the Group’s borrowing facilities. The letters of credit support
the Group’s share of the equity and subordinated debt of projects generally
up to the completion of construction, following which funds are injected.
At 31 December 2012, the Group had committed borrowing facilities
of £324.6 million comprising a three year revolving credit facility of
£305 million (2011 – £305 million) and coterminous bilateral facilities of
£19.6 million (2011 – £19.9 million), as well as a £5 million overdraft
facility. Of the Group’s committed facilities, £137.3 million was undrawn
at 31 December 2012 (2011 – £138.4 million). Net available financial
resources at 31 December 2012 were £210.6 million (2010 – £194.0 million).
Analysis of Group financial resources (recourse)
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Cash and bank deposits*

73.3

58.5

Net funds

73.3

58.5

305.0
19.6

305.0
19.9

324.6
(187.3)
–

324.9
(186.5)
–

Undrawn corporate facilities

137.3

138.4

Net available financial resources

210.6

196.9

Committed borrowing facilities
Syndicated
Bilateral
Less:

Letters of credit drawn
Bank loans

* includes other financial assets and cash balances included in assets held for sale or discontinued
operations

In February 2013, the Group entered into new committed four year
borrowing facilities of £285 million to replace the above facilities which
were due to mature in November 2013.
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INTEREST RATES The Group is not a significant borrower at the corporate

level and does not, therefore, generally seek to hedge exposure to interest
rate movements. However, there are significant non-recourse borrowings
within the project companies in which the Group invests. The interest rate
exposure on the debt of such project companies is, in almost all
circumstances, fixed on financial close, through the issue of either a longdated bond or fixed rate debt, or through the fixing of floating rate bank
debt via interest rate swaps.
Since interest rates on project company borrowings tend to be almost
completely fixed, the impact on the Group of changes in interest rates on
the finance costs of project companies is minimal. There is an impact from
changes in interest rates on the investment income from monies held on
deposit both at Group level and within project companies but such an
effect has not been, and is unlikely to be, significant in the context of the
Group Income Statement.
FOREIGN CURRENCY The Group does not hedge individual overseas

At 31 December 2012, the portfolio valuation of £556.0 million (2011 –
£540.9 million) is analysed on the basis of foreign currency exposure
as follows:

Letters of credit in issue denominated in foreign currencies are revalued
monthly to Sterling. This retranslation risk does not directly impact the
Group Balance Sheet or the Group Income Statement. Letters of credit in
issue at 31 December 2012 of £187.3 million (2011 – £186.5 million) are
analysed by currency as follows:
LETTERS OF CREDIT
2012
Total: £187.3 million

BUSINESS REVIEW

investments but monitors its total exposure to particular currencies. The
Group may apply an appropriate hedge to a specific currency transaction
exposure, which could include borrowing in that currency or entering into
forward foreign exchange contracts.

At 31 December 2012, the Group held investments valued at £89.6 million
(2011 – £104.2 million) where the underlying project was denominated in
Euro, equivalent to 16.1% (2011 – 19.3%) of the total portfolio valuation of
£556.0 million (2011 – £540.9 million). Against the background of
continuing uncertainty in the Eurozone, the Group regularly reviews its
Euro exposure, in particular its sensitivity to changes in the Euro/Sterling
exchange rate and to the timing and amount of forecast Euro cashflows.
As illustrated below, the Group’s Euro-denominated assets are partly
hedged by letters of credit issued in Euro. As a result, a fall of 25% in the
value of the Euro versus Sterling (assuming all other currencies remained
unchanged) would not have a material effect on the financial covenants
in the Group’s bank facilities at 31 December 2012. The value of the
Group’s Euro-denominated assets reduced during the year following the
disposal of the Group’s shareholding in the Kromhout Barracks project
to JLIF.

Australian
dollar
£38.0m

PORTFOLIO VALUE
2012
Total: £556.0 million
New Zealand
dollar
£5.4m
Australian
dollar
£19.3m

Canadian
dollar
£13.9m

US dollar
£15.1m

Euro
£89.6m
US dollar
£20.0m

Sterling
£405.2m

Euro
£18.5m

Sterling
£115.7m

2011
Total: £186.5 million
Australian
dollar
£38.7m

Indian rupee
£2.6m

Sterling
£73.4m

Canadian
dollar
£8.3m

2011
Total: £540.9 million
Australian
dollar
£15.7m

Canadian
dollar
£5.1m
Euro
£104.2m
US dollar
£16.1m

Sterling
£397.8m

Indian rupee
£2.0m

US dollar
£15.8m

Euro
£50.3m

GOING CONCERN The Group has committed corporate borrowing facilities

until February 2017 and has sufficient resources available to meet its
committed capital requirements, investments and operating costs for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group has adopted the going-concern
basis in the preparation of its financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012.
Patrick O’D Bourke
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our commitment to Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) was rewarded
with a Platinum Award in the 2012
Business in the Community (BITC)
Corporate Responsibility Index.

This follows our success in achieving the CommunityMark, the national
standard of community investment excellence awarded by BITC, one of
only 37 UK companies to achieve this award. We continue to build on this
achievement and have maintained our commitment to support the
communities in which we operate.
John Laing also achieved a Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
(RoSPA) Gold Award in 2012 for the fourth consecutive year. This is a
reflection of our strong safety performance and the systems we operate
to control and mitigate risks.
During the year, we retained our certification to BS EN ISO 9001:2008,
BS EN ISO 14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 and also retained third party
certification to Business Continuity
Management BS 25999, demonstrating
we have systems in place to manage
unexpected interruptions to our business.

“

We remain committed to our Corporate Social Responsibility
agenda which is endorsed by the John Laing Executive
Committee; however it is the engagement of our employees
that makes the difference.
We recognise the importance of maintaining our commitment
to community engagement, and I am pleased to announce
that we have committed to provide support to the Paddington
Academy over the next three years as part of the BITC
flagship educational programme, Business Class.
We have an important part to play in supporting our public
sector clients in their environmental strategies in the reduction
of waste going to landfill and the emissions of CO2 to the
atmosphere and its adverse impact on climate change.
Adrian Ewer
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”

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT We work closely with our employees and
strategic charitable partners to deliver our community engagement agenda.
The John Laing Charitable Trust

The John Laing Charitable Trust (JLCT) supports the work of welfare
visitors who look after the needs of our former employees and their
partners. The Trustees set aside considerable funds each year to provide
financial help and assistance, which is also available to current employees
and their immediate families who might be experiencing difficulties.
JLCT also exists to enable John Laing plc and its subsidiaries to make
appropriate charitable donations.

The Prince’s “Seeing is Believing” Programme Supporting Business
Action in Schools

In November 2012, Adrian Ewer led a group of senior
business leaders on a visit to a number of schools to
showcase some of the challenges faced by schools and
the communities in which they operate.
The visit also illustrated the benefits of working in partnership through
Business Class, with schools being asked to assess their needs before
collaborating with their partner organisation to design a tailor made
response.
➔ Northumberland
Park School,
London

The Trust focuses its support on charities which support the following
main themes:
•

Education

•

Community

•

Regeneration

•

Disadvantaged young people

•

Homelessness with a particular emphasis on day centres

•

Environment

CommunityMark

John Laing has been a Patron of The Prince's Trust
Construction and Business Services Leadership
Group (CBSLG) since 2006, allowing John Laing to
work in partnership with The Prince's Trust to help
support disadvantaged young people across the UK.
The CBSLG supports young people through the ‘Get into Construction’
programme, a skills development scheme that helps young people find
a way into the construction industry. John Laing's significant support
of the CBSLG committee and its commitment to the ‘Get into
Construction’ programme has created a wide and exciting partnership
with the Trust.

Quote from Catherine Carruthers, BITC

Quote from The Prince’s Trust

“John Laing understands corporate responsibility and makes it work for the
benefit of the business and the communities they serve.

“John Laing remain one of The Prince’s Trust’s most long standing and
dedicated supporters. This year, we were particularly delighted to have
an enthusiastic team of riders from across the business take part in our
annual Palace to Palace cycle ride. The team raised a staggering £6,500
to support vulnerable young people across the UK to realise their
potential and move in to work, education or training. Thank you so much
to everyone who took part! We very much look forward to continuing our
partnership during 2013 and beyond.”

They regularly submit themselves to public scrutiny in the Corporate
Responsibility Index and CommunityMark and are consistently high
achievers. Their Chief Executive Adrian Ewer is a strong supporter of
Business Class, the needs-led education programme that helps to raise
standards for young people.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

John Laing is one of only 37 companies in the UK
to achieve the CommunityMark. The award is made to
businesses which can demonstrate a long-term
commitment to community investment measured
against the CommunityMark’s five principles.
CommunityMark companies achieve this national
standard by delivering measurable and positive benefits
for their business and the community through
their investments.

The Prince's Trust

Adrian personally chairs the Westminster cluster and encourages staff to
get involved.”
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Victim support

In 2011 Kingston Hospital, a hospital located in South West London, to
which John Laing provides management services, benefitted from a grant
from JLCT of £25,000.
This grant enabled Victim Support to recruit an Independent Sexual
Violence Adviser (ISVA) to provide services at the Wolverton Centre Sexual
Health Clinic based in the hospital. This targeted approach to support
victims of sexual violence has resulted in financial saving for the hospital
and other associated services.
As a result of the success of the pilot programme, further funding
amounting to £50,000 from JLCT over the next two years has been
approved. This will enable sustainable funding through other Government
agencies to be secured.
Quote from Cora Green, Senior Service Delivery Manager Victim Support

“This funding means that Victim Support is able to provide an onsite ISVA
specialist to support service users and medical professionals when cases of
sexual assault are disclosed. The team also work proactively in the
community to raise awareness about ‘alcohol and consent’ and ‘healthy
relationships’.”

BITC’s Education Campaign

The most effective way for business to support
young people facing social disadvantage is to form
long-term partnerships with their schools.
Business Class is BITC’s Government-endorsed
flagship education programme, which provides a
systematic and proven framework for developing partnerships rooted
in the needs of schools and underpinned by strategic support and
collaborative action.
There are currently over 200 Business Class partnerships across the
UK. The aim is to build 500 partnerships by 2015 which will have a
positive impact on the lives of over 75,000 young people.
John Laing has been working closely with its partner school, the
Paddington Academy in London; a number of our employees have
taken part in student mentoring, curricular support, careers events
and mock interviews.
As part of the BITC Business Class programme students from
Paddington Academy were invited to meet their mentors from
John Laing at our Head office in Kingsway during November 2012.
➔
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Paddington Academy
student Tikquaan
Walters and
John Laing Senior
Investment Manager,
Seamus Crilly

Make a difference

All John Laing employees or members of their immediate family directly
involved in a charity are able to apply to JLCT for a grant to support a good
cause. These grants are generally given to small charities where they can
make a real difference. During the past year, 50 payments of £500 were
made to a wide variety of organisations including schools, youth football
teams, village halls, choirs, various youth clubs such as sailing groups
and many small charities.

ACCIDENT INCIDENCE RATE (‘AIR’) PER 100,000 EMPLOYEES
(12 MONTH ROLLING AVERAGE)
AIR
600
500

In addition, JLCT is able to match money raised by employees, up to a
value of £1,000 per employee. This year, 43 applications were received
from staff.
Various donations were made throughout the year and The Prince’s Trust
was one of the many charities to benefit.
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Christmas Donation 2012

Each December for the last seven years, £5,000 has been donated by
JLCT to a charity nominated by a staff member in place of the Company
sending Christmas cards.

The Legacy Rainbow House charity helps children with brain injury and
disability. It provides support and rehabilitation services to around 200
children a year.
➔

Sonia Harris, Community
Relations Officer for The
Legacy Rainbow House
Fund Raising Team,
accompanied by 10 year
old Gemma Kavanagh,
accepts the cheque from
Neil Kenyon.

John Laing was not the subject of any enforcement action throughout 2012
and the AIR (12-month rolling average) for our employees was well below
the HSE all industry average. Safety performance on all our projects is
closely monitored and subject to routine audits by our compliance team.

HEALTH AND SAFETY John Laing takes its health and safety

responsibilities very seriously and holds independent third party
certification to the internationally-recognised occupational health and
safety management system BS OHSAS 18001:2007.
The standard demonstrates our ongoing commitment to the health and
safety of our staff and anyone who may be directly or indirectly affected
by our activities.
Through this certification, we have seen a continued improvement in our
health and safety performance in terms of health and safety management,
incident reporting and investigation, employee engagement and
occupational health and wellbeing.
John Laing was awarded a RoSPA Gold Award for Occupational Health and
Safety in 2012 for the fourth successive year . This well recognised award
reflects not only the quality of the management system employed, but also
the safety performance being maintained throughout the business.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

This year, Manchester based employee Neil Kenyon, General Manager
Operations, nominated The Legacy Rainbow House, registered charity
no 1127498, for the support it gives to his four year old niece. Neil,
together with his family and friends, are keen fundraisers. He
commented “With no statutory funding, the charity relies heavily on
community and corporate support. This donation is significant and will
pay for therapy for a child like my niece for a whole year”.

HSE All Industry Std 2011/12

CSR Activity overseas
Vancouver Office

During November, staff based in our Vancouver office, volunteered with
Dress for Success, a local non-profit organisation. The mission at Dress
for Success is to support and promote the economic independence of
women in need in the Greater Vancouver Area.
The training includes one hour with a volunteer stylist to choose a job
interview outfit. CV writing and interview coaching are also offered. Once
a job is confirmed, the women can return to Dress for Success for two
more work appropriate outfits to get them through the first few weeks
until they start receiving a regular salary. 95% of the clothing supplied is
donated from people within the community; the remaining 5% is brand
new provided by local retailers.

➔

John Clayton CBE,
RoSPA Trustee,
presents the 2012
RoSPA Gold Award
to Robin Phayre,
John Laing HSEQ
and Business
Continuity Manager.
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GREENHOUSE GASES PROTOCOL SCOPE 1 AND 2 – GAS AND ELECTRICITY

(continued)
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The chart shows the absolute carbon footprint associated with John Laing
projects for the period July 2011 to June 2012. The increase in emissions over
the preceding 12 months reflects a number of projects becoming operational.

ENVIRONMENT We continue to improve the accuracy of metrics associated
with quantifying our CO2 equivalent (CO2e) footprint, through the introduction
of enhanced data capture and reporting systems.
Energy

Our boundary criteria for reporting purposes include projects where John Laing
provides services through a MSA and/or where JLIS provides facilities
management services.
Whilst we aspire to reduce the impact on the environment of our public sector
infrastructure projects, in terms of greenhouse gas emissions and the volume
of waste going to landfill, the ability for us to do so is dependent on our clients’
commitment to a reduction strategy.
The energy data detailed in the chart above covers the period July 2011 to June
2012. The data, which is calculated using conversion formulae, has been
independently verified by the Carbon Trust.
The carbon foot print for John Laing employees’ business travel and
commuting over the same period was 598 tonnes of CO2e compared with 599
tonnes of CO2e over the preceding 12 month period.
Renewable energy

John Laing acquired two operational solar parks in summer 2012: Five Oaks in
West Sussex and Fryingdown in Hampshire. Since then the energy generated by
these two sites has saved an estimated 2,300 tonnes in CO2 emissions, fully
offsetting the carbon footprint for John Laing employees’ business travel
and commuting.
Waste

John Laing’s commitment to reduce the volume of waste produced by it and
its end-users is firmly embedded within the culture of the business. This ethos
stems from top management and cascades down to staff, clients and
contractors at all levels.
Our ability to influence the volume of waste produced by the projects we invest
in depends on our clients’ commitment and cooperation to reducing their
environmental impact. As such, we continue to work with our stakeholders to
look at joint initiatives that provide both environmental and financial benefits.
Where possible, we aim to educate our clients and end-users by raising
awareness of the negative environmental impact waste has and of the small
changes that can be made to lessen the volume of materials sent to landfill.
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The percentage of waste recycled in 2012 by John Laing projects was 29.7%,
an improvement on 24.1% in 2011.

GHG PROTOCOL SCOPE 3 – BUSINESS TRAVEL AND COMMUTING

Staff Survey

John Laing is committed to seeking and responding to feedback from its
employees. We conducted a staff survey in 2012 which provided feedback
from our employees on their working environment. The survey focused on
the following areas:
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Overall, the feedback was positive with a few areas identified as
needing attention.
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Equality and Fair Treatment

John Laing is committed to a positive working environment free from any
discrimination or unfair treatment which provides all employees with
equal opportunities to develop within the Group.
Work-Life Balance Policies

Workplace

Employment

As at 31 December 2012, The Group employed 1,372 staff in the United
Kingdom and overseas. This included 1,102 staff employed in JLIS, our
facilities management business.
Recruitment

The Group’s recruitment process remains focused on ensuring that the right
people are selected by way of efficient, effective and professional processes.
We have enhanced our capacity to do this through the introduction of a
John Laing Core Competency Framework, against which all candidates are
assessed at interview. In addition, where applicable, candidates complete
an online competency-based personality survey, providing the business with
an extra tool in the selection process. The successful recruit has the
opportunity to view this later as a development report, whilst the
competencies form part of the ongoing appraisal process.
Relationships with core recruitment suppliers have been strengthened in
order that they can support the Group through a partnership approach. New
relationships are formed as necessary to meet the needs of the business.
Staff Benefits

It is the policy of John Laing to attract, retain and reward high quality staff
by ensuring our pay and terms of employment are reviewed regularly with
the following objectives in mind:
•

Packages are attractive to potential employees

•

We remain competitive within the labour market

•

The development of skills is rewarded

The Group also provides an employee assistance programme which is
available to all employees, their partners and their immediate family. This
is an independent service which offers support and counselling on a wide
range of work, personal and family issues.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

John Laing is strongly committed to investing in its employees, both to
maximise their career potential through learning and development and to
help them to achieve a work-life balance.

John Laing recognises the importance of a working environment which
enables employees to achieve a balance between their work and personal
life to the mutual benefit of the individual, the business and society. Our aim
is to create a working environment that supports staff and their general
wellbeing, maintains effective working practices and enables a productive
and positive balance between work and life outside work. The Group has a
number of work-life balance policies and practices in place which support
the achievement of this aim through flexible working, supporting working
parents and periods of absence from the work place. The Group seeks to
enhance statutory minimum requirements where it can. For example, we
offer enhanced maternity, paternity and adoption pay arrangements.

Learning and Development

John Laing supports the skills development and learning of all employees
through a range of means, including attending external courses and
seminars, sponsorship for undertaking professional qualifications,
secondments, development assessments, and coaching and mentoring.
Retention of our employees through effective development is key to the
success of the business. Learning and development remain areas of
particular focus. Our Future Leaders’ Programme provides personal
development, mentoring and coaching support for a group of employees
with high potential. During 2012, we developed and rolled out a
Management Development Programme for a wide range of managers to
support the development of key management skills. This programme will
continue during 2013. The Group has also implemented a development
programme for its existing leaders to support them in their roles and to
foster a culture of inspirational leadership.
The Group runs an in-house training programme which is open to all
employees. This includes a wide range of courses which cover
management development, personal effectiveness, professional
development and information technology. We continually revise the
development opportunities on offer as well as seek alternative methods
of providing accessible learning opportunities. John Laing also offers a
personal financial planning course to assist employees in planning for
their longer-term financial future including pension planning.
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* EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
* Adrian Ewer FCA

* Patrick O’D Bourke MA, ACA

Chief Executive

Group Finance Director

After qualifying as a chartered accountant in
1977, Adrian pursued a career in industry in
electronics, engineering and construction
businesses, including Lilley plc, Ratcliffe Group,
Akai UK and Chloride. Having joined John Laing
in 1991 he became Deputy Group Finance
Director in 1995 and took responsibility for
establishment of the Investments Division, the
catalyst for John Laing’s present day core
business. In 1999 Adrian joined the Board as
Finance Director and in 2001/02 led John Laing’s
strategic shift away from construction and house
building. He has also driven the current strategy
of developing and investing in infrastructure
projects, principally for public sector clients. He
became Chief Executive in 2006.

Patrick joined John Laing in 2011. He qualified
as a chartered accountant with Peat Marwick
(now KPMG) before spending nine years in
investment banking with first Hill Samuel and
then Barclays de Zoete Wedd. In 1995 he joined
Powergen plc where he was responsible for
mergers and acquisitions before becoming
Group Treasurer. From 2000 to 2006, he was
Group Finance Director of Viridian Group PLC,
the Northern Ireland-based energy group,
becoming Group Chief Executive in 2007 after
Viridian was taken private.

* Derek Potts MA, ACA

* Chris Waples CDir FloD

Managing Director, Business Development

Managing Director, Operations

Derek joined John Laing in 2001. He heads
the Business Development team and has
responsibility for all the Group’s bidding and
business development activities, both in the UK
and internationally. For several years, he has led
the Group’s expansion into a number of
international markets. Derek is a qualified
chartered accountant, having graduated as an
engineer. He previously held senior positions with
Jardine Matheson UK, GB Railways Group plc
and Virgin Group. Derek is responsible for CSR
issues relating to customers and consumers.

Chris joined John Laing in 2007. He is
responsible for all operational aspects of the
Group’s infrastructure investments: from
financial close; during construction; and
throughout the operating phase. He is also
responsible for the Group’s facilities
management business. Chris formerly held
senior management positions with Amey plc,
Scottish Power plc and Blue Circle plc. He is
the director responsible for health and safety
matters and also takes responsibility for
CSR issues relating to community and
wellbeing. Chris is a Trustee of the John Laing
Charitable Trust.

** NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
** Priscilla Davies BCom ACA

** Toby Hiscock MA (Oxon), FCA

Chairman

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Director

Dr Nolan has a wealth of experience on the
boards of many companies, private and public
and in both an executive and non-executive
capacity. He is currently a non-executive
director of Ulster Bank, Providence Resources
Plc and EnQuest PLC, and a special adviser to
Warburg Pincus. He was Chairman of Infinis, a
privately held, leading renewable energy
generator between 2007 and 2010, Chairman of
Sepura plc, a listed, global supplier of TETRA
radios between 2007 and 2010 and CEO of
Eircom, Ireland’s national telecommunications
supplier from 2002 – 2006. Prior to that, he
served as an Executive Director of BG Group plc
and CEO of Transco plc from 1998 and in 2000
led the demerger of Transco as CEO of the
Lattice Group.

Priscilla is the Managing Director of Henderson
Equity Partners, which specialises in Asian
private equity, infrastructure and private equity
fund of funds. Priscilla has over 20 years’
experience in financial services having qualified
as a chartered accountant. She joined
Henderson Group in 2000 in a senior tax role
and moved to Henderson’s private equity
division in 2004 where she oversaw its finance
and investment operations before becoming
Managing Director in January 2012. Prior to
joining Henderson, Priscilla was a tax
professional with PricewaterhouseCoopers in
both their Sydney and London offices.

Toby Hiscock is a qualified chartered
accountant with 31 years’ experience as a
finance professional. He was the Chief
Financial Officer and an Executive Director of
Henderson Group plc from 2003 until his
retirement in 2009, and was responsible for all
aspects of financial stewardship of the
Henderson Group. Before Henderson, he was a
senior manager at Midland Bank Group in
London and from 1981 to 1988 worked for
Binder Hamlyn, Chartered Accountants after
graduating from Oxford University. Toby is also
a Non-executive Director of a number of other
public and private institutions.

** Roger Greville BAgEcon,
MCom (Econ)

** Guy Pigache BSc

Carolyn Cattermole LLB

Non-executive Director

Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary

Non-executive Director
Roger has over 20 years of international
investment and management experience. Until
December 2011 he was the Managing Director
of Henderson Equity Partners, which
specialises
in
Asian
private
equity,
infrastructure and private equity fund of funds,
and he sat on the Executive Committee for
Henderson Group plc. Prior to that, Roger was
CEO of AMP Henderson Global Investors (NZ)
Limited, a multi-sector asset management
company managing listed and unlisted
investments. He has also held positions with
the Reserve Bank of New Zealand, the New
Zealand Treasury and Hendery Hay McIntosh
Limited (a sharebroking and investment
banking firm) as an economist.

Guy is Head of Infrastructure at Henderson
Equity Partners, having joined Henderson in
2003. Guy has been active in the infrastructure
concessions market for the past 20 years. He
previously established the infrastructure equity
investment division of HSBC (now, InfraRed
Capital Partners). Guy started his career in
1982, working for the Charterhouse investment
banking group for 20 years

Carolyn joined John Laing in September 2012
as Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary. Her previous roles were General
Counsel and Company Secretary of DS Smith
Plc, the international supplier of recycled
packaging, for ten years, and Company
Secretary of Courtaulds Textiles plc for three
years. Prior to that, she was a senior legal
adviser with Courtaulds plc, having qualified as
a solicitor with Norton Rose.

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

** Phil Nolan Bsc PHD MBA
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The Directors submit their annual report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

GROUP ACTIVITIES
John Laing is a specialist investor in and manager of infrastructure assets in the UK and internationally.
The share capital of John Laing plc is wholly-owned by Henderson Infrastructure Holdco Limited, on behalf of two funds, Henderson PFI
Secondary Fund LP and Henderson PFI Secondary Fund II LP, which are managed by Henderson Equity Partners, a subsidiary of
Henderson Group plc.
A list of the principal subsidiaries and joint ventures of the Company can be found in note 32 to the accounts.
There have been no significant changes in the Group’s principal activities in the year under review. The Directors are not aware, at the
date of this report, of any major changes in the Group’s activities in the coming year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS
The profit for the year before taxation amounted to £65.6 million (2011 – £29.8 million).
The Directors paid interim dividends for the year of £0.15 million on 29 June 2012 and £0.15 million on 13 December 2012 (2011 –
£0.3 million), making a total dividend of 0.077 pence per Ordinary Share (2011 – 0.077 pence per Ordinary Share). No final dividend for
the year has been recommended.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS
Additional information is provided in this annual report and accounts in accordance with best practice for portfolio companies owned by
private equity investors (of which John Laing plc is deemed to be one) in accordance with the Walker Guidelines.
The key events during the year and the development of the business are set out in the Chief Executive’s Review on pages 6 to 9.
The Financial Review is set out on pages 24 to 29.
The principal risks facing the Group are set out on pages 43 to 47.

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
•
•

As far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware
The Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.
A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as Auditors will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who served throughout the year were:
A J H Ewer
P O’D Bourke
D Potts
C B Waples
P A Davies
R P Greville
N T Hiscock
P M G Nolan
G R M Pigache
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EMPLOYEES
The Group seeks to ensure employee commitment to its objectives in a number of ways. Strategic changes are communicated directly
to all staff and resultant queries are handled by the relevant business head or executive Director as appropriate. Regular team briefings
at local level provide employees with information about the performance of, and initiatives in, their part of the business. A wide range of
information is also communicated across the Group’s intranet.
The framework within which decisions about people are made is set out in the Group’s personnel policies which are available to all staff.
It is part of those policies to employ and train disabled people whenever their skills and qualifications allow and when suitable vacancies
arise. If existing employees become disabled, every effort is made to find them appropriate work and training is provided if necessary.

CREDITORS AND SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY
It is the Group’s policy to settle suppliers’ invoices in accordance with the terms of the underlying transactions. Trade creditors at
31 December 2012 amounted to 35 days (2011 – 35 days) of average supplies for the year.

On behalf of the Board

C T Cattermole
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANy SECRETARy

14 March 2013

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
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The Board has resolved that the disclosures to be made in the annual report regarding the operation of the Board and its sub-committees
should comply, where commercially practicable, with the requirements of The UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code”) and best
practice generally. However, as the Company is not required to comply with the Code, no explanation for any non-compliance is provided.

DIRECTORS
The Board meets on a regular basis throughout the year and as needed to deal with special business. The Board has appointed an
Audit Committee, a Finance Committee, an Investment Committee, a Nominations Committee and a Remuneration Committee which
consider issues relevant to their specific terms of reference. The offices of Chairman and Chief Executive are held separately.
Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Board during 2012 was as follows:
Number of meetings: 17
Attended by:

P M G Nolan
A J H Ewer
P O’D Bourke
D Potts
C B Waples
P A Davies
R P Greville
N T Hiscock
G R M Pigache

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

independent non-executive Chairman
Chief Executive
Group Finance Director
Managing Director, Business Development
Managing Director, Operations
non-executive Director
non-executive Director
non-executive Director
non-executive Director

17
15
17
16
16
15
17
15
17

When Directors are unable to attend meetings they receive the relevant papers and give their comments in advance of the related meetings.
Board meetings follow a formal agenda of matters reserved for decision and approval by the Board as well as any special business.
Matters Reserved for the Board include the review of strategy and organisational change, the review of internal controls and risk
management processes, the approval of significant investments and disposals, the approval of budgets and the regular review of current
trading and the financial position of the Group. A schedule of the Matters Reserved for the Board is included on the Company’s website
at www.laing.com. The Board receives regular reports prior to meetings on current trading and the financial position and forecasts of
the Group. In addition, the Board receives relevant information on business, corporate and strategic issues. Formal procedures exist
to ensure that the Board is made aware of any significant health and safety issues and non-compliance with statutory regulations.
C B Waples is the Board member responsible for health and safety issues. Further details of the Company’s approach to health and
safety are set out in the report on Corporate Social Responsibility on page 33.
All Directors may take independent professional advice at the Group’s expense in the furtherance of their duties and have full access to
the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary.
Upon appointment, non-executive Directors undertake an induction process to familiarise themselves with the Group’s activities, policies
and key issues. During their appointment they are expected to dedicate adequate time to carry out their role effectively and to challenge
management in a constructive way.
The Chairman regularly meets with the other non-executive Directors to discuss the performance of the Board and the Board subcommittees. The performance of executive Directors is measured against predetermined objectives that are agreed with each executive
Director at the start of the financial year. A review of the Board’s effectiveness was concluded in mid 2012 including the effectiveness of
the Board sub-committees. As a result of the review, the Board resolved: to focus more time on strategic issues, risk management and
succession planning; to increase inter-action between non-executive directors and both executive Directors and other senior management
outside Board meetings; and to recruit a senior individual for the new role of Group General Counsel and Company Secretary.
The Chairman has no executive responsibilities but leads and sets the agenda for the Board ensuring its effectiveness. The Chairman
also acts as an interface between the executive and non-executive Directors and the Company’s shareholder.

BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES
Sub-committees of the Board have been constituted to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding matters relating to
external and internal audit, internal control and risk management processes, the selection of appropriate accounting policies, the
presentation of the interim and full year accounts, investment performance, acquisitions and disposals, the appointment of Directors,
and Directors’ remuneration. Membership is determined by the Board and the duties of the Board sub-committees are set out in the
following sections of this report.
All the sub-committees of the Board operate within clearly defined terms of reference which are reviewed and updated to reflect best
practice and the Code as far as is commercially practicable. The terms of reference of the sub-committees are available on request from
the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and are included on the Company’s website at www.laing.com.
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ThE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Throughout the year the Audit Committee was chaired by N T Hiscock, a non-executive Director who has up to date, relevant finance
experience. Other members who served during the year were G R M Pigache, P A Davies and M Jaffe (an appointed representative of the
Company’s shareholder).
Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Audit Committee during 2012 was as follows:
Number of meetings: four
Attended by:

#

P M G Nolan

P O’D Bourke

C B Waples

N T Hiscock –
Chairman

P A Davies

G R M Pigache

1#

4#

1#

4

3

1

attendance only

The Committee meets at least four times a year. Its terms of reference cover the review of internal and external audit plans, the interim
results and the full year results, as well as internal control procedures, and risk management processes. Regular reviews of significant
risks identified as a result of risk management processes are undertaken at meetings of the Committee and the Committee’s observations
are reported to the Board.
The internal audit department provides independent assurance to the Board, through the Audit Committee, that internal control
processes, including those related to risk management, are relevant, effective and operating throughout the business.
The Group Finance Director is normally invited to attend meetings, along with other members of management as appropriate. The
external auditor and internal auditor are also invited to attend meetings and meet with the Audit Committee privately, without
management present, at least once a year.
The Committee considers and approves the external audit approach with the external auditor. The Committee reviews the independence
of the external auditor and the procedures in place to ensure that independence is not compromised. The Committee gives specific
approval to non-audit services performed by the external auditor where the fee is expected to exceed £20,000. The Committee is satisfied
that the non-audit work carried out by Deloitte LLP in 2012 has not compromised its independence. The external auditor has also
confirmed that it is satisfied that it has maintained its independence since appointment.
Audit Committee meetings are minuted and copies of the minutes are provided to the Directors and the external auditor. The Committee
reports to the Board, through the Chairman of the Committee, any relevant issue that should be brought to the attention of the Directors.

ThE FINANCE COMMITTEE
The Finance Committee meets at least six times each year. The current members are N T Hiscock (who acted as Chairman
throughout the year), G R M Pigache and M Jaffe (an appointed representative of the Company’s shareholder).
Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Finance Committee during 2012 was as follows:

Attended by:

#

P M G Nolan

P O’D Bourke

D Potts

C B Waples

N T Hiscock –
Chairman

G R M Pigache

2#

8#

2#

1#

8

7

attendance only

The Group Finance Director is normally invited to attend meetings, along with other members of management as appropriate. The
principal purpose of the Committee includes, but is not limited to, reviewing and recommending to the Board:
•
•
•
•

The annual Budget and Plan
Monitoring and reviewing the Group’s long-term/strategic financial planning
Monitoring the Group’s banking arrangements
Overseeing the hedging of the Group’s corporate financial exposures

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Number of meetings: eight

The activities, recommendations and approvals of the Committee are reported to routinely scheduled Board meetings.
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ThE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
The purpose of the Investment Committee is to make recommendations to the Board, or to approve proposals within its delegated
authority, in relation to the Company’s investments in infrastructure projects. The Committee also reviews the Company’s portfolio
valuation process referred to on page 20 and monitors the balance of risk across the portfolio. The activities, recommendations and
approvals of the Committee are reported to routinely scheduled Board meetings.
Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board. Membership comprises not less than one non-executive Director of the Company,
the Executive Directors, the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and such other people as may be nominated by the Board
from time to time. G R M Pigache is the Chairman of the Committee.
Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Investment Committee during 2012 was as follows:
Number of meetings: 28
Attended by:

#

P M G Nolan

A J H Ewer

P O’D Bourke

D Potts

C B Waples

R P Greville

G R M Pigache –
Chairman

N T Hiscock

P A Davies

2#

20

26

23

20

2#

28

3#

3#

attendance only

ThE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE
The Committee meets at least annually. Dr P M G Nolan is the Chairman of the Committee. Membership is not less than two nonexecutive Directors, one of whom must be the Chairman of the Committee. Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Nominations
Committee during 2012 was as follows:
Number of meetings: two
Attended by:

P M G Nolan –
Chairman

R P Greville

G R M Pigache

2

2

1

The purpose of the Nominations Committee is to consider and make recommendations to the Board concerning all new Board
appointments and the retirement of Directors and to make recommendations to the Board relating to the policy for ongoing education
and development of Directors. During the recruitment process the Committee will use external search consultants or open advertising
as deemed most appropriate. When nominating candidates for non-executive directorships, the Committee will take account of the need
for diversity and independence if appropriate.

ThE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee has three scheduled meetings per year and meets additionally as circumstances require. Dr P M G Nolan
acted as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout 2012. N T Hiscock and P A Davies became members of the Committee
on 3 April 2012.
Attendance of Directors at meetings of the Remuneration Committee during 2012 was as follows:
Number of meetings: four
Attended by:

#

P M G Nolan –
Chairman

A J H Ewer

R P Greville

G R M Pigache

N T Hiscock

P A Davies

4

4#

4

4

3

3

attendance only

The Remuneration Committee sets and monitors the overall remuneration policy for the executive Directors and other senior executives.
The Company has adopted the FSA’s Remuneration Code which is applied in respect of those staff involved in regulated activities. The
Committee reviews, but does not limit itself to, the following key areas and makes recommendations to the Board in this respect:
•
•
•
•
•

Total remuneration (including base pay, bonus and incentive arrangements)
Method of remuneration
Service contracts
Terms and conditions and any material changes to the standard terms of employment
Approval of financial arrangements proposed by the Chief Executive relating to the termination of executive Directors’
service contracts

The activities, recommendations and approvals of the Committee are reported to the next routinely scheduled Board meeting.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The effective management of risks within the Group is essential to underpin the successful delivery of the Group’s objectives. The Board
is responsible for ensuring that risks are identified and appropriately managed across the Group and has delegated to the Audit
Committee responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls, including the systems established to identify,
assess, manage and monitor risks.
The principal internal controls that operated throughout 2012 and up to the date of this report include:
•
•
•
•

An organisational structure, which provides adequate segregation of responsibilities, clearly defined lines of accountability, delegated
authority and extensive reporting
Clear business objectives aligned with the Group’s risk appetite
Risk reporting, including identification of risks through Group-wide risk registers, that is embedded in the regular management
reporting of business units and is communicated to the Board;
An independent internal audit function, which reports to the Audit Committee. The external auditor also reports to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of controls

In addition, a Risk Committee comprising senior members of management and chaired by the Group Finance Director was formed during
the year. It held its first meeting in November 2012. Its purpose is to assist the Board, Audit and Executive Committees in monitoring
and executing the Group’s risk management policy.
The above procedures are underpinned by a control environment which is supported by a culture of openness of communication between
operational management and executive management on all matters, including risk and control and procedures for bringing matters to
the attention of the Board.
All investment decisions are scrutinised in detail by the Investment Committee and, if appropriate, also by the Board.
The section below sets out the Directors’ opinion of the principal risks related to PPP markets and to the business of the Group in general.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Directors, or that they currently consider not to be material, may also have
an adverse effect on the Group:
Risk

Mitigation

Government policy

In December 2012, the UK Government announced PF2, a
revision of the UK PFI model. Depending on how the new model
develops, the volume of potential UK opportunities available to
the Group might in future reduce.
In addition, the UK Government or other governments may seek
to introduce new policies or legislation that seek to tax or share
in the returns from PPP investments.

The Board continues to limit its exposure to any single PPP market
and increasingly targets overseas markets, provided the risk profile
and returns are acceptable.
Thorough due diligence is carried out in order to assess a specific
country’s risk (for example economic and political stability, tax
policy and local practices) before any investment is made.

Where possible the Group seeks specific contractual protection
from changes in government policy and law. General change of law
is considered to be a normal business risk. During the bidding
process for a project, the Group takes a view on the appropriate
pricing to cover the risk of non-discriminatory changes in law.

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Further, the Group is actively investing in adjacent sectors such as
renewable energy.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk

Mitigation

Macroeconomic factors

Inflation, interest rates, foreign exchange and GDP all potentially
impact upon the return generated from an investment.
To the extent there are adverse movements in macroeconomic
factors which cannot be adequately hedged, the return on an
investment may decline, or the result may be lock up of
distributions and/or default on the investment.
The full or partial break-up of the Eurozone could affect
the value of, or the return generated from, an investment
denominated in Euro or whose underlying currency is linked
to the Euro.

Factors which have the potential to impact adversely the underlying
cash flows of an investment are hedged wherever possible and
sensitivities are considered during the investment approval process.
Systemic risks, such as persistent deflation, or appreciation of
Sterling versus the currency in which an investment is made, are
assessed in the context of the portfolio as a whole.
The Group monitors closely the level of investments it has exposed
to the Euro, including regularly testing the sensitivity of the financial
covenants in its corporate borrowing facilities to a significant change
in the value of the Euro. Where possible, specific clauses relating to
currency change are incorporated in project documentation.
No new projects are currently being pursued in those countries
most directly affected by the difficulties in the Eurozone. During
2012, the Group’s exposure to the Euro reduced as a result of
the sale of its shareholding in the Kromhout Barracks project in
the Netherlands.

Liquidity in the secondary market

The secondary market for investments in PPP projects is subject
to uncertainty as the result of a number of factors, including lack
of economic growth in western markets, regulatory reform in
the banking sector, liquidity in financial markets, and the
current difficulties in the Eurozone. Weakness in the secondary
market may affect the Group’s ability to realise value from
its investments.

Investments in projects are appraised so that they are capable of
being held to maturity. However, they are also carefully structured
such that they are capable of being divested, if appropriate, when
they become mature. Over recent years, the secondary market has
grown; it continues to enable the Group to realise value from
its investments.

Financial resources

The Group requires adequate financial resources, including bank
facilities, for its known obligations.
No assurance can be given that additional financing will be
available or that, if available, the terms of such financing will be
acceptable to the Group. If adequate funds are not available to
satisfy the Group’s financial obligations, it may be necessary to
constrain its business development, refinance its outstanding
obligations, forego investment and acquisition opportunities
and/or sell assets.

The Group closely monitors its working capital and letter of
credit requirements and maintains an active dialogue with its
banks. It operates a policy of ensuring that sufficient financial
resources are maintained to satisfy committed and likely future
investment requirements.
In February 2013, the Group entered into new corporate borrowing
facilities which mature in February 2017. Compliance with the
financial covenants and other terms of corporate borrowing
facilities is closely observed.

Pensions

At present the Company’s main defined benefit pension scheme
has a substantial deficit.
The amount of the deficit can vary significantly due to gains or
losses on scheme investments and movements in the
assumptions used to value scheme liabilities (in particular
mortality, discount rate and inflation rate). Consequently the
Group is exposed to the risk of increases in cash contributions
payable, volatility in the deficit reported in the Group’s balance
sheet, and gains/losses recorded in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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The Group’s two defined benefit pension schemes are overseen by
corporate trustees, the directors of which include independent and
professionally qualified individuals. The Company works closely
with the trustees on the appropriate funding strategy for the
schemes and takes independent actuarial advice as appropriate.
Both schemes are closed to future accrual and accordingly have no
active members, only deferred members and pensioners. A
significant proportion of the liabilities of the main deferred benefit
pension scheme is matched by a bulk annuity buy-in agreement
with Aviva.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk

Mitigation

Long-term forecasting of revenues and costs

Investment decisions are based upon long-term assumptions of
revenue, the cost of future major asset maintenance and other
ongoing costs over the term of a PPP contract (typically up to
30 years).
In circumstances where the revenue derived from a project is
related to patronage (i.e. customer usage), actual revenues may
vary materially from assumptions made at the time the relevant
contractual documentation is entered into. In addition, to the
extent that actual costs incurred differ from forecast costs and
cannot be passed on to sub-contractors, investment returns
may be adversely affected.

The Group’s investments are principally “availability” based (where
the revenue from projects does not generally depend on the level
of use of the project asset). Where patronage or volume risk is
taken, the Directors review assumptions and their sensitivities in
detail prior to any investment commitment.
Projects are structured such that (i) day-to-day service provision is
sub-contracted to qualified sub-contractors supported by appropriate
security packages (ii) cost and price inflation risk in relation to the
provision of services lies with sub-contractors (iii) major
maintenance and ongoing project company costs are reviewed
annually and cost mitigation strategies adopted as appropriate.
Where the revenue from projects is related to patronage or volume
(e.g. with regard to investments in renewable energy), risks are
mitigated through a combination of factors, including (i) the use of
independent forecasts of future volumes (ii) lower gearing versus
that of availability-based projects (iii) stress-testing the robustness
of projects against significant falls in forecast volumes.

Project finance

An inability to secure long term project finance could affect the
Group’s future returns on investments in projects or, where the
Group has a preferred bidder position, the terms on which the
underlying project reaches financial close.
Adverse performance by a project company which affects the
financial covenant ratios in its project finance loan documents
may result in the project company being unable to make
distributions to shareholders or subordinated debt providers and
may enable the senior debt providers to declare default of the
financing terms and exercise their security.
Inability to refinance existing project finance cost effectively may
also affect future investment returns.

The Group works closely with a range of project finance providers
to secure sufficient cost effective finance for its projects. In PPP
markets such as Australia, where the tenor of project finance
facilities tends to be shorter, the Group’s projects have successfully
raised such shorter-term facilities. The trend towards shorter-term
project finance facilities may spread to other PPP markets.

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Prior to financial close, all proposed PPP investments are scrutinised
by the Investment Committee and by the Executive Directors. This
scrutiny includes a review of sensitivities to adverse performance of
investment returns and financial ratio tests as well as an assessment
of a project’s ability to refinance if the tenor of its debt is less than
the term of the concession. Monitoring of compliance with financial
covenant ratios and other terms of loan documents continues
throughout the term of the loan.
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Risk

Mitigation

Counterparty risk

Against a background of slow economic growth in some of the
Group’s markets and in particular sovereign and financial risks
emanating from the Eurozone, there is a risk of counterparty
failure. The Group is exposed to counterparty credit risk with
regards to its projects’ clients, sub-contractors, lenders and
suppliers, and also with regards to joint venture partners,
financial institutions and suppliers at a Group level.
In overseas jurisdictions, the Group’s investments backed
by public sector clients may ultimately be subject to
sovereign risk.

The Group works with multiple clients, joint venture partners, subcontractors and institutional investors so as to reduce the
probability of systemic counterparty risk in its investment portfolio.
In establishing contractual arrangements prior to making an
investment, the credit standing and relevant experience of a subcontractor are considered. Post contract award, the financial
standing of key counterparties is monitored to provide an early
warning of possible financial distress.
Clients sponsoring PPP projects are normally supported by central
and local government covenants, which significantly reduce the
Group’s risk. Client risk is further reduced by the increasing
geographical spread of the Group’s business. Entry into new
geographical areas which have a different legal framework and / or
financial market characteristics is considered by the Board
separately from individual investment decisions.
A substantial proportion of the revenue generated by renewable
energy investments is usually backed by government subsidies.
Counterparties for corporate deposits, project debt swaps and
deposits in project companies are required to be banks with a suitable
credit rating and are monitored closely on an ongoing basis.

Cost overruns and construction delays

During the construction phase of an infrastructure project, there
are risks that either the works are not completed within the
agreed time-frame or that construction costs overrun.
Where such risks are not borne by sub-contractors, or subcontractors fail to meet their contractual obligations, this can
result in delays or cost overruns, which may adversely affect the
return on the Group’s investments.
The Group is reliant on the performance of third parties in
constructing an asset to an appropriate standard as well as
operating it in a manner consistent with contractual
requirements. Poor performance by, or failure of, such third
parties may result in the impairment or loss of an investment.

The Group has procedures in place to ensure that project companies
appoint competent sub-contractors with relevant experience and
financial strength. Sub-contracting arrangements contain terms
enabling the project company to recover liquidated damages,
additional costs and lost revenue, subject to limits, from the subcontractor. In addition the project company may terminate its
agreement with a sub-contractor if the latter is in default and seek
an alternative construction sub-contractor.
Extensive due diligence is undertaken throughout the bidding
process.
The terms of the sub-contracts into which project companies enter
provide significant protections for investment returns from the poor
performance of third parties.
The ability to replace defaulting third parties is supported by security
packages to protect against price movement on re-tendering.

Major incident
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A major incident such as a terrorist attack, fire, flood or epidemic
could lead to a dislocation of crucial business data, technology,
building, reputation and staff leading to loss of financial control
and loss of confidence of investors and key suppliers.

Detailed business continuity plans have been designed and are
tested at frequent/regular intervals. These plans have been
accredited to BS 25999 standard. Business continuity procedures
are regularly updated in order to maintain their relevance.

In addition there could be a major investment project failure
which could lead to the loss of reputation and possible health
and safety issues.

John Laing operates to independent, third party certified,
management systems in respect of health and safety (OHSAS
18001:2007) and environmental management (ISO 14001:2004). In
addition John Laing’s compliance team routinely monitors health,
safety and environmental issues in the projects the Group invests
in or manages.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

BRIBERY ACT 2010
The UK Bribery Act 2010, which came into force on 1 July 2011, consolidated previous legislation as well as introduced a new corporate
offence of “failure to prevent bribery”. Non-compliance with this Act could expose the Group to unlimited fines and other consequences,
including exclusion from bidding on public contracts.
Accordingly, the Group introduced in 2011 additional measures to reinforce its zero tolerance approach to bribery and corruption. An
Anti Bribery and Corruption Policy and a Code of Conduct set out the Group’s approach to prevent/detect bribery and corruption. All staff
are expected to embrace the Policy and Code and follow them in their day-to-day work, including using the Group’s influence to encourage
its joint venture operations and partners to adopt these or similar principles.
The Group also requires an anti bribery and corruption risk assessment to be undertaken by bid teams when preparing a new bid. This
risk assessment is considered when new bids are reviewed by the Investment Committee.

MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have elected
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union (EU) and the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Company for that year.
In preparing the parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements
Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
in business

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 requires that the Directors:
•
•
•

•

Properly select and apply accounting policies
Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information
Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs is insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance
Make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information shown on the Company’s
website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
•
•

The financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole
The Directors’ Report and Business Review include a fair view of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board
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A J h Ewer

P O’D Bourke

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

14 March 2013

14 March 2013

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF JOHN LAING PLC

We have audited the financial statements of John Laing plc for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the Group Income
Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, the Group and Parent
Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 32 for the Group and notes 1 to 12 for the Parent
Company. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
This report is made solely to the Company’s member in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member those matters we are required to state to the member in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the Company’s member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOPE OF ThE AUDIT OF ThE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors;
and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In our opinion:
•
•
•
•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31
December 2012 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;
the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

OPINION ON OThER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY ThE COMPANIES ACT 2006
•

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial statements.

MATTERS ON WhICh WE ARE REqUIRED TO REPORT BY ExCEPTION
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to the Company’s
member if, in our opinion:
•

Ross howard (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORy AUDITOR
LONDON, UK

14 March 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

•
•
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2011*

2012
Notes

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Fair value movement on joint ventures and associates
and other investments
Other gains
Profit from operations
Investment income
Finance costs
Movement in fair value of derivatives outside hedging relationships
Other finance costs
Profit before tax
Tax

1

2

12
6
3
5
5

£ million

£ million

£ million

313.8
(237.6)

283.8
(244.2)

76.2
16.3
(69.7)

39.6
5.7
(59.1)

26.1
15.7

41.2
11.1

64.6
77.3
(76.3)

38.5
82.3
(91.0)

(2.3)
(74.0)

(7.4)
(83.6)
65.6
2.2

29.8
11.3

67.8

41.1

(2.1)

0.4

Profit for the year

65.7

41.5

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

64.8
0.9

42.8
(1.3)

65.7

41.5

Profit for the year from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations (after tax)

*
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£ million

7

8

Following a review of the presentation of expenditure, comparative figures have been restated to reclassify £5.1 million of costs from cost of sales to administrative
expenses to aid comparability and better reflect the nature of these costs.

GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012
Hedging,
revaluation
and Accumulated
profits/
translation
reserves
(losses)
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

2011
Hedging,
revaluation
and Accumulated
translation
profits/
reserves
(losses)
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Profit for the year
Exchange difference on translation of overseas operations
Net increase in fair value of financial assets
Net decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
Actuarial loss on post retirement obligations
Movement in deferred tax on post retirement obligations
Movement in deferred tax on components of other comprehensive income
Recycling of fair value of financial assets on disposal
Recycling of fair value of hedging derivatives on disposal
Recycling of translation gains on disposal
Non-controlling interests

–
–
10.3
(2.5)
–
–
–
(8.6)
18.7
–
(1.2)

65.7
–
–
–
(45.3)
1.1
(0.5)
–
–
–
(0.9)

65.7
–
10.3
(2.5)
(45.3)
1.1
(0.5)
(8.6)
18.7
–
(2.1)

–
(0.1)
18.2
(44.0)
–
–
–
(19.7)
20.0
(0.9)
0.7

41.5
–
–
–
(1.5)
(0.3)
(0.3)
–
–
–
1.3

41.5
(0.1)
18.2
(44.0)
(1.5)
(0.3)
(0.3)
(19.7)
20.0
(0.9)
2.0

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year

16.7

20.1

36.8

(25.8)

40.7

14.9

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2012

Notes

Balance at 1 January 2012
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer on disposal of interests
in joint ventures and associates
Transfer on revaluation of investments
Realisation of capital reserve on
contribution to pension fund deficit
Dividends paid

12

24
9

Balance at 31 December 2012
Amounts recognised directly in equity
relating to assets classified as
held for sale

Share
capital
£ million

Joint
ventures and
associates
Capital revaluation
reserve
reserve
£ million
£ million

97.9
–

23.1
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

(23.1)
–

170.0
–
(42.7)
26.1
–
–

97.9

–

153.4

–

–

4.3

Hedging
revaluation
and Accumulated
translation
profits/
reserve
(losses)
£ million
£ million

(39.1)
16.7

22.4
20.1

–
–

42.7
(26.1)

–
–

23.1
(0.3)

(22.4)

Total
£ million

Noncontrolling
interests
£ million

Total
equity
£ million

274.3
36.8

2.4
2.1

276.7
38.9

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
(0.3)

81.9

310.8

–

4.3

Hedging
revaluation
and Accumulated
translation
profits/
reserve
(losses)
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

–

–
–

–
(0.3)

4.5

315.3

Noncontrolling
interests
£ million

Total
equity
£ million

Group Statement of Changes in Equity in 2011

Notes

Balance at 1 January 2011
Total comprehensive income for the year
Non-controlling interest share of disposal
Transfer on disposal of interests in
joint ventures and associates
Transfer on revaluation of investments
Realisation of capital reserve on
contribution to pension fund deficit
Net other movements
Dividends paid
Balance at 31 December 2011
Amounts recognised directly in
equity relating to assets classified
as held for sale
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12

24

9

Share
capital
£ million

Joint
ventures and
associates
Capital
revaluation
reserve
reserve
£ million
£ million

97.9
–
–

47.1
–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–
–

(24.0)
–
–

182.2
–
–
(53.4)
41.2
–
–
–

(16.4)
(25.8)
–

(52.3)
40.7
1.2

258.5
14.9
1.2

–
–

53.4
(41.2)

–
–

–
3.1
–

24.0
(3.1)
(0.3)

97.9

23.1

170.0

(39.1)

22.4

–

–

6.2

(12.6)

–

–
–
(0.3)
274.3

(6.4)

5.6
(2.0)
(1.2)
–
–
–
–
–
2.4

264.1
12.9
–
–
–
–
–
(0.3)
276.7

GROUP BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2012

Notes

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets – available for sale
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories – work in progress
Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

10
11
12
12
13
19
14

13
14
15
15,18

Assets held for sale or discontinued operations

8

Total assets
Current liabilities
Current portion of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Derivative financial instruments
Current tax liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale or discontinued operations

15,18
16
22
19

8

Net current assets
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Provisions

15,18
16
19
20
21
22

Total liabilities
Net assets

Total equity

23
24
24

2011
£ million

55.8
39.1
37.2
355.9
851.2
0.2
0.8

38.2
0.9
87.2
326.4
719.3
–
1.9

1,340.2

1,173.9

0.2
14.2
70.1
3.0
44.2
109.1

0.1
8.8
58.5
2.3
21.2
89.6

240.8

180.5

11.9

121.7

1,592.9

1,476.1

30.5
80.6
1.9
0.2
4.1

9.9
80.2
11.9
–
4.3

117.3

106.3

10.5

120.4

124.9

75.5

856.3
2.7
83.4
6.1
189.8
11.5

717.9
3.5
75.9
0.4
161.0
14.0

1,149.8

972.7

1,277.6

1,199.4

315.3

276.7

97.9
–
153.4
(22.4)
81.9
(189.8)
271.7
310.8
4.5

97.9
23.1
170.0
(39.1)
22.4
(161.0)
183.4
274.3
2.4

315.3

276.7

The financial statements of John Laing plc, registered number 1345670, on pages 48 to 103 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorised for issue on 14 March 2013. They were signed on its behalf by:

A J h Ewer

P O’D Bourke

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

14 March 2013

14 March 2013
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Equity
Share capital
Capital reserve
Joint ventures and associates revaluation reserve
Hedging, revaluation and translation reserves
Accumulated profits
– retirement benefit obligations
– other reserves
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

2012
£ million

53

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Investing activities
Interest received
(Increase)/reduction in other financial assets
Disposal of subsidiary
Proceeds from the sale of other investments
Proceeds from the sale of investments in joint ventures and associates
Proceeds from loan repayments from joint ventures and associates
Purchases of property, plant, computer software and equipment
Investment in/acquisition of joint ventures, associates and investments
Purchases of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries

26

6
12
6
12

12
10
25

Net cash from investing activities

2011*
£ million

(83.9)

(90.4)

12.2
(23.9)
11.0
44.5
79.2
5.1
(39.2)
(72.4)
(4.2)
(11.8)

14.6
36.6
12.4
–
92.6
8.2
(1.2)
(59.0)
(3.0)
–

0.5

101.2

Financing activities
Dividends paid
Interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

(0.3)
(47.5)
157.8
(9.1)

(0.3)
(47.3)
77.4
(36.6)

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

100.9

(6.8)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

27

17.5
93.3
0.1

4.0
89.2
0.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

27

110.9

93.3

*
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2012
£ million

comparative information, including relevant notes, has been restated to reclassify £36.6 million of a reduction in other financial assets from net cash flows from
operating activities to cash flows from investing activities to better reflect the nature of the cash flows.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2012

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The Group has adopted accounting policies that are compliant with IFRSs in so far as they have been codified and endorsed by EU
member states and therefore these accounts comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS regulation.
Project companies in which the Group invests (including subsidiaries) are described as “non-recourse” i.e. providers of debt to
such project companies have no recourse to John Laing companies as investors in such projects. Other John Laing subsidiaries,
including operating companies such as JLIS and/or companies in which corporate borrowings and cash balances reside, are
described as “recourse”.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
The adoption of the following new and revised interpretations and amendments has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting
policies nor had any material impact on these financial statements:
Interpretation/amendment

Amendments to IAS 1 (June 2011): Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Amendments to IAS 12 (December 2010): Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
Amendments to IFRS 1 (December 2010): Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-Time Adopters

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied in
these financial statements were in issue and relevant, but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):
Standard/interpretation

IFRS 9 (November 2009, revised October 2010): Financial Instruments
IFRS 10 (May 2011): Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11 (May 2011): Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 (May 2011): Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13 (May 2011): Fair Value Measurement
IAS 27 (May 2011): Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 (May 2011): Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to IAS 19 (June 2011): Employee Benefits
Amendments to IFRS 7 (December 2011): Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IAS 32 (December 2011): Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IFRS 1 (March 2012): Government Loans
Improvements to IFRSs (2009-2011) (May 2012): Improvements to IFRS 1, IAS 1, IAS 16, IAS 32 and IAS 34
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (June 2012): Transition Guidance
IFRIC Interpretation 20 (October 2011): Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

With the exception of IFRS 9, the Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards or interpretations in future periods
will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group when the relevant standards come into effect for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2013. The adoption of IFRS 9, expected in 2015, will have an impact on the measurement,
classification and disclosures of financial instruments.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. The interests of non-controlling
shareholders in subsidiaries acquired or created are initially measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquired entity’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-byacquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Group Income Statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests is adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the costs on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.
(b) Going concern

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s financial projections and cash flow forecasts and believe, based on those projections and
forecasts, that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Group on the going concern basis.
As set out in the Financial Review, in arriving at their conclusion, the Directors took into account the Group’s policy towards
liquidity and cash flow management and the availability of £285 million of bank facilities which are committed to February 2017.
Management is of the opinion that the Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of expected bidding activity and
operational performance, indicate that the Group will be able to operate within its bank facilities and comply with the financial
covenants therein for the foreseeable future.
In determining that the Group is a going concern, certain risks and uncertainties, some of which arise or increase as a result of
the economic environment in some of the Group’s markets, have been considered. The Directors believe that the Group is
adequately placed to manage these risks. The most important risks and uncertainties identified and considered by the Directors
are set out in the Principal Risks and Risk Management section on pages 43 to 47. In addition, the Group’s policies for management
of exposure to financial risks, including liquidity, foreign exchange, credit and interest rate risks are set out in note 18.
(c) Accounting for PPP subsidiaries

At 31 December 2012, the Group had investments in 41 PPP Project Companies with service concessions, of which 10 were
subsidiary PPP Project Companies. These subsidiaries are consolidated and apply the following accounting policies:
In accordance with IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements and various provisions of IFRSs, the Group has determined the
appropriate treatment of the principal assets of, and income streams from, PPP and similar contracts within its subsidiary PPP
Project Companies. Results of all service concessions which fall within the scope of IFRIC 12 conform to the policies set out below
depending on the rights to consideration under the service concession.
The Group restates, where applicable, the results of subsidiary PPP Project Companies to reflect consistent accounting policies
across the Group.
The Group determines the treatment of service concessions held by subsidiary PPP Project Companies as financial assets or
intangible assets as follows:
(i) Service concessions treated as financial assets – available for sale

Where the Project Company has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the
grantor, the asset created and/or provided under the contract is accounted for as a financial asset. Revenue is recognised by
allocating a proportion of total cash receivable to construction income and services income. The consideration received is
allocated by reference to the relative fair value of the services delivered, where the amounts are separately identifiable.
During the construction phase, revenue is recognised at cost, plus attributable profit to the extent that this is reasonably certain,
in accordance with IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Costs for this purpose include valuation of all work carried out by
subcontractors whether certified or not, and all overheads other than those relating to the general administration of the
relevant companies.
During the operational stage, cash received in respect of the service concession is allocated to services revenue based on its fair
value, with the remainder being allocated between capital repayment and interest income using the effective interest method.
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The fair values of the service concession financial assets are determined using discounted cash flow methodology and are
designated as ‘available for sale’ with movements in fair value recognised directly in equity.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Accounting for PPP subsidiaries (continued)
(i) Service concessions treated as financial assets – available for sale (continued)

The discount rates used to fair value financial assets available for sale are calculated by adding an appropriate premium to the
relevant government bond yield for each PPP project. The government bond yield reflects the territory and unexpired term of
the project agreement and the premium reflects the market spread that would be required by investors in bonds issued by
PPP Project Companies with similar risk profiles, plus, if appropriate, the market wrapping fee, that would normally be
charged to enhance the project cash flows to investment grade. The discount rates that have been applied to determine the
fair value of financial assets at 31 December 2012 were in the range of 4.65% to 5.46% (2011 – 5.34% to 5.72%).
The amount by which the fair value of financial assets classified as available for sale changes, as a result of changes to the
discount rate during any accounting period, is taken directly to equity. The net cumulative gain or loss that has been taken
directly to equity is transferred to the Group Income Statement when the financial asset is either sold or derecognised.
For projects requiring the recognition of financial assets, the cost of major maintenance is recorded in cost of sales and an
appropriate amount of revenue that would otherwise have been available to amortise the financial asset is transferred to
revenue. This has the effect of increasing the financial asset by the cost of major maintenance. No profit margin is likely to
be recognised on major maintenance since the principal profit recognition on PPP projects is derived from the provision of
routine services.
(ii) Service concessions treated as intangible assets

Where the Project Company has a contractual right to charge users of the services, the asset created and/or provided under
the contract is accounted for as an intangible asset. The intangible asset represents the fair value of assets which give rise to
the contractual right of charge. The intangible asset is amortised to estimated residual value over the remaining life of the
service concession on a straight line basis. At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its intangible
assets to determine whether there are any indications of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less selling costs and value in use. In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Revenue arising in respect of these service concessions is recognised when the services are delivered.
(iii) Service concessions giving rise to both financial and intangible assets

Where the service concession arrangements give rise to both unconditional rights to receive cash and in addition contractual
rights to charge users, separate financial assets and intangible assets are recognised to represent each of the elements.
(d ) Investments in joint ventures and associates

The Group’s ultimate controlling party meets the definition in IAS 31(1) Interest in Joint Ventures of a venture capital organisation
or similar entity and upon initial recognition has designated its investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value through
the Group Income Statement. The Company therefore measures its interest in joint ventures and associates at fair value in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period of the change.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair value of investments in joint ventures and associates is calculated by discounting their future cash flows at an appropriate
discount rate. The discount rates used are based on long run average government bond rates adjusted for an appropriate
premium to reflect project specific risk. Risk premia are then added depending on the phase of the project. The discount rates that
have been applied to investments at 31 December 2012 were in the range of 6.8% to 13.0% (2011 – 5.4% to 13.0%).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Other financial assets

The Group holds other financial assets which primarily include:
•

The Group’s investment in JLIF

•

Loans and receivables

The Group’s investment in JLIF was designated on initial recognition as a financial asset at fair value through profit and loss with
the value of the Group’s investment determined by its closing share price at the balance sheet date.
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted on an active
market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial. Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and
other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the Group Balance Sheet.
(f) Impairment of available for sale assets and loans and receivables

Available for sale assets and loans and receivables are assessed for indications of impairment at each balance sheet date. Such
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected. Objective evidence of impairment
could include:
•

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty

•

Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

•

A probability that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or undergo financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
When an available for sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period. For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate with any loss recognised in profit or loss in the period.
(g) Acquisitions of subsidiaries

The acquisition of a subsidiary which meets the definition of a business combination is accounted for using the acquisition
method. Consideration for the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquired entity.
Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.
Where applicable, consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, measured at its acquisition date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair value are adjusted against the cost of
acquisition where they qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below). All other subsequent changes in the fair value of
contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs.
Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquired entity prior to the acquisition date that have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.
The acquired entity’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3(2008)
Business Combinations are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:
•
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Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 December 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(g) Acquisitions of subsidiaries (continued)

•

Liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquired entity’s share-based payment awards
are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payments

•

Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard

An intangible balance arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquired entity’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately as a profit.
Where an acquisition of a subsidiary does not meet the definition of a business combination due to the asset or group of assets not
meeting the definition of a business, it is treated as an asset acquisition. The individual identifiable assets acquired, including
those assets recognised as intangible assets in accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets, and liabilities assumed are identified
and the cost of the group of assets and liabilities is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their
relative fair values at the date of purchase.
(h) Revenue recognition for non-PPP entities

Revenue recognition in the Group’s companies which provide management services is determined by reference to the
following policies:
•

Other than revenue from routine services, which is recognised as received in accordance with IAS 18 Revenue, long-term
facilities management contracts are accounted for in accordance with IAS 11 Construction Contracts. Revenues and profits
recognised are determined by reference to services provided in the period, adjusted to reflect the forecast level of profitability
at the end of the contract period

•

Fees receivable in respect of management services agreements with PPP Project Companies are recognised evenly over the
period of the agreement

•

Income arising in respect of recoveries of bid costs on financial close of PPP Project Companies is recognised as earned

Revenue excludes the value of intra-group transactions and VAT and includes the Group’s revenue derived from the provision of
services to joint ventures and associates by Group subsidiaries.
When it is probable that the expected outcome over the life of a facilities management or management services contract will
result in a net outflow of economic benefits or overall loss, a provision is recognised immediately. The provision is determined
based on the net present value of the expected future cash inflows and outflows.
Dividend income from investments in joint ventures, associates and other investments at fair value through profit and loss is
recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
(i) PPP bid costs

PFI bid costs are charged to the Group Income Statement until such time as the Group is virtually certain that it will recover the
costs. Virtual certainty is generally achieved when an agreement is in place demonstrating that costs are fully recoverable even in
the event of cancellation of a project. From the point of virtual certainty, bid costs are held in the Group Balance Sheet as a debtor
prior to achieving financial close. On finalisation of PPP project and financing agreements (financial close), the Group recovers bid
costs by charging a fee to the relevant Project Company. Accordingly, for subsidiaries, if the fee exceeds the bid costs of the
project, the excess is credited to the Group Balance Sheet as deferred income and recognised as income at the end of construction
of the relevant project assets.

Provisions for restructuring costs, legal claims and environmental restoration are recognised when:
•

The Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events

•

It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation

•

The amount has been reliably estimated

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of the obligations as a whole.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(j) Provisions
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k ) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of amounts drawn under specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Available for sale financial assets are not qualifying assets.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Group Income Statement in the year in which they are incurred.
Project specific interest costs in PPP subsidiaries, including net amounts payable on interest rate swaps, are expensed as
incurred using the effective interest rate method.
(l) Taxation

The tax charge or credit represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Group Income
Statement because it excludes both items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted, or
substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date.
The Finance Bill 2012, which provides for a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax from 24% to 23% effective from 1 April
2013, was substantively enacted on 3 July 2012. This change has resulted in a deferred tax credit arising from reduction in the
carrying value of the Group’s deferred tax liability.
The UK Government has also indicated that it intends to enact a further reduction in the main corporation tax rate of 1% to 22% by
1 April 2014. While this reduction is expected to have a similar impact on the Group’s financial statements as outlined above, the
actual impact will be dependent on the Group’s deferred tax position at that time.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities (other than in a business combination) in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the Group Income Statement except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
(m) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group subsidiary are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial
position of each Group subsidiary are expressed in pounds sterling, the functional currency of the Company and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising in the ordinary course of trading are reflected in the Group Income Statement; those arising on
translation of net equity are transferred to the Group’s translation reserve in the Group Balance Sheet. Such translation
differences are reclassified to the Group Income Statement in the period in which the operation is disposed of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(m) Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of the transactions are used. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currency are reported at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate. Any difference arising on the
retranslation of these amounts is taken to the Group Income Statement, except for long-term shareholder loans which form part
of net investment in a foreign operation, and where any difference arising on the retranslation of these amounts is taken to the
translation reserve in the Group Balance Sheet. In the event of disposal of a foreign investment, this reserve is reclassified to the
Group Income Statement as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
(n) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Where a disposal group represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, it is treated as a discontinued
operation. The post-tax profit or loss of this discontinued operation together with the gain or loss recognised on its disposal is
shown as a single amount on the face of the Group Income Statement, with all prior periods being presented on this basis.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is recoverable through a sale
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as having been met only when the sale is highly probable, the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is completed within one year of the date of
its classification.
(o) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise rights to charge users under service concession arrangements in accordance with IFRIC 12 (see (c) (ii)
and (iii)), computer software, development costs and intangible assets that are recognised as part of a business combination.
Intangible assets are recognised as part of a business combination if they are reliably measurable and separable from the
acquired entity or give rise to other contractual/legal rights.
Intangible assets other than computer software are amortised on a straight line basis over the operational period of the asset or
concession. Computer software classified as an intangible asset is amortised over five years on a straight line basis.
(p) Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment, including fixtures and fittings and computer equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment loss.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives using the straight line
method on the following bases:
Renewable energy infrastructure
Plant and machinery
Computer equipment
Office equipment

20 to 25 years
6 years
3 to 5 years
3 to 5 years

(q) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, including production overheads, and net realisable value.

The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension arrangements. Its two defined benefit pension schemes
are the John Laing Pension Fund and the John Laing Pension Plan; both are closed to future accrual. The Group also provides
post-retirement medical benefits to certain former employees.
Payments to defined contribution pension arrangements are charged as an expense as they fall due.
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(r) Retirement benefit costs
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(r) Retirement benefit costs (continued)

For the defined benefit pension schemes and the post-retirement medical benefit scheme, the cost of providing benefits is
determined in accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being
carried out at least every three years. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the year in which they occur and
presented in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income outside the Group Income Statement. Curtailment gains arising from
changes to members’ benefits are recognised in full in the Group Income Statement.
The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the Group Balance Sheet represent the present value of (i) defined benefit
scheme obligations as adjusted for unrecognised past service costs and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets, where any
asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service costs plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the schemes, and (ii) unfunded post-retirement medical benefits.
(s) Derivative financial instruments – recognition

The financial risks of PPP projects tend to be hedged at the inception of the project . Therefore, in the normal course of events,
each PPP project in which the Group invests fixes the interest rate on its debt. This is achieved by issuing either a fixed rate bond
or fixed rate bank debt, or variable rate debt which is swapped to fixed rate through interest rate swaps. In addition, and where
appropriate, inflation risk is hedged through inflation swaps.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their
fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and, if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
(t) Derivative financial instruments hedge designation and effectiveness testing

The Group typically designates interest rate swaps and inflation rate swaps, including those of the subsidiary projects it invests in ,
as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the hedge, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, being forecast interest payments or inflationary linked payments.
These swaps are tested both retrospectively and prospectively for effectiveness at each reporting date and if results are within the
range of 80% to 125% then hedge accounting is applied and the hedging instruments are treated as cash flow hedges. The
instruments are marked to market and differences are taken directly to equity.
Where ineffectiveness is judged to have occurred, either a proportion or the full amount of the ineffectiveness is taken to the Group
Income Statement, included within finance costs or investment income, depending on the level of ineffectiveness experienced.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is terminated, for example when a project is refinanced.
At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity is retained in equity until the forecast
transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
transferred to net profit or loss for the period.
Certain of the Group’s subsidiary project companies have entered into internal rate basis swaps which are classified as derivatives
held for trading as they are not eligible to be considered for hedge accounting under IAS 39. Movements in the fair value of these
derivatives are recorded in the Group Income Statement within finance costs or investment income.
The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 19. Movements in the hedging
reserve in shareholder’s equity are shown in note 24. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset
or liability when the hedged item has more than 12 months to maturity and as a current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
The fair values of derivatives at the balance sheet date are obtained from the banks or financial institutions with which the
derivatives have been transacted, subject to adjustment for own credit if necessary.
(u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with original
maturity of three months or less. For the purposes of the Group Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
and short term deposits as defined above, net of bank overdrafts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(v) Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value, being the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs
and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Finance charges, including premiums payable on
settlement or redemption, and direct issue costs are accounted for on an accrual basis in the Group Income Statement and are
added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.
(w) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are also spread on a straight line basis over the lease term.
(x) Share capital

Ordinary Shares are classified as equity instruments on the basis that they evidence a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND kEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates made and the underlying assumptions on which they are based are reviewed regularly. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Recognition and measurement of financial assets

The fair value of subsidiary PPP Project Companies’ financial assets is calculated by discounting anticipated future cash flows at an
appropriate rate, which is set by adding an appropriate risk premium for the asset class to the relevant long-term government bond or
risk free rate. The discount rates applied to financial assets at 31 December 2012 were in the range of 4.65% to 5.46% (2011 – 5.3% to
5.7%). To the extent that long-term government bond rates either increase or reduce, the fair value of financial assets will rise or fall.
Fair value of interests in joint ventures and associates

The Group’s investments in joint venture PPP project companies are carried at fair value through profit and loss, based on the portfolio
valuation methodology as disclosed on page 21. In determining the discount rates, regard is had to risk free rates, specific risks and
the evidence of recent transactions. The carrying amount of interests in joint ventures and associates would be different if the discount
rate used in the discounted cash flow analysis were to change.
Major maintenance provisioning

The cost of major maintenance over the life of a project is estimated during the project design stage before financial close. To the
extent that actual maintenance costs are higher or lower than forecast, the value of the project may be affected. The risk is mitigated
by regular review of actual expenditure and regular technical evaluations of the physical condition of the underlying infrastructure.
Pension and other post-retirement liability accounting

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The combined accounting deficit in the Group’s defined benefit pension and post-retirement medical schemes at 31 December 2012
was £189.8 million (2011 – £161.0 million). The value of the pension deficit is highly dependent on price inflation, discount rate and
longevity experience and the sensitivity of the pension liabilities to changes in these assumptions is illustrated in note 21.

63

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1

SECTOR AND GEOGRAPhICAL ANALYSIS
The Group has neither listed debt nor listed equity investments and is accordingly not required to apply IFRS 8 Operating
Segments. The information set out below accordingly does not comply with the requirements of this standard in either the current
or prior year.
For purposes of managing its investment portfolio, the Group currently uses four sectors: Accommodation; Transport; Renewable
energy, environment and utilities; and Management services. These sectors are the basis on which the Group reports its sector
results below.
Year ended 31 December 2012
Accommodation
£ million

Renewable energy,
environment and
Transport
utilities
£ million
£ million

Management
services
£ million

Eliminations
£ million

Consolidated
£ million

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

222.7
15.1

5.6
–

44.8
–

40.7
33.9

–
(49.0)

313.8
–

Total revenue

237.8

5.6

44.8

74.6

(49.0)

313.8

37.8

14.6

(1.8)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
Result
53.6
Segment result

–

Central administration costs
Corporate finance costs

104.2
(25.3)
(13.3)

Profit before tax
Tax
Loss for the year from discontinued operations

65.6
2.2
(2.1)

Profit after tax and discontinued operations

65.7

Year ended 31 December 2011
Accommodation
£ million

Renewable energy,
environment and
Transport
utilities
£ million
£ million

Management
services
£ million

Eliminations
£ million

Consolidated
£ million

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

220.0
21.0

5.7
–

40.7
–

17.4
28.6

–
(49.6)

283.8
–

Total revenue

241.0

5.7

40.7

46.0

(49.6)

283.8

13.5

10.1

(9.2)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
Result
Segment result
59.8
Central administration costs
Corporate finance costs

–

74.2
(32.9)
(11.5)

Profit before tax
Tax
Profit for the year from discontinued operations

29.8
11.3
0.4

Profit after tax and discontinued operations

41.5

The profit before tax disclosed in relation to the core sectors is shown after adding or deducting interest received and paid on
project-specific funds. Corporate finance costs exclude interest on project funds and include interest payable on funds available
for general corporate purposes.
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SECTOR AND GEOGRAPhICAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
Net Assets
31 December
2012
£ million

Accommodation
Transport
Renewable energy, environment and utilities
Management services

31 December
2011
£million

171.4
135.4
151.1
(136.8)

207.6
80.6
111.8
(122.2)

Sector net assets
Net deferred and current tax liabilities
Held for sale and discontinued operations

321.1
(7.2)
1.4

277.8
(2.4)
1.3

Net assets

315.3

276.7

Other information
2012

Continuing operations
Accommodation
Renewable energy, environment and utilities
Management services

2011

Depreciation
£ million

Capital
additions
£ million

Depreciation
£ million

0.6
14.4
3.3

0.2
0.4
0.9

0.1
–
0.6

0.1
–
0.4

18.3

1.5

0.7

0.5

Capital
additions
£ million

Geographical analysis

The Group’s operations are located in the UK, Continental Europe, North America and Asia Pacific. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit before tax from continuing operations:
2012
Revenue
£ million

United Kingdom
Continental Europe
North America
Asia Pacific

2011

Profit/(loss)
before tax
£ million

Revenue
£ million

Profit/(loss)
before tax
£ million

305.4
2.3
3.4
2.7

59.1
(2.5)
3.3
5.7

280.2
0.9
1.7
1.0

20.4
(4.3)
5.5
8.2

313.8

65.6

283.8

29.8

The loss incurred in Continental Europe is primarily due to a reduction in the fair value of an investment in a joint venture project
company in this region.
The profit earned in North America is primarily due to an increase in the fair value of an investment in a joint venture project
company in this region.
The profit earned in Asia Pacific is primarily due to an increase in the fair value of an investment in a joint venture project company
in this region.
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1

SECTOR AND GEOGRAPhICAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
31 December 2012

United Kingdom
Continental Europe
North America
Asia Pacific

31 December 2011

Capital
additions
£ million

Carrying
amount of
sector net
assets
£ million

Capital
additions
£ million

165.3
92.8
33.3
23.9

17.6
0.7
–
–

143.1
104.9
13.8
14.9

0.7
–
–
–

315.3

18.3

276.7

0.7

Carrying
amount of
sector net
assets
£ million

The increase in net assets in North America is primarily the result of an increase in the fair value of investments in joint venture
project companies in the year. The increase in net assets in Asia Pacific is primarily the result of a new investment in a joint
venture project company in New Zealand.

2

OThER OPERATING INCOME

Dividends from joint ventures and associates

3

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

16.3

5.7

16.3

5.7

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

–

–

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other services to the Group
– the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries

(0.3)

(0.3)

Total audit fees

(0.3)

(0.3)

– other services

(0.1)

(0.1)

Total non-audit fees

(0.1)

(0.1)

Payments under operating leases:
– rentals of land and buildings
Net foreign exchange loss
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

(3.2)
(0.7)
(1.5)
(2.7)

(4.3)
(0.1)
(0.5)
(2.3)

The fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts were £15,862 (2011 – £20,400). The fees
payable to the Company’s auditor for other services comprised £50,000 for audit related assurance services (2011 – £40,000),
£61,309 for other assurance services (2011 – £16,000) and £16,390 for iXBRL services (2011 – £22,000).
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4

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

All Directors
Directors’ emoluments
Cash basis
Award basis

3.0
3.2

3.5
3.8

Highest paid Director
Director’s emoluments
Cash basis
Award basis

1.1
1.1

1.1
1.1

Two Directors (2011 – two) are deferred members of the John Laing Pension Fund, a defined benefit pension scheme. With effect
from 1 April 2011, this scheme closed to future accrual.
As a deferred member of the John Laing Pension Fund, the highest paid Director is not accruing any further pension benefits
other than as a result of inflation. The accrued pension to which he would be entitled from a normal retirement date if he had
retired at the year end is £74,730 (2011 – £71,180).
Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors of John Laing plc, who are the key management personnel of the Group, is set out below in
aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS24 Related Party Disclosures:

Cash basis
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Cash payments under long-term incentive plans

Award basis
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Termination benefits
Maximum award under long-term incentive plans

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

2.0
0.3
–
0.7

2.0
0.2
0.7
0.6

3.0

3.5

2.0
0.3
–
0.9

1.9
0.2
0.7
1.0

3.2

3.8

In addition to the above amounts, £0.1 million (2011 – £nil) was paid to Nalon Management Services Limited, of which
P M G Nolan (Chairman of John Laing plc) is a director.
2011
£ million

44.1
4.8

42.4
4.2

1.1
2.6

2.1
2.6

52.6

51.3
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Employee costs comprise:
Salaries
Social security costs
Pension charge
– defined benefit schemes (see note 21)
– defined contribution scheme

2012
£ million
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DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)
Annual average employee numbers (including Directors):

5

2012
No.

2011
No.

Staff

1,286

1,230

UK
Overseas

1,249
37

1,205
25

Activity
Bidding activities, asset management and Group management
Facilities management

284
1,002

308
922

1,286

1,230

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

INVESTMENT INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Investment income
Interest on bank deposits
– recourse
– non-recourse
Financial asset interest
– non-recourse
Interest received from joint ventures

0.2
0.2

0.1
1.7

57.5
19.4

62.9
17.6

Total investment income

77.3

82.3

(8.2)
(53.7)
(7.2)
(2.3)

(8.9)
(63.2)
(6.7)
(7.4)

(0.2)
(0.4)

(0.7)
(0.4)

(4.0)
(0.6)

(2.1)
(1.6)

Total finance costs
Interest capitalised in relation to renewable energy projects under development

(76.6)
0.3

(91.0)
–

Total interest expense

(76.3)

(91.0)

Finance costs
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
– recourse
– non-recourse
Pension and post-retirement medical benefit finance cost
Movement in fair value of derivatives outside hedging relationships
Unwinding of discounts on provisions
– recourse
– non-recourse
Amortisation of debt issue costs
– recourse
– non-recourse

6

OThER GAINS
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Profit on disposal
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges
Provision on onerous contract (note 22)

6.3
(0.2)
9.6

20.7
–
(9.6)

Other gains

15.7

11.1

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in five PPP project companies.
Sale proceeds were £92.9 million which was received in cash, including £0.3 million received in January 2013. Included within
sales proceeds was an amount of £3.2 million for the settlement of outstanding interest at the date of sale. The fair value of assets
disposed of was £83.9 million at the date of disposal, resulting in a profit on disposal of £5.7 million. The Group also received
deferred consideration of £0.6 million from the sale of Equipe Regeneration Limited in 2010.
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OThER GAINS (CONTINUED)
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group disposed of shares and subordinated debt in 14 PFI/PPP project companies
and one company holding shares and subordinated debt in a further six LIFT projects. Sale proceeds were £132.2 million, of which
£126.3 million was received in cash and £5.9 million related to shares and subordinated debt in Services Support (BTP) Limited
and Aylesbury Vale Parkway Limited, which were transferred to the John Laing Pension Fund as part of the deficit reduction
contribution for 2011. Included within sales proceeds of £132.2 million was an amount of £6.5 million for the settlement of
outstanding interest at the date of sale. The fair value of assets disposed of was £111.1 million at the date of disposal, after taking
account of an amount of £6.5 million for retained investment after the partial sale of interests in two projects, and transaction
costs of £0.4 million, resulting in a profit on disposal of £20.7 million.

Date of
completion

Original
holding in
shares and
subordinated
debt
%

Holding
disposed of
%

Retained
holding
%

17 May 2012
11 October 2012
15 October 2012
12 October 2012

15.0
40.0
37.5
50.0

15.0
40.0
37.5
50.0

–
–
–
–

25 April 2012

100.0

100.0

–

Subsidiaries
£ million

Joint ventures
£ million

Totals disposed
of in 2012
£ million

Project

Details of joint ventures and associates sold were as follows:
Sold to John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limited
Healthcare Support (Newcastle) Holdings Limited
Komfort Holdings B.V.
John Laing Health (Pembury ) Limited
Forth Health Holdings Limited
Details of subsidiaries sold were as follows:
Sold to John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limited
Three Valleys Healthcare Holdings Limited

The net assets of the above subsidiaries and joint ventures at the date of disposal were:

Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Subordinated debt
Investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and loss
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax asset

–
–
–
–
35.2
41.4
–
–
–
–

94.9
4.2
0.3
2.0
35.2
41.4
(80.0)
(2.9)
(24.6)
3.3

(2.8)
(8.6)
18.7

76.6
–
–

73.8
(8.6)
18.7

7.3

76.6

83.9

13.0
(0.5)

82.2
(2.7)

95.2
(3.2)

Gain on disposal

5.2

2.9

8.1

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations (see note 8)

5.2
–

1.1
1.8

6.3
1.8

Reconciliation to net cash inflow:
Consideration
less: settlement of outstanding interest from joint ventures at date of sale
less: cash in subsidiaries disposed of
less: deferred income

13.0
–
(2.0)
–

82.2
(2.7)
–
(0.3)

95.2
(2.7)
(2.0)
(0.3)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal

11.0

79.2

90.2

Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of
Recycling of fair value of financial assets on disposal net of deferred tax
Recycling of fair value of hedging derivatives on disposal net of deferred tax
Net consolidated assets disposed of
Consideration
less: settlement of outstanding interest at date of sale
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94.9
4.2
0.3
2.0
–
–
(80.0)
(2.9)
(24.6)
3.3
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TAx
2012
£ million

Current tax:
UK corporation tax credit
Foreign tax charge

2011
£ million

2.5
–

1.9
(0.1)

2.5
(0.3)

1.8
9.5

2.2

11.3

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

65.6

29.8

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 24.5% (2011 – 26.5%)
UK dividend income
Disallowed expenses and similar items
Non deductible movement on fair value of joint ventures and associates
Chargeable gains
Non taxable profits on disposal
Movement on temporary timing differences
Tax losses used but not previously recognised for deferred tax purposes
Tax losses carried forward and not recognised for deferred tax purposes
Prior year adjustment
Partnership results

(16.0)
4.0
(0.3)
9.5
–
1.6
3.6
1.8
(5.0)
2.6
0.7

(7.9)
1.5
(0.1)
8.4
(5.3)
5.2
3.3
6.0
(11.2)
1.9
–

Current tax charge on continuing operations for the year
Movement in deferred tax of subsidiary companies
Deferred tax movement on amortisation of intangible assets
Deferred tax movement on financial instruments
Tax losses used but not previously recognised for deferred tax purposes
Deferred tax adjustments in respect of prior years

2.5
(2.3)
0.3
0.6
(1.8)
2.9

1.8
(1.0)
0.3
1.8
(6.0)
14.4

2.2

11.3

Deferred tax (charge)/credit
Tax credit on continuing operations

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the Group Income Statement as follows:

Profit before tax on continuing operations

Total tax credit on continuing operations for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2012, a blended rate of 24.5% has been applied due to the change in the UK corporation tax rate
from 26% to 24% with effect from 1 April 2012. For the year ended 31 December 2011, a blended rate of 26.5% was applied.
Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in those jurisdictions.
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ASSETS hELD FOR SALE OR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Discontinued operations

Certain of the Group’s assets and liabilities, which relate to legacy property and construction businesses, are classified as
discontinued. The remaining assets and liabilities relate to the settlement of warranties given at the time of sale and are expected
to wind down in the short to medium term.
The results of discontinued operations by sector, which have been included in the Group Income Statement, were as follows:
2012
Construction
£ million

Revenue
Cost of sales

0.1
(3.1)

Gross (loss)/profit from discontinued operations
Administrative expenses
Other gains

(3.0)
(0.1)
1.8

(Loss)/profit from discontinued operations

(1.3)

Investment income
Finance costs

0.1
(0.4)

(Loss)/profit before tax from discontinued operations
Tax charge on discontinued operations

(1.6)
(0.4)

Net (loss)/profit attributable to discontinued operations

(2.0)

2011

Homes
£ million

–
–

Total Construction
£ million
£ million

Homes
£ million

Total
£ million

–
–

0.1
0.9

0.1
(3.1)

0.1
0.9

–
(0.1)
–

(3.0)
(0.2)
1.8

1.0
(0.1)
–

–
(0.2)
–

1.0
(0.3)
–

(0.1)

(1.4)

0.9

(0.2)

0.7

0.1
(0.4)

0.1
(0.4)

(0.1)
–

(1.7)
(0.4)

0.6
–

(0.2)
–

0.4
–

(0.1)

(2.1)

0.6

(0.2)

0.4

–
–

–
–

0.1
(0.4)

At 31 December 2012, there were assets of £4.7 million (2011 – £3.0 million), including cash and cash equivalents of £1.8 million
(2011 – £0.8 million), and liabilities of £10.5 million (2011 – £6.8 million), including long-term provisions of £9.8 million (2011 –
£6.6 million), relating to discontinued operations.
During the year ended 31 December 2012 net cash inflow from operating activities included £0.6 million (2011 – outflow £0.6
million) in respect of discontinued operations which also generated £1.8 million (2011 used – £0.04 million) in investing and
financing activities.
Assets held for sale

In 2012, shortly after financial close, the Group agreed terms with an institutional co-investor to sell 6% of its 30% shareholding
in the IEP Phase 1 project. The sale completed on 31 January 2013 for sale proceeds of £0.4 million. The sale proceeds reflect a
nominal fee for arranging the investment commitment which the co-investor has taken on from the Group and does not reflect the
fair value of the investment to the co-investor. At 31 December 2012, 6% of the 30% shareholding at fair value of £0.4 million is
classified as an asset held for sale. The other 24% of the shareholding was included within investments in joint ventures and
associates at fair value through profit and loss.
In December 2012, the Group exercised its put option to sell its investment in Dhule Palesner Tollway Limited (the NH3 road
project in India). The sale is yet to complete but the investment at fair value of the agreed price of £2.6 million is classified as an
asset held for sale at 31 December 2012.
In December 2012, the Group received an offer to sell its interest in Brisbane Airlink and, whilst the sale was not yet complete at
31 December 2012, the Directors had made the decision that the investment would be sold, hence the investment at fair value of
the offered price of £4.2 million is classified as an asset held for sale.

On 28 September 2011, the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of Healthcare Support (Newcastle) Holdings Limited,
holding company for one of the Group’s joint venture PPP investments. The disposal completed on 17 May 2012. At 31 December
2011, the investment at fair value of the contract price of £10.0 million in Healthcare Support (Newcastle) Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries, Healthcare Support (Newcastle) Limited and Healthcare Support (Newcastle) Finance plc, was classified as an asset
held for sale.
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On 1 April 2011, the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of Three Valleys Healthcare Holdings Limited, one of the
Group’s subsidiary PPP project companies. The disposal completed on 25 April 2012. At 31 December 2011, the assets and
liabilities of Three Valleys Healthcare Holdings Limited and its subsidiary, Three Valleys Healthcare Limited, were classified as
assets and liabilities held for sale.
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ASSETS hELD FOR SALE OR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)
Assets held for sale (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the operations classified as held for sale are as follows:

Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and loss
Deferred tax asset
Financial assets – available for sale
Current assets
Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets held for sale

4.2
3.0
–
–

–
10.0
7.0
94.3

–
–
–
–

1.0
3.3
0.2
2.9

7.2

118.7

–
–

0.2
2.7

–
–
–

79.8
28.1
2.8

Total liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale

–

113.6

7.2

5.1

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

0.3

0.3

DIVIDENDS

Equity shares:
– interim dividends proposed and paid of 0.077 pence per Ordinary Share (2011 – 0.077 pence).
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31 December
2011
£ million

Current liabilities
Current portion of interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

9

31 December
2012
£ million
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10 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Original cost
Balance at 1 January 2011
Additions
Disposals

Service
concession
asset
£ million

Computer
software
£ million

Development
costs
£ million

31.5
–
–

4.7
1.0
–

–
3.0
–

Cost of
service
concession
£ million

12.9
–
(1.6)

Total
£ million

49.1
4.0
(1.6)

At 31 December 2011

31.5

5.7

3.0

11.3

51.5

Balance at 1 January 2012
Arising on acquisitions (note 25)
Additions
Disposals

31.5
–
–
–

5.7
–
0.4
–

3.0
16.1
3.8
–

11.3
–
–
–

51.5
16.1
4.2
–

At 31 December 2012

31.5

6.1

22.9

11.3

71.8

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals

(9.0)
(1.3)
–

(1.6)
(0.7)
–

–
–
–

(0.6)
(0.3)
0.2

(11.2)
(2.3)
0.2

At 31 December 2011

(10.3)

(2.3)

–

(0.7)

(13.3)

Accumulated amortisation
Balance at 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals

(10.3)
(1.3)
–

(2.3)
(0.9)
–

–
(0.2)
–

(0.7)
(0.3)
–

(13.3)
(2.7)
–

At 31 December 2012

(11.6)

(3.2)

(0.2)

(1.0)

(16.0)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2012

19.9

2.9

22.7

10.3

55.8

Carrying amount at 31 December 2011

21.2

3.4

3.0

10.6

38.2

Intangible assets in the form of development costs arising in 2012 of £19.9 million comprise: £16.1 million arising on acquisition
(see note 25); £2.8 million in the form of planning permission and land rights to develop a wind farm, grid connection and other
intangible assets that were obtained on the acquisition of Wear Point Wind Limited; and £1.0m in the form of planning permission
and land rights to develop three solar parks and a grid connection obtained on the acquisition of KS SPV3 Limited and KS SPV4
Limited. These intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 20 to 25 years once the solar park or wind
farm starts generating electricity.
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT
Renewable
energy
infrastructure
£ million

Plant and
machinery
£ million

Computer
equipment
£ million

Office
equipment
£ million

Total
£ million

Original cost
At 1 January 2011
Additions

–
–

–
–

1.1
0.5

2.9
0.2

4.0
0.7

At 31 December 2011

–

–

1.6

3.1

4.7

At 1 January 2012
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 25)
Disposals

–
14.4
21.4
–

–
0.5
–
–

1.6
1.6
–
(0.1)

3.1
1.8
–
(2.0)

4.7
18.3
21.4
(2.1)

At 31 December 2012

35.8

0.5

3.1

2.9

42.3

–
–
–

–
–
–

(0.8)
(0.2)
–

(2.5)
(0.3)
–

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 December 2011

(1.0)

(2.8)

(3.8)

–
(0.4)
–

–
(0.1)
–

(1.0)
(0.6)
0.1

(2.8)
(0.4)
2.0

(3.8)
(1.5)
2.1

At 31 December 2012

(0.4)

(0.1)

(1.5)

(1.2)

(3.2)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2012

35.4

0.4

1.6

1.7

39.1

–

–

0.6

0.3

0.9

At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals

–

Carrying amount at 31 December 2011

–

(3.3)
(0.5)
–

12 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE ThROUGh PROFIT AND LOSS
2012
Joint
ventures and
associates
£ million

Other
investments
£ million

2011
Total
£ million

Total
£ million

At 1 January
Loan repayments
Investment in equity and loans
Movement in accrued interest
Disposals
Upstream loan
Fair value of retained holding in disposed subsidiary
Exchange movements on loans*
Fair value movement*

336.4
(5.1)
72.4
7.6
(76.5)
(3.3)
–
(1.0)
28.4

87.2
–
–
–
(44.5)
–
–
–
(1.3)

423.6
(5.1)
72.4
7.6
(121.0)
(3.3)
–
(1.0)
27.1

416.2
(8.2)
65.8
(3.8)
(94.1)
–
6.5
(1.3)
42.5

At 31 December

358.9

41.4

400.3

423.6

Continuing
Assets held for sale (see note 8)

355.9
3.0

37.2
4.2

393.1
7.2

413.6
10.0

*

Total fair value movement in the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group invested £34.1 million in the A1 Germany road project. At 31 December 2012,
the fair value of the investment in this project has been reduced to zero resulting in a fair value reduction of £34.1 million. At
31 December 2011, the Group had made a provision of £9.6 million in relation to the obligation to invest equity and subordinated
debt into this project. Following the investment in 2012 the provision at 31 December 2011 was released. The £9.6 million released
is shown separately in other gains and losses and the £34.1 million fair value reduction in the year is included within the total fair
value movement on joint ventures and associates and other investments in the Group Income Statement.
During the year the Group sold its interest in four joint venture project companies (see note 6 for further details).
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12 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE ThROUGh PROFIT AND LOSS (CONTINUED)
In addition, during the year, the Group reduced its investment in JLIF, selling 14.3 million shares in April 2012 for £15.1 million and
a further 28.0 million shares in October 2012 for £29.9 million. Disposal costs amounted to £0.5 million. Following these sales and
taking into account JLIF’s issue of new shares in 2012, the Group’s equity interest in JLIF reduced to 6.7%. The market value of the
investment in JLIF at 31 December 2012 was £37.2 million (2011 – £83.3 million) and is included within other investments above
along with a 6.05% interest in Brisbane Airlink valued at £4.2 million (2011 – £3.9 million).
In the opinion of the Directors the aggregate value of the investment in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures is not less than
the amount stated in the balance sheet.

13 FINANCIAL ASSETS – AVAILABLE FOR SALE
2012
Total
£ million

2011
Total
£ million

At 1 January
Additions
Repayments in the year
Fair value movement
Disposals
Transferred to assets held for sale (note 8)

728.1
138.0
(13.7)
13.0
–
–

895.1
129.9
(15.2)
23.8
(210.2)
(95.3)

At 31 December

865.4

728.1

Analysed as:
Less than one year
Greater than one year

14.2
851.2

8.8
719.3

At 31 December

865.4

728.1

Additions in 2012 have arisen from construction work certified in the year in subsidiary project companies still in the construction
stage. Disposal amounts in 2011 arose from the disposal of subsidiary project companies in the year. The financial asset in the
subsidiary project company sold in 2012 was classified in 2011 as an asset held for sale (see note 8 for further details).

14 TRADE AND OThER RECEIVABLES
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

15.6
0.3
7.7
46.5

11.2
1.0
8.4
37.9

70.1

58.5

0.8

1.9

Current assets
Trade debtors
Other taxation
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Non-current assets
Other debtors and accrued income

In the opinion of the Directors the fair value of trade and other receivables is equal to the carrying value.
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14 TRADE AND OThER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

68.7
0.5
0.1
0.4
1.2
–

57.8
0.3
0.1
0.3
1.8
0.1

70.9

60.4

Sterling
Canadian Dollar
United States Dollar
Australian Dollar
Euro
Other currencies

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £3.1 million (2011 – £1.8 million) which were
overdue at the reporting date. The Group has not provided for these debtors as there has not been a significant change in their
credit quality since the amounts became overdue, and they are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral against these balances.
Ageing of overdue but not impaired trade receivables:
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Up to 60 days
60-90 days
Over 90 days

2.2
0.4
0.5

1.5
0.2
0.1

Total

3.1

1.8

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors with a carrying value of £0.2 million (2011 – £0.2 million) which were
impaired at the reporting date. The Group has provided in full for these amounts as they are not considered recoverable.

15 CASh AND CASh EqUIVALENTS AND OThER FINANCIAL ASSETS
31 December 2012
Recourse
£ million

Current
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Bank and other loans falling due within one year
Bank and other loans falling due after more than one year
Loans from related parties falling due after more than one year

Nonrecourse
£ million

31 December 2011
Total
£ million

Recourse
£ million

Nonrecourse
£ million

Total
£ million

56.8
11.8
–
–
–

52.3
32.4
(30.5)
(856.0)
(0.3)

109.1
44.2
(30.5)
(856.0)
(0.3)

53.9
1.7
–
–
–

35.7
19.5
(9.9)
(717.9)
–

89.6
21.2
(9.9)
(717.9)
–

68.6

(802.1)

(733.5)

55.6

(672.6)

(617.0)

Other financial assets comprise deposits held with original maturities of greater than three months. Such deposits and
investments do not meet the definitions of cash or cash equivalents.
The recourse balances shown above do not include cash balances held in discontinued operations which are identified in note 8.
Non-recourse debt is secured against assets in subsidiary project companies.
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16 TRADE AND OThER PAYABLES
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

41.9
2.1
26.3
3.4
6.9

36.5
1.0
30.0
–
12.7

80.6

80.2

2.7

3.5

Current liabilities
Trade creditors
Other taxation
Accruals
Other creditors
Deferred income

Non-current liabilities
Accruals

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a) Financial instruments by category
Assets at
fair value
through
profit
and loss
£ million

Available
for sale
assets
£ million

Derivatives
not in
effective
hedging
relationships
£ million

n/a Level 1/3*

Level 3

Level 2

n/a

Level 2

Loans and
receivables
£ million

Fair value measurement method
2012
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit and loss*
Investment in joint ventures and associates at fair
value through profit and loss*
Financial assets – available for sale
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables

Financial Derivatives
liabilities at
in effective 31 December
amortised
hedging
2012
cost relationships
Total
£ million
£ million
£ million

–

37.2

–

–

–

–

37.2

–
–
–
0.8

355.9
–
–
–

–
851.2
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
0.2
–

355.9
851.2
0.2
0.8

Current assets
Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

–
69.8
44.2
109.1

–
–
–
–

14.2
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

14.2
69.8
44.2
109.1

Total financial assets

223.9

393.1

865.4

–

–

0.2

1,482.6

Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Fair value of derivatives
Trade and other payables

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
(0.2)
–

(30.5)
–
(78.5)

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Fair value of derivatives
Trade and other payables

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
(10.5)
–

(856.3)
–
(2.7)

–
(72.9)
–

(856.3)
(83.4)
(2.7)

Total financial liabilities

–

–

–

(10.7)

(968.0)

(72.9)

(1,051.6)

223.9

393.1

865.4

(10.7)

(968.0)

(72.7)

(30.5)
(0.2)
(78.5)

431.0

The above table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to their initial recognition at fair value.
•

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

•

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
a) Financial instruments by category (continued)

•

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs to the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.
*

The assets at fair value through profit and loss are split between: Level 1, JLIF, which is a listed investment fair valued at
£37.2 million (2011 – £83.3 million) using quoted market prices; Level 3, unlisted investments fair valued at £nil million (2011
– £3.9 million); and Level 3 investments in joint ventures and associates fair valued at £355.9 million (2011 – £326.4 million)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities

An analysis of the movement between opening and closing balances of assets at fair value through profit and loss is given in
note 12. For investment in joint ventures and associates at fair value through profit and loss, changing the discount rate used
to value the underlying instruments would alter their fair value. As at 31 December 2012 a 1% increase in the discount rate
would reduce the fair value by £42.0 million (2011 – £35.2 million) and a 1% reduction in the discount rate would increase the
fair value by £49.9 million (2011 – £41.4 million).
A 1% increase in the discount rate used to fair value available for sale assets would reduce their fair value by £57.9 million (2011 –
£39.8 million) and a 1% reduction in the discount rate would increase their fair value by £67.8 million (2011 – £46.0 million).
Except as detailed in the following table, the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in these financial
statements approximate to their fair values:
Carrying amount

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Loans and
receivables
£ million

Fair value measurement method
2011
Non-current assets
Investment at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in joint ventures and associates at
fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables

31 December
2011
£ million

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

886.8

727.8

875.4

817.9

Assets at
Derivatives
fair value
not in
through
effective
profit Available for
hedging
and loss sale assets relationships
£ million
£ million
£ million

Financial Derivatives
liabilities at
in effective 31 December
amortised
hedging
2011
cost relationships
Total
£ million
£ million
£ million

n/a

Level 3

Level 3

Level 2

n/a

Level 2

–

87.2

–

–

–

–

87.2

–
–
1.9

326.4
–
–

–
719.3
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

326.4
719.3
1.9

–
57.5
21.2
89.6

–
–
–
–

8.8
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

8.8
57.5
21.2
89.6

170.2

413.6

728.1

–

–

–

1,311.9

Current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables*

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Fair value of derivatives
Trade and other payables

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
(10.0)
–

(717.9)
–
(3.5)

–
(65.9)
–

(717.9)
(75.9)
(3.5)

Current assets
Financial assets – available for sale
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total financial assets

Total financial liabilities
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Fair value

31 December
2012
£ million

Net financial instruments

(9.9)
(79.2)

–
–

(9.9)
(79.2)

–

–

–

(10.0)

(810.5)

(65.9)

(886.4)

170.2

413.6

728.1

(10.0)

(810.5)

(65.9)

425.5
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
b) Foreign currency and interest rate profile of financial assets (excluding investments at fair value through profit and loss):
Continuing operations
31 December 2012

Currency

Floating
rate
£ million

Continuing operations
31 December 2011

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Sterling
Euro
Canadian Dollar
US Dollar
Czech Koruna
Indian Rupee
Singapore Dollar
Australian Dollar
New Zealand Dollar

56.5
0.6
0.5
–
–
–
–
–
10.3

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

22.9
2.3
0.6
0.3
0.1
0.1
–
1.0
0.1

79.4
2.9
1.1
0.3
0.1
0.1
–
1.0
10.4

44.6
2.9
–
0.6
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

17.1
4.3
0.3
0.2
0.2
–
0.1
0.5
–

61.7
7.2
0.3
0.8
0.2
–
0.1
0.5
–

Recourse

67.9

–

27.4

95.3

48.1

–

22.7

70.8

Sterling

37.1

865.6

91.5

994.2

21.0

728.1

78.4

827.5

Non-recourse
Total

37.1

865.6

91.5

994.2

21.0

728.1

78.4

827.5

105.0

865.6

118.9

1,089.5

69.1

728.1

101.1

898.3

Held for sale or discontinued operations
31 December 2012

Currency

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Held for sale or discontinued operations
31 December 2011

Total
£ million

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Sterling

2.8

–

1.9

4.7

2.1

–

0.8

2.9

Recourse

2.8

–

1.9

4.7

2.1

–

0.8

2.9

Sterling

–

–

–

–

3.1

95.3

3.3

101.7

Non-recourse

–

–

–

–

3.1

95.3

3.3

101.7

2.8

–

1.9

4.7

5.2

95.3

4.1

104.6

Total
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
c) Foreign currency and interest rate profile of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2012 were £1,051.6 million (2011 – £886.4 million), of which £927.0 million
(2011 – £764.6 million) were non-recourse liabilities principally representing borrowings of subsidiary project companies.
Within each project company the lenders have recourse solely to the project company with no recourse to the Group. There
were no recourse borrowings as at 31 December 2012 (2011 – nil).

Currency

Group trade and other
payables < 1 year
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Floating
rate
£ million

31 December 2011
Financial liabilities

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

37.0
1.5
1.1
0.4
0.6
0.4
–

37.0
1.5
1.1
0.4
0.6
0.4
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

43.8
0.3
1.2
0.3
–
–
0.3

43.8
0.3
1.2
0.3
–
–
0.3

–

–

41.0

41.0

–

–

45.9

45.9

– Sterling

0.6

29.9

–

30.5

0.2

7.3

–

7.5

– Sterling

14.0

842.3

–

856.3

4.8

715.5

–

720.3

– Sterling

–

–

37.5

37.5

–

–

33.3

33.3

– Sterling

–

–

2.7

2.7

–

–

3.5

3.5

Total non-recourse
Total derivative liabilities

14.6
–

872.2
83.4

40.2
0.2

927.0
83.6

5.0
–

722.8
75.9

36.8
–

764.6
75.9

Total

14.6

955.6

81.4

1,051.6

5.0

798.7

82.7

886.4

Total recourse
Project companies –
borrowings < 1 year
Project companies –
borrowings > 1 year
Group trade and other
payables < 1 year
Group trade and other
payables > 1 year

Sterling
Euro
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
US Dollar
Swedish Krona
Singapore Dollar

31 December 2012
Financial liabilities

18 FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency exchange rate risk, interest
rate risk, inflation risk), credit risk, price risk, liquidity risk, and capital risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
For the parent company and its recourse subsidiaries, financial risks are managed by a central treasury operation which operates
within Board approved policies. For non-recourse subsidiaries and joint ventures, financial risks are normally hedged at the
inception of a project. The various types of financial risk are managed as follows:
Market risk – foreign currency exchange rate risk

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had invested in 13 overseas projects (one of which is a subsidiary). The Group’s foreign
currency exchange rate risk policy is not to automatically hedge on an individual project basis but to determine and manage the
total Group exposure to individual currencies.
In addition, the Group policy on managing foreign currency exchange rate risk is to cover significant transactional exposures
arising from receipts and payments in foreign currencies, where appropriate and cost effective. There were two currency forward
contracts held as at 31 December 2012 (2011 – nil).
In 2012 the Group’s most significant currency exposure was the Euro.
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18 FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency exposure of investments at fair value through profit and loss:
31 December 2012

Sterling
Euro
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
US Dollar
New Zealand Dollar
Indian Rupee

31 December 2011

Joint
ventures and
associates
£ million

Other
investments
£ million

Total
£ million

Total
£ million

211.4
90.1
15.1
13.9
20.0
5.4
–

37.2
–
–
–
–
–
–

248.6
90.1
15.1
13.9
20.0
5.4
–

266.4
104.5
19.6
5.1
16.1
–
1.9

355.9

37.2

393.1

413.6

Included in other investments is the Group’s investment in JLIF, which is a listed investment. The fair value of listed equity
securities is based on quoted market prices.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date were
as follows:
Assets

Canadian Dollar
Euro
Czech Koruna
New Zealand Dollar
Australian Dollar
Other

Liabilities

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

1.2
2.9
0.1
10.4
1.0
0.5

0.3
7.2
0.2
–
0.5
0.9

(0.4)
(1.5)
–
–
(1.1)
(1.0)

(0.3)
(0.3)
–
–
(1.2)
(0.3)

16.0

9.1

(4.0)

(2.1)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase or decrease in Sterling against relevant foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items. A negative number below indicates a
decrease in profit from operations where the relevant currency weakens by 10% against Sterling. For a 10% strengthening of the
relevant currency against Sterling, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit from operations, and the negative
balances below would be positive.
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Canadian Dollar
Euro
New Zealand Dollar

(0.1)
(0.1)
(1.0)

–
(0.5)
–

Tax credit on above at 24.5% (2011 – 26.5%)

(1.2)
0.3

(0.5)
0.1

(0.9)

(0.4)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises due to fluctuations in interest rates which impact on the value of returns from floating rate
deposits and expose the Group to variability in interest payment cash flows on variable rate borrowings.
Normally each PPP project hedges its interest rate risk at inception either by issuing fixed rate bonds or, if the project is bank
financed, with fixed rate bank debt, or variable rate bank debt which is swapped to fixed rate using interest rate swaps.
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18 FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Market risk – interest rate risk (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s financial assets to interest rate risk is as follows:
31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Interest bearing
Floating
rate
£ million

Financial assets
Investments at fair value through
profit and loss
Financial assets – available for sale
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial asset exposure to
interest rate risk

Interest bearing

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

–
–
–
–
44.2
60.8

–
865.4
0.2
–
–
–

393.1
–
–
70.6
–
48.3

393.1
865.4
0.2
70.6
44.2
109.1

–
–
–
–
21.2
47.9

–
728.1
–
–
–
–

413.6
–
–
59.4
–
41.7

413.6
728.1
–
59.4
21.2
89.6

105.0

865.6

512.0

1,482.6

69.1

728.1

514.7

1,311.9

An analysis of the movement between opening and closing balances of investments at fair value through profit and loss is given in
note 12. The joint ventures and associates are valued on a discounted cash flow basis. The weighted average discount rate was
9.0% (2011 – 9.1%).
Fixed rate financial assets principally represent financial assets in subsidiary PPP project companies. The weighted average
interest rate of the continuing fixed rate financial assets is 6.1% (2011 – 6.6%) and the weighted average period for which the
interest rate is fixed is 24.5 years (2011 – 22.3 years). These assets also include fixed rate cash and deposits held by subsidiary
project companies in the form of a guaranteed investment contract. The floating rate financial assets are cash and deposits placed
with banks. Interest on the floating rate financial assets is based on the relevant national inter-bank rates.
The exposure of the Group’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:
31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Interest bearing
Floating
rate
£ million

Interest bearing

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Floating
rate
£ million

Fixed Non-interest
rate
bearing
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Fair value of derivatives
Trade and other payables

14.6
–
–

872.2
83.4
–

–
0.2
81.2

886.8
83.6
81.2

5.0
–
–

722.8
75.9
–

–
–
82.7

727.8
75.9
82.7

Financial liability exposure to
interest rate risk

14.6

955.6

81.4

1,051.6

5.0

798.7

82.7

886.4

One subsidiary project company is funded by bond financing totalling £312 million (2011 – £312 million). The bond has a fixed
interest coupon rate of 2.0% and matures in 2043.
The interest rates for the remaining subsidiary project companies are fixed using either interest rate swaps or by using fixed rate
debt bank facilities. Ten of the 13 (2011: six of the nine) such project companies are financed by floating rate debt and have
transacted interest rate swaps for this purpose. The maturities range from 2019 to 2038 (2011 – 2019 to 2038) and the effective
interest rates vary from 5.0% to 10.7% (2011 – 5.0% to 10.7%).
The weighted average effective interest rate for all non-recourse fixed rate financial liabilities is 4.8% (2011 – 5.0%) and the
weighted average period for which these interest rates are fixed is 20.1 years (2011 – 22.6 years).
The non-recourse floating rate liabilities relate to short-term or junior facilities within certain project companies with rates related
to LIBOR.
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Market risk – interest rate risk (continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on a 1% change in interest rates prevailing at 31 December 2012. For
all floating rate assets and liabilities, the analyses have been prepared assuming the balances have been outstanding for the
whole year though, in reality, are subject to fluctuations due to regular settlement and replacement.
2011

2012

Increase

Profit
before tax
£ million

Hedging
reserve
£ million

Profit
before tax
£ million

Hedging
reserve
£ million

5.4

26.3

4.1

38.5

The increase in profit before tax is attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate deposits and
borrowings (£1.0 million increase, 2011: £1.0 million increase) and on its non-hedged derivatives (£4.4 million increase, 2011:
£3.1 million increase). The increase in the hedging reserve is a result of changes in the fair value of the Group’s hedge derivatives.
For a 1% reduction in interest rates, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit before tax and hedging reserves.
Market risk – inflation risk

Each PPP project will typically have part of its revenue and some of its costs linked to relevant inflation indices at inception. In
most cases this results in the project cash flows being insensitive to inflation. However, in a minority of cases where the project
cash flows are sensitive to inflation, this risk will be hedged by the project company entering into inflation swaps.
Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk arises from a combination of the value and term to settlement of balances
due and payable with counterparties for both financial and trade transactions.
In order to minimise credit risk, cash investments and derivative transactions are limited to financial institutions of a suitable
credit quality and counterparties are carefully screened. The Group’s cash balances are invested in line with a policy approved by
the Board. This includes a cap on how much can be invested with individual financial institutions.
A significant majority of the Group’s projects receive revenue from government departments, public sector or local authority
clients and/or directly from the public, for example, via the collection of tolls. As a result, these projects tend not to be exposed to
significant credit risk. The Group’s exposure to credit risk through the sale of electricity from its renewable energy projects to
counterparties is limited to one project at 31 December 2012. Given the above, the Board does not consider it necessary to present
a detailed analysis of credit risk.
Price risk

Price risk is managed on a Group basis. A significant majority of the Group’s companies receive fixed fee revenue from
government departments, public sector or local authority clients. As a result, these projects tend not to be exposed to price risk.
The Group’s exposure to price risk primarily arises from the sale of electricity from its operational renewable energy projects. The
risk is mitigated by the Group entering into short-term fixed power price contracts, which are underpinned by the Government,
providing a natural floor price. At December 2012, the Group had one operational project generating revenue from the sale of
electricity (2011 – none). The revenue is fixed with a power purchase agreement that expires on 30 September 2013.
Liquidity risk

The Group adopts a prudent approach to liquidity management by maintaining sufficient cash and available committed facilities to
meet its current and upcoming obligations.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and assessing the level of liquid assets
necessary to meet these. Managing liquidity risk is helped by the predictability in both value and timing of cash flows to and from
PPP projects.
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Maturity of financial assets

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets is as follows:
Continuing operations
31 December 2012
Less than Greater than
one year
one year
£ million
£ million

Financial assets – available for sale
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets (excluding investments
at fair value through profit and loss)
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in joint ventures and associates
at fair value through profit and loss
Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Total financial assets

Continuing operations
31 December 2011

Total
£ million

Less than Greater than
one year
one year
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

14.2
–
69.8
44.2
109.1

851.2
0.2
0.8
–
–

865.4
0.2
70.6
44.2
109.1

8.8
–
57.5
21.2
89.6

719.3
–
1.9
–
–

728.1
–
59.4
21.2
89.6

237.3
–

852.2
37.2

1,089.5
37.2

177.1
–

721.2
87.2

898.3
87.2

–
–

355.9
393.1

355.9
393.1

–
–

326.4
413.6

326.4
413.6

237.3

1,245.3

1,482.6

177.1

1,134.8

1,311.9

Held for sale or discontinued operations
31 December 2012
Less than Greater than
one year
one year
£ million
£ million

Investments at fair value through profit and loss
Investment in joint ventures and associates at
fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets – available for sale
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Total financial assets

Total
£ million

Held for sale or discontinued operations
31 December 2011
Less than Greater than
one year
one year
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

4.2

–

4.2

–

–

–

3.0
–
2.8
1.8
0.1

–
–
–
–
–

3.0
–
2.8
1.8
0.1

10.0
95.3
2.3
3.7
3.3

–
–
–
–
–

10.0
95.3
2.3
3.7
3.3

11.9

–

11.9

114.6

–

114.6

Other than certain trade and other receivables, as detailed in note 14, none of the financial assets is either overdue or impaired.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:
31 December 2012
Recourse
liabilities
£ million

84

Non-recourse
liabilities
derivatives
£ million
£ million

31 December 2011
Total
£ million

Recourse
liabilities
£ million

Non-recourse
liabilities
derivatives
£ million
£ million

Total
£ million

In one year or less, or on demand
In more than one year but less
than two years
In more than two years but less
than five years
In more than five years

41.0

68.0

14.9

123.9

45.9

43.2

12.1

101.2

–

53.7

14.4

68.1

–

15.4

12.5

27.9

–
–

99.7
705.6

34.1
20.2

133.8
725.8

–
–

99.8
606.2

30.1
21.2

129.9
627.4

Total

41.0

927.0

83.6

1,051.6

45.9

764.6

75.9

886.4
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Maturity of financial assets (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities. The table reflects
the undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group is required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows:
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

31 December 2012
Variable interest rate instruments
Fixed interest rate instruments
Non-interest bearing instruments*

*

In more
than 2 years
but less
than 5 years
£ million

In more
than 5 years
£ million

Total
£ million

0.6
29.9
78.5

0.1
50.9
2.7

0.1
99.6
–

13.8
691.8
–

14.6
872.2
81.2

109.0

53.7

99.7

705.6

968.0

In one year
or less
£ million

In more
than 1 year
but less
than 2 years
£ million

In more
than 2 years
but less
than 5 years
£ million

In more
than 5 years
£ million

Total
£ million

–
9.9
79.2

0.2
12.4
2.8

–
99.1
0.7

4.8
601.4
–

5.0
722.8
82.7

89.1

15.4

99.8

606.2

810.5

1.43
4.76

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

31 December 2011
Variable interest rate instruments
Fixed interest rate instruments
Non-interest bearing instruments*

In one year
or less
£ million

In more
than 1 year
but less
than 2 years
£ million

2.60
5.03

Non-interest bearing instruments relate to trade and other payables.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturity of the Group’s derivative financial instruments. The table reflects
the undiscounted net cash flows relating to derivative instruments that settle on a net basis:

31 December 2012
Net settled interest rate swaps
Net settled interest rate caps
Forward exchange contracts

31 December 2011
Net settled interest rate swaps
Net settled interest rate caps
Forward exchange contracts

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

In one year
or less
£ million

In more
than 1 year
but less
than 2 years
£ million

In more
than 2 years
but less
than 5 years
£ million

5.05
5.06
n/a

15.1
–
0.2

14.7
–
–

35.1
–
–

20.6
(0.1)
–

85.5
(0.1)
0.2

15.3

14.7

35.1

20.5

85.6

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
%

In one year
or less
£ million

In more
than 1 year
but less
than 2 years
£ million

In more
than 2 years
but less
than 5 years
£ million

In more
than 5 years
£ million

Total
£ million

5.45
n/a
n/a

12.4
–
–

13.0
–
–

32.3
–
–

24.8
–
–

82.5
–
–

12.4

13.0

32.3

24.8

82.5

In more
than 5 years
£ million

Total
£ million
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18 FINANCIAL RISk MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Maturity of financial assets (continued)
Capital risk

The Group seeks to adopt efficient financing structures that enable it to manage capital effectively to achieve the Group’s
objectives without putting shareholder value at risk. The Group’s capital structure comprises its equity (as set out in the Group
Statement of Changes in Equity) and its net borrowings.
The Group has requirements for both borrowings and letters of credit, which at 31 December 2012 were met by a combination of a
£305.0 million (2011 – £305.0 million) syndicated committed revolving credit facility, two (2011 – two) bilateral committed facilities
for loans, letters of credit and financial guarantees of £19.6 million (2011 – £19.9 million) and an uncommitted overdraft facility,
repayable on demand, of £5 million (2011 – £5 million). The committed facilities are summarised below:
2011

2012

Syndicated committed revolving credit
facility (with letter of credit option)
Bilateral letter of credit and financial
guarantee facilities
Total committed Group
facilities (recourse)

Total
facility
£ million

Loans
drawn
£ million

Letters of
credit
drawn
£ million

Total
undrawn
£ million

Total
facility
£ million

Loans
drawn
£ million

Letters of
credit
drawn
£ million

Total
undrawn
£ million

305.0

–

175.4

129.6

305.0

–

178.6

126.4

19.6

–

11.9

7.7

19.9

–

7.9

12.0

324.6

–

187.3

137.3

324.9

–

186.5

138.4

The syndicated committed facility was signed on 25 November 2010 and can be used either for drawing down loans capped at any
one time to £75 million or for issuing letters of credit. A bilateral facility with Barclays Bank plc was signed on 25 November 2010
and a bilateral facility with Australia New Zealand Banking Group Limited and the overdraft facility were signed on 16 December
2010. All these facilities were due to expire on 24 November 2013 but were replaced on 20 February 2013 by new facilities totalling
£285 million and expiring on 20 February 2017.
Of the letters of credit drawn, £181.8 million (2011 – £185.5 million) back future capital and loan commitments and £5.5 million
(2011 – £1.0 million) relate to performance and bid bonds. In addition to the £187.3 million drawn on the committed facilities,
£1.1 million (2011 – £1.4 million) in performance bonds were provided by a surety company.

19 FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVES
31 December
2012
£ million

Derivatives
Current liabilities
Foreign exchange derivative instruments
Non-current liabilities
Interest rate swaps
Non-current assets
Interest rate caps

86

(0.2)

(83.4)

0.2

31 December
2011
£ million

–

(75.9)

–

Total fair value of derivatives
Net deferred tax thereon

(83.4)
19.2

(75.9)
19.0

Total fair value of derivatives after tax

(64.2)

(56.9)
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19 FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVES (CONTINUED)
The breakdown by notional value of interest rate swaps is shown below:
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Notional value of interest rate swaps
Attributable to the Group
Attributable to non-controlling interests

(364.7)
(28.3)

(267.4)
(23.0)

Total

(393.0)

(290.4)

The derivatives have been fair valued in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. The movement in fair value reflects the
changes in the forward curves for interest rates at the year end on existing swaps and new swap contracts entered into during
the year.
During 2012, three new interest rate swaps and two new interest rate cap contracts were entered into in relation to three nonrecourse project subsidiaries. The swaps and caps were designated as hedges at inception and met the criteria for hedge
accounting. Of the fair value loss of £1.7 million on these instruments during the year, £1.3 million has been recognised in the
Group Income Statement. Also during 2012, the disposal of subsidiaries removed one interest rate swap and one inflation swap
from the Group with a total fair value loss of £24.6 million, all of which has been recognised in the hedging, revaluation and
translation reserve. The fair value of these swaps at 31 December 2011 (£28.1 million) was included within liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale (see note 8).
During 2012, fair value movements relating to other swaps outside hedging relationships of £2.3 million (2011 – £4.0 million) were
recognised in the Group Income Statement. As at 31 December 2012, the remaining designated hedges were tested for hedge
effectiveness and a loss of £5.2 million (2011 – £55.5 million) taken directly to the hedging reserve.
During December 2012, two forward exchange contracts were entered into to minimise exposure to foreign exchange movements
on a) a New Zealand Dollar equity commitment, the total contract amount of which was New Zealand Dollar 18.2 million, and b)
Euro trading balances with a total contract amount of €5.4 million. The contracts, which matured in January 2013, were not
designated as hedges. As a result the fair value loss on the New Zealand Dollar contract of £0.2 million and the fair value gain on
the Euro swap contract of £34,000 were recognised in the Group Income Statement.
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20 DEFERRED TAx
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movements therein for the year ended
31 December 2012:
Accelerated
tax
deductions
of PPP
projects
£ million

Opening (liability)/asset
at 1 January 2012
Arising on acquisitions
in the year
(Charge)/credit to income
– prior year
(Charge)/credit to income
– current year
Arising on disposals and
other movements
Credit to equity
Closing (liability)/asset
at 31 December 2012

(14.7)
–

Tax losses
of PPP
projects
£ million

13.8

Other
temporary
differences
on business
combinations
£ million

(12.9)

Retirement
benefit
obligations
£ million

(2.7)

1.9

–

–

(3.7)

–

(0.4)

0.7

0.4

–

0.4

(2.5)

0.2

–

–
–

–
1.1

12.0

(12.3)

3.9

17.5

–

(14.7)

Total
£ million

–

–

–
–

Other
deductible
temporary
differences
£ million

1.0

–

–
–

Deferred tax
IAS39 fair
Taxable
on the fair
value of
temporary
value of joint
derivatives differences
ventures and and financial on intangible
associates
assets
assets
£ million
£ million
£ million

2.1

(18.3)

–

–

–

0.6

–
–

(0.3)
(6.8)

(18.3)

11.0

(3.7)

20.5

2.9

0.3

(2.2)

(3.2)

0.1
–

(0.1)
–

(0.3)
(5.7)

20.1

(6.1)

(6.0)

The net £5.7 million credit to equity is related to each component of recognised income and expenditure as follows:
Gross
£ million

Net increase in fair value of financial assets
Net decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
Recycling of financial assets and hedging derivatives on disposal
Movement in deferred tax on retirement benefit obligations

12.9
(1.5)
13.3

Tax
£ million

(2.6)
(1.0)
(3.2)
1.1

Net
£ million

10.3
(2.5)
10.1

(5.7)

Closing deferred tax balances have been provided at 23% to reflect the reduction in the corporation tax rate from 1 April 2013,
which was the substantively enacted rate at the balance sheet date.
Netting of deferred tax balances
2012
£ million

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax on continuing activities as disclosed on the Group Balance Sheet
Deferred tax asset on discontinued activities

2011
£ million

53.4
(59.5)

35.6
(36.0)

(6.1)
–

(0.4)
4.3

(6.1)

3.9

The Group has unused tax losses of £68.8 million (2011 – £144.1 million) available for offset against future profits. A deferred
tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these losses. Under present tax legislation, these losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.
£79.5 million (2011-nil) of carried forward tax losses have been notionally offset against £79.5 million (2011-nil) relating to future
interest receivable within investments at fair value through profit and loss. This interest may be taxable in future periods.
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Retirement benefit obligations held in the Company’s subsidiaries:
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

Pension schemes
Post retirement medical benefits

(182.6)
(7.2)

(154.2)
(6.8)

Associated deferred tax asset

(189.8)
2.1

(161.0)
1.0

Retirement benefit obligations

(187.7)

(160.0)

a) Pension schemes

John Laing operates two defined benefit pension schemes in the UK (‘the Schemes’) – The John Laing Pension Fund (‘the
Fund’) and The John Laing Pension Plan (‘the Plan’). The Fund was closed to future accrual from 1 April 2011. Neither
Scheme has any active members, only deferred members and pensioners. The assets of both Schemes are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.
Staff employed since 1 January 2002, who are entitled to retirement benefits, can choose to be members of a defined
contribution stakeholder scheme sponsored by the Group in conjunction with Legal and General Assurance Society Limited.
The Fund

A full actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2010 by a qualified independent actuary, Towers Watson.
At that date, the Fund was 69% funded on the technical provision funding basis. This valuation took into account the
Continuous Mortality Investigation Bureau projections of mortality. The next triennial actuarial valuation of the Fund is due as
at 31 March 2013.
During 2012 John Laing made deficit reduction contributions of £24.3 million in cash. In 2011, John Laing made deficit
reduction contributions of £24.0 million, comprising £18.1 million in cash and shares in PPP assets to the value of £5.9 million.
The Company has guaranteed to fund any cumulative shortfall in forecast project yield payments from these PPP assets up
until 2017, but considers it unlikely that a net shortfall will arise. This guarantee is consistent with similar guarantees provided
in respect of contributions made in the form of shares in PPP assets in prior periods. Under the existing schedule of
contributions, the deficit reduction contribution for 2013 will be £25.2 million and will increase by 3.55% per annum thereafter
to 2019 when it will increase by 9%, unless agreed otherwise by the Company and the Fund’s corporate Trustee, until the
deficit has been eliminated.
The liability at 31 December 2012 allows for indexation of deferred pensions and post 5 April 1988 GMP pension increases
based on the Consumer Price Index (‘CPI’).
The Plan

No contributions were made to the Plan in 2012. At the last actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2011, the Plan had assets of
£12.1 million and liabilities of £10.1 million resulting in a surplus of £2.0 million. The next triennial actuarial valuation of the
Plan is due as at 31 March 2014.
An analysis of members at 31 December 2012 is shown below:
The Fund
The Plan

Deferred

Pensioners

Total

5,275
140

3,599
298

8,874
438
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued)

The weighted average financial assumptions used in the valuation of the Fund and the Plan under IAS 19 at 31 December were:

Discount rate
Rate of increase in non-GMP pensions in payment
Rate of increase in non-GMP pensions in deferment
Inflation – RPI
Inflation – CPI

2012
%

2011
%

2010
%

4.40
2.70
1.80
2.80
2.00

5.00
2.95
2.00
2.95
2.00

5.50
3.25
2.90
3.40
2.90

The Group establishes the expected rate of return on assets by developing a forward looking, long term return assumption for
each asset class, taking into account factors such as the expected real return for the specific asset class and respective yields
and market rates at the end of each reporting period.
The value of the Fund deficit is highly dependent upon these assumptions and may vary significantly from year to year. The
impact of possible future changes to some of the assumptions is shown below:
(Increase)/decrease in pension
deficit at 31 December 2012
before deferred tax
Increase in
assumption
£ million

0.25% on discount rate
0.25% on inflation rate
1 year post retirement longevity

Decrease in
assumption
£ million

34.7
(31.0)
(29.9)

(36.9)
29.3
29.8

Mortality

Mortality assumptions at 31 December 2012 and 2011 were based on the following tables published by the Continuous
Mortality Investigation Bureau:
•

Mortality before retirement – AM00 and AF00 ultimate mortality table for men and women respectively

•

Mortality after retirement – SAPS normal year of birth tables with medium cohort projections and a minimum
improvement of 1% per annum in future longevity of staff members

•

Mortality after retirement – SAPS light year of birth tables with medium cohort projections and a minimum improvement of
1% per annum in future longevity of executive members

The table below summarises the weighted average life expectancy implied by the mortality assumptions used:

Life expectancy – for an active/deferred member reaching age 65
Males
Females
Life expectancy – for a 65 year old pensioner
Males
Females

90

2012
Years

2011
years

2010
years

22.3
25.1

22.3
25.1

22.3
25.1

21.3
24.1

21.2
24.0

21.1
23.9
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued)

The aggregate fair values of the assets in the Schemes, the expected weighted average long-term rates of return thereon, and
aggregate net liabilities at 31 December were:
2011

2012

Bonds and insurance policy*
Equities
Property
Cash and other
PPP assets

£ million

%

£ million

%

486.7
139.5
53.4
12.4
29.7

3.86
6.85
5.85
0.50
7.72

444.7
138.1
58.4
21.6
28.4

4.31
6.85
5.85
0.50
8.88

Total market value of assets
Present value of Schemes’ liabilities

721.7
(900.4)

691.2
(841.2)

Deficit in the Schemes
Less unrecoverable surplus in the Plan

(178.7)
(3.9)

(150.0)
(4.2)

Net pension deficit
Associated deferred tax asset

(182.6)
2.1

(154.2)
1.0

Net pension liability

(180.5)

(153.2)

Analysis of Schemes’ assets

The major categories of assets as a percentage of total assets at 31 December were as follows:

Bonds and insurance policy
Equities
Property
Cash and other
PPP assets

*

2012
%

2011
%

67.5
19.3
7.4
1.7
4.1

64.4
20.0
8.4
3.1
4.1

100.0

100.0

In February 2009, the Fund Trustee entered into a bulk annuity buy-in agreement with Aviva. At 31 December 2012, the insurance policy was valued at
£201.0 million (2011 – £195.7 million), being very substantially equal to the IAS19 valuation of the related liabilities.

Analysis of amounts charged to operating profit
2012
£ million

Current service cost*

*

(1.1)

2011
£ million

(2.1)

Both Schemes no longer have any active members. Therefore, under the projected unit method of valuation the current service cost for the Fund will
increase as a percentage of pensionable payroll as the members approach retirement.

Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs
2012
£ million

Net charge to finance costs

34.2
(41.1)
–

38.0
(44.3)
(0.1)

(6.9)

(6.4)
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Expected return on Schemes’ assets
Interest on Schemes’ liabilities
Past service cost recognised

2011
£ million
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued)
Analysis of amount recognised in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Actual return less expected return on Schemes’ assets
Experience gain/(loss) arising on Schemes’ liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of Schemes’ liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in unrecoverable surplus

12.3
0.3
(57.7)
0.3

10.8
(8.2)
(2.6)
(0.9)

Actuarial losses recognised in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Movement in deferred tax asset

(44.8)
1.1

(0.9)
(0.3)

Actuarial losses recognised in Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

(43.7)

(1.2)

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Contributions by members
Interest cost
Experience gain/(loss) on Schemes’ liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the Schemes’ liabilities
Benefits paid
Past service cost recognised

(841.2)
(1.1)
–
(41.1)
0.3
(57.7)
40.4
–

(824.6)
(2.1)
(0.1)
(44.3)
(8.2)
(2.6)
40.8
(0.1)

Closing defined benefit obligation

(900.4)

(841.2)

Changes in the fair value of Schemes’ assets
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Opening fair value of Schemes’ assets
Expected return on Schemes’ assets
Actual return less expected return on Schemes’ assets
Contributions by employer
Contributions by members
Benefits paid

691.2
34.2
12.3
24.4
–
(40.4)

658.9
38.0
10.8
24.2
0.1
(40.8)

Closing fair value of Schemes’ assets

721.7

691.2

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Analysis of the movement in the deficit during the year

Opening deficit
Current service cost
Other finance cost
Contributions
Actuarial loss*

(150.0)
(1.1)
(6.9)
24.4
(45.1)

(165.7)
(2.1)
(6.4)
24.2
–

Deficit in Schemes at 31 December
Less unrecoverable surplus in Plan
(4.2)

(178.7)

(150.0)
(3.9)

Pension deficit at 31 December

(182.6)

(154.2)

*

excluding the increase in unrecoverable surplus in the Plan.

The cumulative amount of losses recognised in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity is £330.6 million
(2011 – £285.8 million).
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21 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
a) Pension schemes (continued)
History of the weighted average experience gains and losses

Difference between actual and expected returns on assets:
Amount (£ million)
% of Schemes’ assets
Experience gain/(loss) on Schemes’ liabilities:
Amount (£ million)
% of present value of Schemes’ liabilities
Total amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income (excluding deferred tax):
Amount (£ million)
% of present value of Schemes’ liabilities

2012

2011

12.3
1.7

10.8
1.6

0.3
–

(8.2)
1.0

0.3
–

(0.9)
0.1

Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
2012
£ million

Present value of Schemes’ liabilities
Market value of Schemes’ assets
Deficit (after unrecoverable surplus in Plan)
Experience gain/(loss) on Schemes’ liabilities
% of present value of Schemes’ liabilities
Experience gain/(loss) on Schemes’ assets
% of Schemes’ assets

(900.4)
721.7
(182.6)
0.3
–
12.3
1.7%

2011
£ million

(841.2)
691.2
(154.2)
(8.2)
1.0%
10.8
1.6%

2010
£ million

(824.6)
658.9
(169.0)
8.5
1.0%
26.8
4.1%

2009
£ million

2008
£ million

(804.4)
612.7
(195.0)
(0.4)
–
(5.9)
1.0%

(738.3)
598.5
(144.2)
–
–
(132.2)
22.1%

b) Post retirement medical benefits

The Company provides post retirement medical insurance benefits to 65 past employees. This scheme, which was closed to
new members in 1991, is unfunded.
The present value of the future liabilities under this arrangement has been assessed by the scheme actuary, Towers Watson,
and has been included in the Group Balance Sheet under retirement benefit obligations as follows:
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Post retirement medical liability at 1 January
Other finance costs
Contributions
Actuarial loss recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

(6.8)
(0.3)
0.4
(0.5)

(6.3)
(0.3)
0.4
(0.6)

Post retirement medical liability at 31 December

(7.2)

(6.8)

The annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of medical benefits was assumed to be 4.4% in 2012. It is expected to
increase in 2013 and thereafter at 5.2% per annum.
Medical cost inflation has a significant effect on the liability reported for this scheme. A 1% change in assumed medical cost
inflation would result in the following costs and liability:

Post retirement medical liability
Aggregate of the service and finance cost

(8.1)
(0.4)

1% decrease
£ million

(6.5)
(0.3)
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22 PROVISIONS
At 1 January
2012
£ million

Charge/(credit)
to Group
Unwinding Transfer from
Income
of discount
creditors
Statement
£ million
£ million
£ million

At 31
December
2012
£ million

Utilised
£ million

Retained liabilities
Onerous contracts
Employee related liabilities
Major maintenance
Onerous property leases

6.6
16.7
0.1
6.9
2.2

0.3
–
–
0.3
0.1

–
–
–
0.4
–

3.0
(13.9)
–
1.0

(0.1)
0.2
–
(0.2)
(0.4)

9.8
3.0
0.1
8.4
1.9

Total provisions

32.5

0.7

0.4

(9.9)

(0.5)

23.2

Classified as:
Continuing
Discontinued (see note 8)

25.9
6.6

13.4
9.8

Provisions on continuing operations are analysed as:
Non-current provisions
Current provisions

14.0
11.9

11.5
1.9

25.9

13.4

Provisions for retained liabilities relate to disposed businesses, £8.1 million of which relates to the sale of Laing Construction in
2001 (2011 – £5.0 million). These amounts are assessed regularly on a contract by contract basis and are expected to be utilised
over the next few years. In addition, provisions of £1.5 million (2011 – £1.2 million) relate to self insurance which are calculated
using historical data and are based on the advice of loss adjustors and an independent actuary.
Included in onerous contracts are provisions relating to projected losses on long-term facilities management contracts. During
2012, the impact of profit improvement including cost saving initiatives on these contracts was assessed and resulted in a release
of £4.4 million of the provision. This release is recorded in cost of sales in the Group Income Statement. The balance of the
onerous contracts’ provision of £2.9 million (2011 – £7.0 million) is expected to be utilised over the remaining 20-25 year term of
the contracts. At 31 December 2011, onerous contracts also included an amount of £9.6 million relating to an obligation on the
Group to invest in the A1 Germany road project where the present value of the future cash flows was estimated to be less than the
letter of credit in issue. Following investment by the Group of equity and subordinated debt in this project during 2012, this
provision has been released (see note 12 for further details).
The major maintenance provision is a provision made in a subsidiary project company relating to the maintenance of a road based
on anticipated costs allowing for inflation. The movement in the income statement is calculated based on an increase or decrease
in the provision required to meet future anticipated expenditure.
A provision in respect of an onerous property lease of £1.9 million (2011 – £2.1 million) has been classified as a current liability as
it is management’s intention that this liability is settled in 2013.

23 ShARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary Shares of £0.25 each

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
391,742,514 Ordinary Shares of £0.25 each
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2012
No.

2011
No.

470,605,252

470,605,252

£ million

£ million

97.9

97.9
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24 CAPITAL RESERVE AND hEDGING, REVALUATION AND TRANSLATION RESERVE
Hedging
reserve
£ million

Revaluation
reserve
£ million

Translation
reserve
£ million

Total
£ million

At 1 January 2012
Net increase in fair value of financial assets
Net decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives
Released on disposal
Non-controlling interest

(59.5)
–
(2.5)
18.7
0.4

17.0
10.3
–
(8.6)
(1.6)

3.4
–
–
–
–

(39.1)
10.3
(2.5)
10.1
(1.2)

At 31 December 2012

(42.9)

17.1

3.4

(22.4)

Movements in the fair value of derivatives, net of deferred tax, are recognised in the hedging reserve only if designated and effective.
Movements in the fair value of financial assets, net of deferred tax, are recognised in the revaluation reserve.
At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 29 January 2007, shareholders approved a resolution to reduce the
Company’s share premium account by £124.1 million and create a special capital reserve. This was approved by the High Court on
14 February 2007. In 2012, an amount of £23.1 million (2011 – £24.0 million) was transferred to distributable reserves out of the special
capital reserve. As a result the balance on the special capital reserve reduced to zero at 31 December 2012 (2011 – £23.1 million).

25 ACqUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY
On 3 July 2012, the Group signed an agreement for the purchase of the entire issued share capital of two operational solar park
companies. The acquisitions of Five Oaks Solar Park Limited and Fryingdown Solar Park Limited were completed on 3 July 2012
and 1 August 2012 respectively.
The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below:
Five Oaks Solar Park Limited
Book value
£ million

Net assets acquired
Intangible asset
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Satisfied by:
Cash
Deferred consideration

Net cash flow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired
Cash outflow on acquisition

Fair value
£ million

Fryingdown Solar Park Limited
Book value
£ million

Fair value
£ million

Total
Fair value
£ million

–
10.6
2.5
0.5
(13.2)
–

7.1
10.6
2.5
0.5
(13.2)
(1.6)

–
10.8
2.7
0.8
(13.7)
–

9.0
10.8
2.7
0.8
(13.7)
(2.1)

16.1
21.4
5.2
1.3
(26.9)
(3.7)

0.4

5.9

0.6

7.5

13.4

5.8
0.1

7.3
0.2

13.1
0.3

5.9

7.5

13.4

5.8
(0.5)

7.3
(0.8)

13.1
(1.3)

5.3

6.5

11.8

Amber Solar Parks Limited is wholly owned by Amber Solar Parks (Holdings) Limited, a company also incorporated on 25 May 2012.
The Group currently holds an 80% interest in Amber Solar Parks (Holdings) Limited with the remaining interest held between four of
the original shareholders of the two acquired companies who also hold loan notes of £3.4 million in Amber Solar Parks (Holdings)
Limited. The shares and loan notes are held by the original shareholders as part of deferred consideration arrangements and are
redeemable unconditionally and with virtual certainty at fixed amounts and fixed dates. The shares carry the right to a return of their
nominal value only which is the amount of the deferred consideration attaching to the shares. The loan notes are also redeemable at
their face value. Therefore the Group has treated the acquired companies as being wholly owned on the acquisition date and has
recognised the deferred consideration as a liability. No non-controlling interests have been recognised.
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The acquisition was made by Amber Solar Parks Limited, a company newly incorporated on 25 May 2012 for the purpose of the
transaction. Following the acquisition, on 18 September 2012, the trade and assets of the two acquired companies were hived up
into Amber Solar Parks Limited.
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25 ACqUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)
The deferred consideration is payable in June 2013 and has not been discounted.
If the acquisitions of Five Oaks Solar Park Limited and Fryingdown Solar Park Limited had been completed on the first day of the
financial period, Group revenues for the period would have been £2.0 million higher and the Group profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent company would have been £1.1 million lower.

26 NOTES TO ThE GROUP CASh FLOW STATEMENT
2012
£ million

2011*
£ million

Profit from operations
Adjustments for:
Discontinued operations’ cash flows
Unrealised profit arising on changes in fair value of investments in joint ventures and associates (note 12)
Other gains
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Contribution to pension fund
(Decrease)/increase in provisions

64.6

38.5

0.6
(26.1)
(6.1)
1.5
2.7
(24.6)
(12.9)

(0.6)
(41.2)
(20.7)
0.5
2.3
(18.4)
7.9

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Increase in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in payables

(0.3)
(77.8)
(7.5)

(31.7)
(82.4)
23.3

Cash outflow from operations
Income taxes received

(85.6)
1.7

(90.8)
0.4

Net cash outflow from operating activities

(83.9)

(90.4)

*

comparative information, including relevant notes, has been restated to reclassify £36.6 million of a reduction in other financial assets from net cash flows
from operating activities to cash flows from investing activities to better reflect the nature of the cash flows.

27 RECONCILIATION OF CASh AND CASh EqUIVALENTS TO ThE GROUP BALANCE ShEET
2012
£ million

2011
£ million

Cash and cash equivalents in the Group Balance Sheet
Cash and cash equivalents in assets held for sale and discontinued operations (note 8)

109.1
1.8

89.6
3.7

Group cash and cash equivalents in the Group Cash Flow Statement

110.9

93.3

28 GUARANTEES, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OThER COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2012, the Company was a guarantor under the Group’s £305 million syndicated committed facility and the
£10 million committed facility with Barclays Bank plc, each dated 25 November 2010, and the Australian Dollar 15 million committed
facility with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited dated 16 December 2010. At 31 December 2012, the total amount
utilised under these facilities was £187.3 million (2011 – £ 186.5 million). As stated in note 21 a) the Company provides guarantees in
respect of PPP assets transferred to the John Laing Pension Fund in settlement of annual contribution obligations.
The Group has future equity and loan commitments of £192.1 million (2011 – £185.5 million) in PPP projects that are backed by
drawn letters of credit of £181.8 million and collateralised cash of £10.3 million.
As at 31 December 2012, the Directors had authorised capital expenditure of £24.7 million in relation to renewable energy projects.
As at 31 December 2011, the Directors had authorised capital expenditure of £3.9 million in relation to the fit-out, including
computer equipment, of a new office.
The Group has given guarantees to lenders of a normal trading nature, including performance bonds, some of which may be
payable on demand.
Claims arise in the normal course of trading which in some cases involve or may involve litigation. Full provision has been made in
these accounts for all amounts which the Directors consider will become payable on account of such claims.
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28 GUARANTEES, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OThER COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, falling due as follows:
2011

2012

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years

Land and
buildings
£ million

Other
£ million

Total
£ million

Total
£ million

1.2
4.2
16.1

0.2
0.4
–

1.4
4.6
16.1

1.3
0.5
20.1

21.5

0.6

22.1

21.9

29 TRANSACTIONS WITh RELATED PARTIES
Group

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed. Details of transactions between the Group and other related parties are disclosed below.
Trading transactions

During the year the Group entered into the following trading transactions with joint ventures and associates:
2012
£ million

Services income*
Finance income
Dividend income
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates

*

36.4
19.4
12.1
25.9
(1.2)

2011
£ million

20.0
17.6
3.5
5.8
(1.3)

services income is generated from joint venture project companies through facilities management contracts, management services agreements and
recoveries of bid costs on financial close.

The Group has transferred ownership of a proportion of certain interests in PPP assets to the John Laing Pension Fund as partial
consideration in respect of agreed deficit reduction contributions. More details are set on in note 21. As part of the transfer, the
Company has guaranteed to pay any distribution shortfall to the John Laing Pension Fund for the next five years.
Loans to and from related parties

Subordinated debt loans to joint ventures and associates

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

154.2

138.2

Loans from joint ventures and associates

(3.3)

(1.9)

Mezzanine loan from John Laing Pension Fund to non-recourse subsidiary project company

(9.4)

(9.4)

These loans are provided by and to the Group at market rates of interest. The loans are repayable in accordance with the terms of
the loan agreements.

The Group entered into a new £285 million committed revolving credit facility agreement on 20 February 2013 and cancelled its
previous facilities. The new facilities are committed until February 2017.
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31 DISCLOSURE – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS
The Group has investments in project companies which operate service concession arrangements in the Accommodation,
Transport, and Environment and utilities sectors. The concessions vary as to the extent of their obligations but typically require the
construction and operation of an asset during the concession period. The concessions may require the acquisition or replacement
of an existing asset or the construction of a new asset. The operation of the assets may include the provision of major
maintenance and facilities management services such as cleaning, catering and caretaking. Typically at the end of concession
periods the assets are returned to the concession owner; however, on two of the projects held at 31 December 2012 the project
company has a right to retain the concession asset.
The rights of the concession owner and concession operator are stated within specific project agreements. The rights of the
concession owner include provisions to terminate the concession for poor performance of the contract by the operator or in the event
of force majeure. The rights of the operator to terminate include the failure of the provider to make payment under the agreement, a
material breach of contract and relevant changes of law which would render it impossible for the operator to fulfil its requirements.
Sector

Company name

Project name

%
owned

Short description
of concession
arrangement

Period of concession
Start date

End date

No.
years

Obligations to
property, plant
and equipment

Accommodation
hospitals

Schools

Justice and
Emergency
Services

98

Healthcare Support
(Erdington) Limited

North Birmingham 100%
Mental Health
Hospitals

Design, build, finance
and operate mental
health facilities in
Birmingham.

15/08/2000

31/03/2037

37

Refurbishment and
construction at
the All Saints &
Highcroft Hospital
costing £12 million.

Healthcare Support
(North Staffs)
Limited

North Staffs
Hospital

75%

Design, build, finance
and operate new build
and extensions
to North Staffs
Hospital.

19/06/2007

19/08/2044

37

Refurbishment and
construction on two
sites costing
£304 million.

Infusion KVH
General
Partnership

Kelowna and
Vernon Hospitals

50%

Design, build, finance
and operate two new
hospitals in Kelowna
and Vernon, British
Columbia, Canada.

26/08/2008

12/08/2042

34

Construction of two
hospitals and car
park costing
CAD $341 million.

SA Health
Partnership
Nominees Pty Ltd

New Royal
Adelaide
Hospital

17.3%

Design, build, finance
and operate new
hospital in Adelaide,
South Australia.

06/11/2011

05/06/2046

35

Construction of
new hospital
costing
AUD $1,850 million.

Barnsley SPV
One Limited

Barnsley BSF

40%

06/07/2009

26/04/2036

27

New schools
construction and
refurbishment
costing £91 million.

Barnsley SPV
Two Limited

Barnsley BSF2

40%

Design, build, finance
and operate three new
secondary schools and
two special schools in
the Barnsley area.
Design, build, finance
and operate two new
secondary schools in
the Barnsley area.

09/04/2010

31/12/2036

27

New schools
construction and
refurbishment
costing £51 million.

Barnsley SPV
Three Limited

Barnsley BSF3

40%

Design, build, finance
and operate four new
secondary schools in
the Barnsley area.

29/10/2010

02/09/2037

27

New schools
construction and
refurbishment
costing £126 million.

Services Support
(BTP) Limited

BTP (British
Transport Police)

54.17% Design, build, finance
and operate one office
and operate a further
six BTP premises.

26/03/1999

28/02/2022

23

Construction costing
£2 million.

Services Support
(Cleveland) Limited

Cleveland Firearms 27.08% Design, build, finance
and operate firearms
training facility in
Cleveland.

18/04/2000

31/03/2026

26

Construction costing
£6 million.

Services Support
(SEL) Limited

Metropolitan Police 25%
SEL

Design, build, finance
and operate four police
stations in South East
London.

26/10/2001

16/01/2029

27

Construction costing
£80 million.

Securefuture Wiri
Limited

Wiri Prison

Design, build, finance
11/09/2012
and operate a 960 place
prison at Wiri,
South Auckland

17/05/2040

25

Construction costing
NZD $270 million.

30%
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31 DISCLOSURE – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Short description
of concession
arrangement

Period of concession

Obligations to
property, plant
and equipment

Sector

Company name

Project name

%
owned

Start date

End date

No.
years

Defence

Defence Support
(St Athan) Limited

Red Dragon

100%

Design, build and
finance aircraft
maintenance
facilities at RAF
St. Athan.

01/08/2003

17/12/2019

16

Construction costing
£89 million.

Inteq Services Limited Corsham MoD

50%

Design, build and
finance a new MoD
building facility in
Corsham.

01/08/2008

31/07/2033

25

Construction of
defence facility
costing £117 million

Inspiral Oldham
Limited

Oldham Housing

95%

Refurbish, finance and
operate social housing
in Oldham.

30/11/2011

30/11/2036

25

Construction costing
£68.1 million.

Regenter Excellent
Kirklees Housing
Homes for Life Limited

80%

Refurbish, finance and
operate social housing
in Kirklees.

20/12/2011

30/09/2034

23

Construction costing
£66.2 million.

Regenter Myatts Field Lambeth Housing
North Ltd

50%

Build and refurbish,
04/05/2012
finance and operate
social housing in Lambeth.

04/05/2037

25

Construction
costing £72.6 million.

Groningen Tax Office 40%

Design, build, finance,
26/09/2008
maintenance and
operation of new
buildings on behalf of
the State Buildings Office
in the Netherlands.

14/03/2031

22

Total expenditure of
€133 million.

Regeneration

Netherlands

Duo2 B.V.

.

Transport
Roads

100%

Design, build, finance
and operate the A130
bypass linking the A12
and A127 in Essex.

01/02/2000

31/01/2030

30

New build at a cost
of £76 million.

Gdansk Transport
Co. SA

A1 Road Poland

29.69% Design, build, finance
and operate the A1
Motorway in Poland in
two phases.

31/08/2004

24/08/2039

35

New build at a cost
of €651 million for
phase 1 and
€900 million for
phase 2.

Severn River
Crossing Plc

SRC

35%

Design, build, finance
26/04/1992
and operate a second
crossing over the Severn
River plus operate and
maintain existing
crossing.

No later than The
Cost approximately
26/04/2022 earlier of £320 million.
30 years
or until
a predetermined
level of
revenue
achieved

MAK Mecsek
Autopalya
Konzorcium Zrt.

M6 Expressway
(Hungary)

30%

Design, construction,
01/04/2010
refurbishment, operation,
maintenance and
financing of 48 km
section of M6 expressway
and 32 km of M60
expressway.

31/10/2037

28

Build and maintain
new expressways
at a cost of
€886 million.

Tiehytio Nelostie Oy

Nelostie

50%

Design, build, finance
01/04/1997
and operate the E4
Motorway in Finland.
The project comprised
the upgrading of an
existing road and the
construction of a new
69 km shadow toll
motorway from Helsinki
to Lahti.

03/08/2012

15

Upgrade and
maintain part of
existing road and
build new motorway
at a cost of
€104 million.

UK Highways A55
Limited

A55

50%

Design, build, finance
and operate the A55, a
trunk road running
across the island of
Anglesey.

16/12/1998

15/12/2028

30

Build new trunk road
and maintain
existing Menai and
Britannia bridges
at a cost of
£102 million.

A1 Mobile GmbH
& Co. KG

A1 Germany

42.5%

Construct and operate
04/08/2008
the A1 Autobahn between
Bremen and Hamburg in
Germany.

31/08/2038

30

New build at a cost
of €417.1 million.
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31 DISCLOSURE – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Obligations to
property, plant
and equipment

Design, build, finance
09/12/2010
and maintain the A15
highway south of
Rotterdam (about 40 km).

30/06/2035

25

Extension of road at
Construction value of
€727 million.
Maintenance for 20
years costing in total
€204 million (real).

36%

Design, engineering,
finance, construction,
development, operation
and maintenance of a
96.5 km four-lane
highway from
Maharashtra-Madhya
Pradesh Border to
Dhule section of the
National Highway 3.

04/01/2010

03/01/2028

18

Build and maintain
highway at a cost of
NR 1,415 Cr
(£200 million).

City Greenwich
CGL Rail
Lewisham Rail Link plc

40%

Construction and
operation of
infrastructure on
Lewisham extension
of the Docklands
Light Railway (DLR).

01/10/1996

31/03/2021

25

Build 4.2 km
extension of the DLR
from Isle of Dogs to
Lewisham, including
boring of tunnels
beneath the Thames
at a cost of
£205 million.

Aylesbury Vale
Parkway Limited

50%

Construction and
operation of the
Aylesbury Vale
Parkway Station.

17/08/2007

13/12/2028

21

Construction costing
£15.5 million (of
which £11.0 million
Council-funded) and
maintenance over
20 years.

John Laing Rail
Coleshill Parkway
Infrastructure Limited

100%

Construction and
operation of the
Coleshill Parkway
Station.

10/03/2006

18/08/2027

21

Construction costing
£7.1 million (of
which £5 million
Council-funded) and
maintenance over
20 years.

Denver Transit
Partners LLC

45%

Design, build, finance,
maintenance and
operation of passenger
rail systems in Denver,
Colorado.

12/08/2010

31/12/2044

34

Construction costing
US$1.27 billion
consisting of
35 miles of
commuter train lines
including a
commuter rail
maintenance facility
and rail cars.

24%
Delivery and
(initially maintenance of
30%
intercity train services
with
on the Great Western
commit- Main Line (UK) using a
ment
fleet of new Super
to sell Express Trains and
6%
maintenance facilities.
(Sale of
6% was
completed
on 31
January
2013).

25/05/2012

28/11/2044

33

Construction costing
£1,820 million over
6 years and
maintenance costing
£65 million
per annum over
27.5 years.

Company name

Project name

Roads
(continued)

A-Lanes A15 B.V.

A15 MAVA
(Maasvlakte –
Vaanplein)

28%

Dhule Palesner
Tollway Limited

NH3 (Ma1) India

Aylesbury Vale
Parkway

Denver FasTracks
Eagle P3

Agility Trains West Ltd IEP phase 1

100

Period of concession
End date

Sector

Rail

Short description
of concession
arrangement

No.
years

%
owned

Start date
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31 DISCLOSURE – SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Sector

Company name

Project name

%
owned

Short description
of concession
arrangement

Period of concession
Start date

End date

No.
years

Obligations to
property, plant
and equipment

Environment and utilities
Street Lighting

Utilities

Surrey Lighting
Services Limited

Surrey Street
Lighting

50%

Installation and
maintenance of street
lighting.

27/11/2009

28/02/2035

25

Replacement
column programme
costing £78.6 million.

Croydon and
Lewisham Lighting
Services Limited

Croydon and
Lewisham Street
Lighting

50%

Installation and
maintenance of street
lighting.

19/04/2011

31/07/2036

25

Replacement
column programme
costing £74.2 million.

Coastal Clearwater
Limited

Kinnegar

50%

Design, build, finance
30/04/1999
and operate an upgrade
to a waste treatment
plant in Belfast,
Northern Ireland.

30/04/2024

25

Upgrade at a cost of
£12 million.

INEOS Runcorn
(TPS) Limited

Manchester Waste

37.43% Design, build, finance
and operate a waste
CHP plant in Runcorn.

08/04/2009

07/04/2034

25

New waste CHP
plant construction
costing £233 million.

Viridor Laing
(Greater Manchester)
Limited

Manchester Waste

50%

Design, build and
08/04/2009
commission 42 facilities
comprising waste
processing and recycling
services in the Greater
Manchester area.

07/04/2034

25

New waste
processing facilities
with construction
costing £401 million.

ELWA Limited

East London Waste 80%

Operate the process
01/12/2002
for household waste in
four London boroughs
(Redbridge, Barking
and Dagenham,
Havering and Newham).

01/12/2027

25

Waste processing
facilities with
construction cost
of £110 million.

Shanks Dumfries
and Galloway
Limited

Dumfries and
Galloway Waste

Manage waste
treatment and disposal
in Dumfries and
Galloway.

01/11/2029

25

Waste processing
facilities with
construction cost

80%

01/11/2004

of £34 million.
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32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
Investments
United Kingdom
Agility Trains West Ltd
Ordinary shares of £1 (24% plus 6% asset
held for sale)
Delivery of intercity train services
Financial year end 31 March
Amber Solar Parks Limited
Renewable energy developer
Aylesbury Vale Parkway Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Development and operation of rail
infrastructure assets
Barnsley SPV One Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
PPP accommodation operator
Financial year end 31 March
Barnsley SPV Two Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
PPP accommodation operator
Financial year end 31 March
Barnsley SPV Three Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
PPP accommodation operator
Financial year end 31 March
Bilsthorpe Wind Farm Limited
Renewable energy developer
Branden Solar Parks Limited
Renewable energy developer
City Greenwich Lewisham Rail Link plc
Ordinary shares of £1 (40%)
Light rail concession operator
Coastal Clearwater Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP wastewater treatment plant operator in
Northern Ireland
Financial year end 31 March
CountyRoute (A130) Plc
Road concession operator
Croydon and Lewisham Lighting Services Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Street lighting concession operator
Croydon PSDH Holdco Limited
Holding company for property development
company

John Laing Social Infrastructure Limited
Holding company for accommodation
investments

Defence Support (St Athan) Limited
PPP accommodation operator

Laing/Gladedale (Hastings) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Property development company

ELWA Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (80%)
PPP waste management operator
Financial year end 31 March

Laing/Gladedale (St Saviours) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Property development company

Healthcare Support (Erdington) Limited
PPP accommodation operator

Laing Investment Company Limited
Property development company

Healthcare Support (North Staffs) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (75%)
PPP accommodation operator

Regenter Excellent Homes for Life Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (80%)
PPP accommodation operator

INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (37.43%)
PPP waste management operator

Regenter Myatts Field North Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP accommodation operator

Inspiral Oldham Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (95%)
PPP accommodation operator

Services Support (BTP) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (54.17%)
PPP accommodation operator

Inteq Services Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP accommodation operator

Services Support (Cleveland) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (27.08%)
PPP accommodation operator

John Laing (Croydon Development Company)
LLP
Holding company for property development
company

Services Support (SEL) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (25%)
PPP accommodation operator

John Laing Infrastructure Limited
Holding company for roads investments
John Laing Investments Limited*
Holding company for investments
John Laing Investments Overseas Holdings
Limited
Holding company for overseas investments
John Laing Projects & Developments Limited
Property management company
John Laing Projects & Developments
(Holdings) Limited
Holding company for rail related assets and
property developments

Croydon PSDH Holdco 2 Limited
Holding company for property development
company

John Laing Projects & Developments
(Croydon) Limited
Holding company for Croydon property
developments

CCURV LLP
Limited Liability Partnership (50%)
Property development

John Laing Rail Infrastructure Limited
Development and operation of rail
infrastructure assets

*
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Davis House LLP
Limited Liability Partnership (50%)
Office building owner and manager

shares owned directly by the Company.

Severn River Crossing Plc
Ordinary shares of £1 (35%)
Toll bridge concessionaire
Shanks Dumfries and Galloway Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (80%)
PPP waste management operator
Financial year end 31 March
Surrey Lighting Services Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Street lighting concession operator
UK Highways A55 Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
Road concession operator
Financial year end 31 March
UK Highways Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (25 pence paid up) (50%)
Management of road concession operator
Financial year end 31 March
Viridor Laing (Great Manchester) Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (50%)
PPP waste management operator
Wear Point Wind Limited
Ordinary shares of £1 (80%)
Renewable energy developer

32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
Investments
Overseas
A1 Mobil GmbH & Co. KG
Shares of €1 (42.5%)
Road concession operator – operating in
Germany

Duo2 B.V.
Shares of €1 (40%)
PPP accommodation operator – operating in
the Netherlands

SA Health Partnership Nominees Pty Limited
Shares of AUD 1 (17.26%)
Hospital concession operator – operating in
Australia

A-Lanes A15 B.V.
Shares of €1 (28%)
PPP road concession operator – operating in
the Netherlands

Gdansk Transport Company SA
B series shares PLN10 each (29.69%)
C series shares PLN10 each (29.69%)
Road concession operator – operating in Poland

Securefuture Wiri Limited
Shares of NZD 1 (30%)
PPP accommodation operator – operating in
New Zealand

Denver Transit Partners LLC
Limited Liability Corporation (45%)
PPP rail concession operator – operating in the
USA

Infusion Health KVH General Partnership
Hospital concession operator – operating in
Canada (50%)

SPC Management Services B.V.
Shares of €1 (33.33%)
Management services to projects in the
Netherlands

Dhule Palesner Tollway Limited
Ordinary shares of 10 rupees each (36%)
Road concession operator – operating in India

John Laing Investments Overseas Holdings
Limited
Holding company for overseas investments
MAK Mecsek Autopalya Koncesszios Zrt.
Ordinary shares HUF25,000 (30%)
Road concession operator – operating in
Hungary

Tieyhtio Nelostie Oy
Ordinary A shares €6.055 (50%)
Ordinary B shares €2.355 (25%)
Road concession operator – operating in
Finland (41%)

Listed investments
John Laing Infrastructure Fund Limited
Ordinary shares of 0.01 pence (6.7%)
Registered in Guernsey

Group Services Companies
John Laing Services Limited*
Management of retained construction
liabilities
John Laing Capital Management Limited*
Investment management company
John Laing Integrated Services Limited
Provision of facilities management services
Laing Investments Management Services
(Australia) Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
– operating in Australia

John Laing Infrastructure Management
Services India Private Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
– operating in India
Laing Property Limited*
Holding company for property developments
Laing Investments Management Services
Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
Laing Investments Management Services
(Canada) Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
– operating in Canada

Laing Investments Management Services
(Singapore) Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
Woodcroft Insurance Company Limited*
Insurance company – regulated in Guernsey
Laing Investments Management Services
(Netherlands) Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
– operating in Australia
John Laing (USA) Limited
Management, staff and administrative services
– operating in the USA

Except where indicated, all companies are wholly owned, have 31 December year ends, are incorporated in Great Britain and
registered in England and Wales or Scotland, and operate mainly in the country of incorporation.
*

shares owned directly by the Company.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

103

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2012

Notes

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

3

602.1

540.6

4

91.4
0.8
51.0

106.8
1.9
46.6

143.2

155.3

24.1

22.1

Net current assets

119.1

133.2

Total assets less current liabilities

721.2

673.8

6

128.4

124.8

Fixed assets
Interests in subsidiary undertakings
Current assets
Debtors: due within one year
due after one year
Cash at bank and in hand

4

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
Interests in subsidiary undertaking

5

8

184.5

153.8

Net assets

11

408.3

395.2

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Capital reserve
Revaluation reserve
Profit and loss account

9
10

97.9
–
265.8
44.6

97.9
23.1
234.8
39.4

408.3

395.2

10
10

Shareholder’s funds

The financial statements of John Laing plc, registered number 1345670, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for
issue on 14 March 2013 and were signed on its behalf by:
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A J h Ewer

P O’D Bourke

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

14 March 2013

14 March 2013

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Basis of preparation of accounts

The financial statements of the Company are presented separately as required by the Companies Act 2006. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law.
The principal accounting policies are summarised below:
b) Investments

Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are reflected in the financial statements at fair value which, in the
case of PPP project companies and other investments, is the portfolio valuation. For other companies, the net book value
equates to fair value.

2

PROFIT FOR ThE YEAR
In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate profit and loss account has been presented for the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company reported a profit of £6.9 million (2011 loss – £2.0 million). The
Directors authorised payment of interim dividends of £0.3 million (2011 – £0.3 million) during the year.

3

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAkINGS
Investments
£ million

Total
£ million

Original cost
At 1 January 2012

236.0

236.0

At 31 December 2012

236.0

236.0

Provisions made against investments
At 1 January 2012
Movements in the year

(84.0)
(0.2)

(84.0)
(0.2)

At 31 December 2012

(84.2)

(84.2)

Revaluation
At 1 January 2012
Movement in the year

388.6
61.7

388.6
61.7

At 31 December 2012

450.3

450.3

At 31 December 2012

602.1

602.1

At 31 December 2011

540.6

540.6

Valuation*

*

total of original cost, provisions made against investments and revaluation.

Short-term trading balances with subsidiaries are included in the Company Balance Sheet in debtors or creditors as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2012

4

DEBTORS
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

88.0
3.1
0.3

104.7
–
2.1

91.4

106.8

0.8

1.9

Due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income

Due after one year:
Prepayments and accrued income

The amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings in the current and prior year are repayable in line with agreed repayment
schedules. Interest is charged at arms length interest rates.

5

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WIThIN ONE YEAR
31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

13.8
0.1
10.2

18.9
0.1
3.1

24.1

22.1

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

128.4

124.8

128.4

124.8

31 December
2012
£ million

31 December
2011
£ million

23.7
128.4

22.1
124.8

152.1

146.9

At 1 January
2012
£ million

Revaluation
amount
£ million

At 31 December
2012
£ million

153.8

30.7

184.5

Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Other taxation and social security
Accruals and deferred income

6

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE ThAN ONE YEAR

Amounts owed to Group undertakings

Interest is charged by Group undertakings on loans at 3.5% above bank base rate.

7

ANALYSIS OF CREDITORS
Maturity

Due within one year
Due after more than five years

8

PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES

Investment in subsidiary undertaking*

*
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relates to the Company’s investment in John Laing Services Limited which holds the deficit of the John Laing Pension Fund.
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9

CALLED UP ShARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary Shares of £0.25 each

Allotted, called up and fully paid:
391,742,514 Ordinary Shares of £0.25 each

31 December
2012
No.

31 December
2011
No.

470,605,252

470,605,252

£ million

£ million

97.9

97.9

Profit and
loss account
£ million

Total
£ million

10 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
Capital
reserve
£ million

At 1 January 2012
Retained profit for the year
Unrealised gain on the revaluation of investments
Capital contribution to pension fund
Transfer from capital reserve on contribution to pension fund
At 31 December 2012

23.1
–
–
–
(23.1)
–

Revaluation
reserve*
£ million

234.8
–
31.0
–
–

39.4
6.6
–
(24.5)
23.1

297.3
7.0
30.6
(24.5)
–

265.8

44.6

310.4

At an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 29 January 2007, shareholders approved a resolution to reduce the
Company’s share premium account by £124.1 million and create a special capital reserve. This was approved by the High Court on
14 February 2007. Distributions may not be made out of the special reserve prior to the satisfaction of creditors or contingent
creditors as at the date of capital reduction. In 2012, an amount of £23.1 million (2011 – £24.0 million) was transferred to
distributable reserves out of the special capital reserve. As a result the balance on the special capital reserve reduced to zero at
31 December 2012 (2011 – £23.1 million).
*

the revaluation reserve is stated net of unrealised losses of £184.5 million at 31 December 2012 (2011 – £153.8 million) relating to the revaluation
of subsidiaries.

11 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN ShAREhOLDER’S FUNDS
2012
Share capital
£ million

Reserves
£ million

2011
Total
£ million

Total
£ million

Profit/(loss) for the financial year
Dividends paid on Ordinary Shares

–
–

6.9
(0.3)

6.9
(0.3)

(2.0)
(0.3)

Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year
Unrealised profit on the revaluation of investments
Contribution to pension fund

–
–
–

6.6
31.0
(24.5)

6.6
31.0
(24.5)

(2.3)
59.1
(24.3)

Net increase in shareholder’s funds

–

13.1

13.1

32.5

Opening shareholder’s funds

97.9

297.3

395.2

362.7

Closing shareholder’s funds

97.9

310.4

408.3

395.2

The Company’s immediate parent company is Henderson Infrastructure Holdco Limited, a company incorporated in Great Britain.
The largest group in which the Company’s results are consolidated is that of its ultimate parent and controlling entity, Henderson
Infrastructure Holdco (Jersey) Limited, a company incorporated in Jersey, Channel Islands.
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GROUP FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012
£ million

2011
£ million

2010
£ million

2009
£ million

2008
£ million

313.8

283.8

343.3

351.1

243.9

Profit from operations

64.6

38.5

62.7

2.5

28.2

Profit before tax

65.6

29.8

68.0

16.6

43.6

Profit attributable to the shareholder of the Group

64.8

42.8

69.9

14.1

81.2

Results
Revenue

Assets employed
Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provisions

1,340.2
252.7
(127.8)
(1,138.3)
(11.5)

1,173.9
302.2
(226.7)
(958.7)
(14.0)

1,334.7
223.3
(132.3)
(1,143.7)
(17.9)

1,667.0
229.1
(133.1)
(1,327.2)
(22.2)

Net assets

315.3

276.7

264.1

315.5

413.6

Financed by
Equity
Non-controlling interests

310.8
4.5

274.3
2.4

258.5
5.6

314.9
0.6

413.0
0.6

315.3

276.7

264.1

315.5

413.6

This document has been printed using inks made from non-hazardous vegetable oil derived from renewable
sources. Over 90% of solvents are recycled for further use and recycling initiatives are in place for all other
waste associated with this production. The printers are FSC and ISO 14001 certified with strict procedures in
place to safeguard the environment throughout all their processes. They have also registered with and have
had audits carried out by the Carbon Trust to reduce their carbon footprint.
The paper used in this report is produced using wood fibre from fully sustainable forests in Finland, Sweden,
Portugal, Spain and Brazil, with FSC certification. The pulps used are Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF), and
the manufacturing mill is accredited with the ISO 14001 standard for environmental management and with
EMAS (The EU Environmental Management and Audit System).
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